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LEWIS M. ETCOFF, Ph.D. - 9/25/2010

Page 79
more exact, but it means the same thing.

Q Did you rule that out --

A i -~

. ~— or did you not rule that out?

a I don't know whether -- and I don't think it's
particularly -- no one is going to know this. I don't

rhink it's particularly case relevant.

0. Fair enough.
A. I'm not geing to use it in my opinion. I just

gald that this was on the PAI and --

Yo when we come right down to it ==
A Yes
Q. e I want to make sure that I got it all. 5o

what I am getting is you kelieve that he has a -- and 1
don't know if he still has it -- you belisve he has
alcohol abuse?

A, Yes. By history. It may ke over because he
sald he hasn't used it since 2008 or something like
that.

MK, RANALLI: '08.
THE WITNESS5: 50 1if that's true —-- now he has
alzo said in the past he wasn'i using bhut was,

BY MR. VANNAH:

Q. Well, Just because —- yes.
A, If we aszsume it's true, then he had alcohol

LITIGATION ZERVICES & TECHNOLOGIES - (800) 330-1112
APP-1363
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abuse up until 2008 to some point.

Q. All right.

A. That is with the -- by history.

0. And do you have —-- 1 m=an, you know, somelimes
reople, regardless if they're not being candid about
that, there's ways to find ocut. For example, if
they're in a hospital and they do a blood alcohol on
them or they get & DUT or there's lots of ways vou can
tind out, Well, that person cbhviocusly is wrong about
not having a problem because thevy're not drinking. But
have you sesen any evidence to indicate o vou in any
way, shape, or form that he isn't being true when he
said he hasn't drank since he stopped in 200872

A, There 1is no way of finding ocut if that is
incorrect.

Q. 50 let me ask you this: As a psycheologilst, if
he hag ceased drinking for over two vears, does that
mean he no longer has a legitimate diagnosis of alcohol
abuse?

A, Yes.

Q. S50 right now you don't have an opinion to a
reasonable degree of psyehological gertainty that he
has an alcohol abuse diagnosis at this time; right?

A. Correct.

Q. So I'm leoking at this time. 3o i# 1

Page 8C
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understand your diagnosis, it would be the Pain
Disorder, which falls within the Somatoform Disorder:
right? That would be one?

A, Yez,

0. And then he had the Major Depressive Disorder,
Single Episode. That would be number two, second
diagnosis?

A And that followed the trial, and that's in
full remission. So if we've using those criteria, he
dogsn't have that now any longer,

0. So right now, all he would have is the
Somatoform Disorder with the subcategory of Pain
Dizorder?

A. And that pain-related disability of
malingering, meaning that --

. Oh, yeah.

A, -— he's -— he could be =~ ha's faeigning or
that he isn't capable of doing any type of work when he
is capable probably =~ I belisve he's capable. And I
think his doctors who have treated him have -« have
told him that he is capable of going back to some sort
of employment.

Q. And s0 do I, by the way?

A. Oh.

0. But it deesn't mean that there are any jobs

Page 81
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Page 82 :
for him because of his lack of education. 1 actually

believe that. I'm more cynical aboult people hiring
paopie whe can't do the work.

A Okay.

Q. It's a buyers' market out there right now. I
mean, they're getiting incredibly talented people very
cheapiy. You would be amazed what I can get for 58.50
an hour with a cellege education. 1 will have to bire
George,

4. No. 1 am working -- I am working as an
attorney for three different law firms. They hired me

at $10.50 an hour,

Q. Well, I was going to offer you a job today.
A. I am btrying to work my way up to a decent

hourly wage.
. I am going to hire you as a paralegal.

Evervone has that ability.

A. These aren’'t coming to trial, right?
0. Ny, of course not.

I think I'm with you. 5o what we have now 1s
the diagnosis now would be the Somatoform Disorder,
which specifically is the paliln disorder we have fTalked
about?

A, Yes.

0. And malingering as it relates specifically to

LITIGATION SERVICES & TECHNOLOGIES - (800) 330-1112
APP-1366
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Page 83 |
his ability to work?

4. Yes,

G Right?

4. With a past history of alcohel abuse, a past
history right after the accident of an adjustment
discrder with depressed mood, meaning after the
accident as a result of the accident he had pain and
thig hurt and that hurt. And he had surgery, so he
became depressed, and we know that. So that is
there -

G- And Jlet me just interrupt you. And that vou
pelieve was caused by the agoident —-

AL Yeu,

------- te a reasonable degree of probability?

¥

LY Y,

Q. Okay. Go ahead.

A . And then the major depressive disorder was noi
caused by the accldent. It was caused by losing

the —- what do we call 1t now?

Q. By the earlier proceedings?
A. By the earlier proceedings. And that's pretty

much a lot better. And I think there's probably mors
going on in his marriage than either of them may be
willing to admit on —- in terms of pre-existing

problems in the marriage, And I think those stressors

LITIGATION SERVICES & TECHNOLOGIES - (800) 330-1112
APP-1367
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in the marriage, his wife had her own back surgery.
His wife had --

0. All of which -- all of which we can't bring in
either.

MR, RANALLI: Well, that —-- 1if Dr., Btcoff
testified to that to a reasonable degree of
probability, that's according to Bixler.

MR, VANMNAH: Well, actually vou don't have a
reasonable degree of probabillity that anything in the
marriage is caused -- in other words, we know that
early in the marriage they had a disagreement. I don’'t
know =- are they still married?

MR, RBANALLYI: ‘They got a divorce and then got
remarried.

MR. VANNAH: Which 1s strange, but whatever.
BY MR. VANNAH:

0. Not that people get a divorce and get
remarried. It's just the way it happened. You know,
they signed the papers before they got fully married,
whatever that means. I den't know. I don't do
divorces.

A I don't know.

Q. But certainly, I have heard you use the
word —-- anpd I know you are very straight with me —-- you

have used the words that you have had some suspicions

Page 84
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there's more going on in the marriage than mests the g

eye; right? Actually, every marriage -- [ look at
marriages all the time and say, Qh, this is the
greatest couple I've ever met, And, T mean, a month
later, they are divorced and the woman tells me, He was
the biggest pig I've ever met. I've hated him for the
last ten years. And I was like, Wow. At dinner you
seemed so friendly and lovey-dovey. 50 as you sit here
today, 1 know you've got thoughts of maybe there was
something in his marriage, but you certainly are not
going Lo state to a reasonabls degree of psychological
certainty or probability that there's some sort

of -- that the marriage itself is causing psychological
issues; fair to say?

A, I think it would be falr ro say bthat there had
toe be some psychological issues with this guy within
his marriage previcusly bacause of the fact that his
wife was mentally ill, if the records about her are
true, that she cuts herself, that she haz been a
bipolar disorder and disassociated discorder, he
couldn't have possibly bgen married to a mentally ~- &
seriously mentally 11l person and not have stress. 8o
I can reasonably say that there was stress in their
relationship as a result of her mental illness. To

what extent? I don't know. But was —- was there

LITIGATION SERVICES & TECHNOLOGIES - (800) 330-1112
APP-1369
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stress that would have made the marriage harder?
Absolutaly.

. No, ne, LI mean, there's stress in any
marriage. But if vou have a wife and she's mentally
131 e

A. Mentally ill, yeah.

0. ~w 1t would make it worse,
A If she has been that —— if she has heen so bad

that she can't work, that she has psychotropic drugs,
that she has dissociative disgscrder, had zome terrible
trauma in her past, this has to have affected the
relationship.

0. Right. But you are not saying to a reasonable
degree of psychological certainty that that's caused
any major portion of this pain disorder, for example,
that he hasg?

B 7 think the psychological portion of the pain,
I think that it has some == something to do with the
pain disorder. In other words, his —-- the stress in
his life is causing him to believe that he's in more
pain than he necessarily needs to be in. The stress in
his marriage, the stress in his life as a whole has
something to do with that.

I mean, even the literature shows that 1 you

want -~ people who are chronically in pain, 1f you -- 1

{TFIGATION SERVICES & TECHNOLOGEES - (B00) 330~1112
APP-1370
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1 know Dr. Dunn said, Well, let's do another lavel -- he
2 will probably need another level of cervical surgery

3 and lumbar surgery because, you know, thare's

4 breakdown. The research shows that it's hardly ever

5 that a bigger part of someone's pain is emotional and

& paychological, eaven greater than anything absolutely

7 wrong with their spine. I mean -- I'm talking haok
g8 problems. Ho I think that this guy psychologically for
o reasons with his marriage, maybe reasons within his

10 past, or all sorts of things made his pain greater than

13 it neaded to be.

12 Q. In any event, it all pre-exlsted this

13 accident?

14 Al It pre-existed this accident,

15 0. All right. So everybody has stress in their
16 marriage; right? You agres with that?

17 A Yes.

15 . I just den't think T can think of any marriage
19 that isn't a life stressor.

20 A. Everybody's marriage has stress.

21 Q. Net because of anything thavt I do. But my
272 wife and kids cause me stress. Believe me, if they
23 weren't around all the time == my wife hag bheen gone
24 for a week, and my stress level has gone down, other
250 than eating -—- or foraging for Tood.

LITIGATION SERVICES & TECHNOLOGIES - (800) 330-1112
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A, That's bhad. ¥

Q. 50 what you are saying is that he had some
stresa in his marriage?

AL Yas,

0. And that's -«-

A, Beyond ordinary marital stress because of his
wife's mental illness. That adds to stress.,

0. Right. Well, we will see what the judge
says -

A, Okavy.

0. == byt T don't think the judge is going to let
all that crap in, but, vou know, I don’'t know.

A. T don't know.

Q. But 1 don't think he should. &and, you know,
we already had a retrial once, and I don't want to do
this again.

S0 the bottom line is that it's your opinion
that because of certainly problems that Ms. Alvarsz had
in the past that this marriage was maybhe even more
stressful than the ordinary marviage would De —-

A, And may stili --

2. -— ox any ordinary marriage is7
A, -- have in the present. She may still have in

the present if she 1s mentally 1ll and all of those

Creatments —--— if these are still in existence.

LITIGATION SERVICES & TECHNOLOGIES - (800) 330-1112
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Q. Let me ask vou a question: You don't know one
way or another what she is going through right now;
right?

A Other than I saw her in the videotaps, and she
is certainly sad -~ I mean, she is a very attractive,
well spoken, intelligent, but she looked depressed and

angry, intense, and anxious. She didn't look happy.

Q. You could see that in the vidaostape?

A Yes.

. She Just looked like an anhappy psrson?

A. She leoked like an unhappy person.

G, And maybe she is.

A. Maybe it was just that day.

Q. How many times did you see her? Just that ons
Lime?

AL Yes.

Q. Well, I look happy today. But, you know, if
you saw me a couple of nights ago when [ was --

A It may have just been a had day for her,

Q. Fair to say --— let me Jjust put it this way:
You can't look at the videotape and say to the jury, I

saw a videcotape of her where she looked unhappy.

A {Witness nods.)
0. Therefore, in my opinion, she has got a

parsonality disorder; right? You are not going to say

Page 89 i
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that?
A, No, I'm not.
. I know you are not.

Would 1t be falr fto say that vou are not in a
pogition at this point in time to make any diagnoses of
ner as having any kind of persenality disorders at all?

A Of course nobt.

Q. And you have never looked at any testing done
on her; right?

A Correct.

o, And you have never interviewsad her to try to
nake that determination; fair?

A, Yas,

o, Did she come with her hushand when you

interviewed him?

AL No.
0, So you have never met her, actually?
A, NG .

Q. Okay. 1 didn't know that.
Ckay. Well, that's really -- well, I always
ask you this guestion: 1Is there anything that I
haven't covered today that you think, Hey, I e¥pected
vou to talk akout —-
Al No,

ME. VANNAH: That's fair. I don't have any

LITIGATION SERVICES & TECHNOLOGIES - (800) 330-1112
APP-1374




LEWIS M. ETCOFF, Ph.D, - 9/25/2010

10
11
12
13

14

16
17

18

further guestions,

EXAMINATION
BY MR. RANALLI:
. I Sust have a few follow-ups. I want o make

sure all your opinionsg are gut there =o there's no
issues. First I want to follow up with Bob's guestion
regarding Ms. Centeno's prior condition, You reviewed
the lasi several depositions that I sent Lo you of the
daughters as well?

A Vs,

0. I believe either bthe daughters or the mom
indicated that shs still has her psycho =~ I think she
still self-mutilates is what one of the witnesses just
recently testified to?

A Yes .,

@ What effect, if any, does that have Lo a
reaschable degree of psycheological probabllity based on
Vour expertise the fact that she doesn't work
singe —- T believe she had her incident back in '96.
She had a lumbar fusicn as well. The psycho -- how do
you pronounce that, the type of drugs that she's on?

A, Psychotropic,

Q. Psychotropic drugs.

MRE. VANNAH: Tropic.
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Page 92
MR. RANALLI: Tropic, sorry.

BY MRKR. RANALLT;

0. Aceording to her testimony, I believe the
husband told the children that she's depressed, her
bhack hurts, she's restricted, the fact that she
self-mutilates, she has posttraumatic, I believe,
strass disorder as well., How dees it, 1f at all,
dffect him in terms of his mood, depression, things
like that to a reasonable degree of your professional
opinion?

Fig It hag to make hin less happy and more anxXious
and sometimes more ilrritable and angry. It would be a
negative -~ together or even separately, there's a lot
of stress in his life.

Q. Does that also bleed iInto common gense? For
example, 1f I live with a partner and they'ze cutting
themself, they're self-mutilating, they're constantly
depressed, they don't work, they ¢an't do the functiocns
around the house, does that affect the pariner, the

nonaffected partner that doesn't have thaose sympboms?

AL Of course,
Q. So everything wouldn't be blamed on this

aceident?
ME . VANNAH: Well, walt a minute. That's =0

broad. What do you mean by everything when you are

LITIGATION SERVICES & TECHNOLOGIES - {800) 330-1112
APP-1376




LEWIS M. £TCOFF, Ph.D. - 8/25/2010

Page 93 i
1 saving that?

2 MR, RANALLI: Understood.,. That'szs fair.

3 BY MR. RANALLI:

4 Q. S0 in terms of this chronic depression,

5 obviously there was a big part given the prior

6 proceading.  But the chronic depressive state, the

7 other moocds that he has would not all be the szame -

8 ME. VANNAH: Let me -- let me —-- because I'm

] golng to try to help here because | understand what you
10 are saying with this. I don't think he zaid there's

1l chronic depression, actually. 1 don't think there's
12 such a diagnesis of chronic deprassion right now. I
13 think there was major depressive disorder.

14 BnY ME. RANALLI:
15 0. I may have mispronounced it, but the

16 depressive disorder is what I'm speaking about,

17 A, The major depressive —-- and the guestion again
18 Le7?

19 0. I know you attributed 80 to 90 mercent as a

20 result of a prior proceeding. What part does the

21 wife's medical conditicon play Into that discrder as

22 well?

23 ME. VANNAH: And let me help you. I'm not
24 going to argue that there was major depressive disorder
25 that he went through is related at ail to this

LITIGATION SERVICES & TECHNOLOGIES ~ (800) 330-1112
APP-1377
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accident.  I'm not making that claim,
MR. RANALLI: Okay.
BY ME., RANALLI:
Q. No. But since the time of the accident == I
mean, did you believe when yvou were discussing with
Mr, Vannah that prior to the accident that he would

have had these type of stressors in his life already --

A, Yes,
Q. —— which would have continued throughout after
the aceident? Is that what you are sayving as well?

AL Yes.

@ And that's to & reasonabie degrse of
psychological probability?

A, Yes.

And if he's still depressed some and it's no
longer a major depressive discrder, he —-- some of his
depression may likely -~ more likely than not be
related to his wife's mental illness, some would bhe his
physical condition, some would be his being in
litigation, some would be things I don't even know
aboul .

0. T understand. Pain is subjective from a
paychological standpoint as well?

MR. VANNAH: Pain is subjective from any

standpolint.
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THE WITHESS: Yes.

BY MR, RANALLI:
G- Just making sure. QOkay.

I want to explore a little nore regarding
FKaren Crawford, the functional capacity we located in
gomeone else's medical records and the difference
between the outcome of the FCE with Karen Crawford
verzus the outcome with Terrence Dineen and the alcohol
abuse and between that tTime,

A, ¥You know, that's —- there's so many records,

One of the things 1 -- 1 saw was in -- and I have a
little outline of what went —-- you know, what cams
first and Jjust sort of a chronology. And it was, I
think, November 15, 2006, Karen Crawford did a
functional capacity evaluatlion or examination ana
determined that Mr. Alvarez ceouldn't do heavy labor any
longer but could do a medium physical demand, whatever
that iz. I don't know what that isz. Four daye: later,
he was hospitalized at North Vizta Hospital having
admittedly consumed a cdozen bears the night before at a
boring match and having severe Gl distress for which he
neaded to be hospitalized.

I thought that was an interesting coincidenos
that he passed an sexamination suggesting -- indicating

that he could go back to work, and four days later, he
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got so drunk that he needed to be hospitalired. And

CLhat got my antanna up. I wondered if he got drunk —--
I said to myself, I wonder if he got drunk because he
did well on that examination and knew that they're
going to say he has to go back to work., Then I didn't
come to any conclusion, but then a day later after he
left the hespital, he saw ancther expert, Tezrence
Dineen, for examination and teold Mr. Dineen, after five
days ago being cleared, that he can't bend from the
walst or carry more than eight pounds for short

distances.

. Did it dust contradict what he did five days
aga?
A T guess it did. 5S¢ that was resally -- that -~

that sort of =still --
0. What's your opinion to a reasonable degree of
psychological probability regarding this finding?
ME., VANNAH: Which finding?
BY MR. RANALLI:
G The --
MR. VANNAH: The speculation that he weni out
and got drunk because he didn't like the FCE?
THE WITNESS: I can't prove that, but I think
Lhat it ig —-

ME. VANNAH: So you don't have an opinion to a

LITIGATION SERVICES & TECHNOLOGIES - (800} 330-1112
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1 reasonable psycholeogical degree that he went out and

2 got drunk because he didn't like the FCE?

3 THE WITHNESS: I can't prove that.
4 MR, VANNAHE: Because he drank anyway like

5 that?

& THE WITHNESS: Could be. Counld be.
7 MR. VANNAH: He drank when he saw the soccer
g game and hig team lost?

9 BY MR. RANALLT:

10 Q. Whar you do have is you have two competing FCE
11 GUAMS 7

12 A, I have two competing, only five days apart

13 with completely different findings.

14 Q. This happened ohviously after the incident of
15 why we're here today?

16 A Yes,

17 Q. And then he was able to manage his way to a
18 hoxing match as well; right?

15 A, Yas.,

20 Q. He wasn't working at all?

21 MK, VANNAH: He wasn't hoxing.

22 MR. RANALLI: T got you.

23 BY MR, RANALLIL:

24 Q. But, ysah. He can't work, but he managed to
25 get himself to watch boxing: right?
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ME . VANNAHM: Yeah. He was able to sit down

and watch a boxing match.
MR. RANALLI: All right. That scunds good.
BY MR, RANALLI:

o In terma of your opinion to a reasonakle
degree of psychological probability regarding aloohol
use after the accident, what's your opinion regarding
that alcchol abuse?

A, He used alcohol before the accident
excessively, he used it after the accident excessively,

O, How does that affigct his pain behaviors,
assuming his pain behaviors are true?

AL well, it's not good for his paln hehaviors.
It's exacerbating. If he's using alcchel and using
these pain medications together, I think it's dangerous
and it's against doctors crders, and it makes him more
impaired than he needs to be. It's hurting yoursell
when you drink that much and you're taking
psychotropics, narcotics, and diuretics,
antidepressants, muscle relaxants. It's not good for
you. 5S¢ he's harming himself by doing that.

o. Did you read Dr. Dunn's testimony regarding
his opinions to a probability regarding alcoohol,
consuming alcochel while taking narcotlo medications?

B I did.
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Would vou agree wilth those =-
Yes.

—-— from your psychological standpoint?
Yes.

Work is therapeutic from a psychological

standpoint?

Well,

A,

Yes.
ME., VANNAH: T disagree.

ME., RANALLI: I don't have anything else.

let me just -- walit a second. 1'm done.

FURTHER BEXAMINATION

BY MR. VANNAH:

G How much have you charged for all this stuff?

A. I don’t have my -- this week? I mean --

. Just glive me --

AL we o Uhe Billsg?

0. Well, I mean, that's a lot of crap to read.
And you are here ~= you met with George thisz morning?

AL Yes. For 20 minuvtes.

0. What time did yvou guys get together?

A. Around 8:30.

Q. Did vou fLalk To him about this little sheet
you had?  Because he was really —--

A, Oh, yeah.
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6. Did you tell him these are things that I can

bring up?
. I had menticned when I was doing my timeline
that I had seen this --
Q. But I noticed he didn't really get into that.
He just happened te ask you about the guestion you had
all written down, s I assume that you --
A. Well, it's just the timeline,
Q. You brought that to his attention and said I
thought this might be helpful?
A, Well, T Hjust said this is something that T
noticed in all of this.
0. But did you say to hkhim, This might be helpful.
You might want Lo bring this out? It might be helpfal
to yvour case. Truthfully.
A I may have. I don't know if I said it. He
may have said 1t.
ME. RANALLI: Well, I'm going to use it in
trial., T will tell vou right now.
THE WITNESS: 1 believe I may have recognized
it, but he --
ME. RANALLI: You mean comparing the FCOEs?
THE WITNESS:  Yeah,
MR. VANNAH: I deon't doubt vyou are going to do

a lotr of stuff in trial.
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BY MR. VANNAH:

Q. My peoint was if you said, Hey, I have got some
stuff here that might be helpful to you?

A, No., T don't talk that way., I mentioned that
by the way -- and he didn't think he would remember
this part, so I mentioned that he thought 1t was pretty
positive, and he didn't say, you know, talk about it.
He just was here and —-- and I could tell he liked it.

MR, RANALLI: 1 forgot akouit the boexing mahch
for the first trial, but ! am going to bring the gloves
this time,

THE WITNESS: Yeah. This 1s like a boxing
mateh.

BY MR. VANNAH:
0. We are back to money, I mean, s¢ what have

vou billed?

A, What have I billed?
Q. Yoo, What have you -- yeah., I just wanl =

A. The whole thing?

0. Yeah. The whole thing?

AL We have billed out, and not counting
preparation for things I have no ¢lug --

Q. Right.

A, We billed out November 12, 2008 was

$13,000 -- no. It was 513,742,055,
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0. That was what year?
A, That was 2008. That was the racords review,.

I spent 17.25 hours and Dr. Belmonbt, my asscociate in
organizing and going through and reviewing the records
and dictating that review, 28 hours. Then in --

May 27, 2010, the work for the actual IFE or
independent paychological evaluation was $7,037.30, of
which 1 spent 13.5 hours and Dr. Belmont .25 hours.
And a month later, more records came. June 25, 2010,
Lhere was a hill for 52,832.75, of which I spent 5.5
hours and Dr. Belmoat 3.25 hours. And that's 1t.

. Ang -~

A, No other Rills have bheen made,
Q. Obviously, I have paid you today two hours for

haow much?

AL For you?

0, Yeah, for me.

A, Tell the --

3. Yeah., For me it was double, but --

A . I think it's like $500.00 per hour. It's like
$1,000.

. That's -~
That's my understanding. I think that's it.

And I think --

Fooo P

You may have paid that already.
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G, No, I'm sure I did. Well, honestly, I know we
did.

A, I know. You are --

Q. For trial, what do you charge?

. I think for half day $1,750 and for full day
twice that,

Q. You are probably goling to spend some time
getting ready. You have got to go through this to get
ready. What do you think that's going to cost, Just a
rough estimate? Because you wani to be prepared and
thorough, because you know I'm going e be asking vou
questions,

A, I have no clue. I guess five to ten hours in
preparation. That's a guess.

0. What do you charge per hour when you are doing

that kingd of work?

AL Fres,
. What do you charge per hour?

A. Free,

. Three?
L. No, free.
0. Seriously?

A, Nc. 1 charge $35CG.00.
(N Zo it looks like, I mean, a reaschnable

estimate you would have charged 13 plus 7 -- 14 plus 7,

Page 103
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JiW Makes sense.

0. Have you worked with George before or is this
your first time?

A. Mo, I khink we have done a couple of cases
before. DNot a zillien, I -- 1 don't -- he would know
better than I do. I don't even Lry Lo remember.

o. Thirty bazillion?

A, I don't know. A couple. I Xnow it's not that
much.
Q. What percentage of your time in the last few

yvears have you been doing defense medical/legal -- 1
call it medical/legal, but pavehological/legal versus
pilaintiff?
A. Tt's all B8G/20, defense versus plaintiif, in
that area.
MR, VANNAH: Okay. That's all the questions I
have .
MR, RARNALLI: That's all I have.
ME, VAﬂNAH: Thanks.
THE WITNESE: Thank you.
(Thereupon, the deposition concluded at

11:18 a.m.)
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PAGE LINE CHANGE REAZON

I, LEWIS M. ETCCFE, Ph.D., deponent herein, do hereby
certiiy and declare under the penalty of periury the
within and foregoilng transcription to be my deposition
in said action; that I have read, corrected and do

herehy affix my signature to saild deposition,

LEWIZ M. ETCOFF, Ph.D., Deponent
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CERTIFICATE OF REPORTER :

STATE OF NEVADA )
COUNTY OF CLARK )

I, Michelle R. Ferreyra-Marez, a Certified Court
Reporter licensed by the State of Nevada, do herebhy
certify: That I reported the deposition of LEWIS M.
ETCOFF, Ph.D., commencing on Saturday, September 25,
2010, at 9:02 a.m.

That pricor To being deposed, the witness was
duly sworn by me to testify to the truth. That 1
thereafter transcribed my said stenographic notes into
written form, and that the typewritten transcript is a
complete, true and accurate transcription of my said
stenographic notes, and that a reguest has been made to
review the tran&cript;

I further certify that I am not & relative,
employves or independent contractor of counsel or of any
of the parties inveolved in the proceeding, nor a parson
Tinancially interested in the proceeding, nor do I have
any other relationship that may reasonakly cause my
impartiality to be guestioned,

IN WITHNESS WHERECE, I have set my hand in my
office in the County of Clark, State of Nevada, this

27th day of September, 2010,

MICHELLE R. FERREYRA-MAREZ, CCR No. 876
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Las Vegas, Nevada - Friday, April 3, 2015, 10:30 a.m.
T
DISCOVERY COMMISSIONER: Wilson.

MR. GANZ: Good morning, Your Honor, Adam Ganz, on behalf of the Plainiff,

Mitch Wilson.

DISCOVERY COMMISSIONER: Good morning,

MR, GANZ: And my associate, Jason Lather,

DISCOVERY COMMISSIONER: Good morning.

MR. LATHER: Good morning. Do you need Bar numbers, or do you --

THE CLERK: You're m the computer.

DISCOVERY COMMISSIONER: You're in the computer, so you'te fine.
MS. UPSON: Good morning. Stacey Upson, on behalf of the Yanceys and the

Goliath enterprise.

DISCOVERY COMMISSIONER: Good morning.

MR. MAUPIN: Bill Maupin, Bar number 1315,

DISCOVERY COMMISSIONER: And you are here for?

MR. MAUPIN: For the Defendants.

DISCOVERY COMMISSIONER: Thank you. All right. Everyone may have a seat,

I"'m going to give both sides time to argue, but [ felt that it was just important for me to make
a couple of preliminary observations and hopefuily try to reinforce what I think my role is as

Discovery Commissioner.

First of all, I do not have the authority nor will [ prevent Dr. Duke from

performing Rule 35 exams in the Eighth Judicial District Court; that is not within my
purview. I can't make that type of a decision, Ihave to look at each case individually, and

there have been cases where I have disqualified him from performing the Rule 35 exams for
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very specific reasons, and there was a case recently [ believe either Wednesday or last
week -- it all sometimes runs together -- where T allowed him to perform that Rule 35 exam,
So 1am looking at these issues on a case-by-case basis, and if there are rumors or - out in
the community that I"ve disqualified this gentleman, that is just not correct. 8o make sure
that you properly indicate what I have done.

Number two, a Rule 35 exam is not a matter of right, nor are Defendants
automatically entitled to one. It is within the Court’s discretion, and there are some very
persuasive language in a case called Storlie, $-T-O-R-L-I-E, versus State Farm, it's 2010
Westlaw 549.0777, 1t is not reported in F2d, but of course we can cite to those decisions as
persuasive authority even though they're not reported, but I can't cite to unreported Supreme
Court decisions and neither can you all. So that’s just a linle bit of a tip for you, and [ would
highly recommend you read that case.

Nurnber three, a Rule 35 examiner must be free from bias, and this is from the
American Medical Association which was actually cited in one of the other cases called
Hudson, and the case number for that, if you choose to look it up, is AG76211, But what the
American Medical Association says is the examiner is independent and must arrive at his or
her diagnoses and opinions independently of the referring source, renumeration, others’
opinions, or personal bias, The examiner is a medical professional who is not involved in the
patient’s care, and by not being involved in the patient’s care, that means not advocating one
way or the other,

Number four, the Court does have the authority to exclude evidence. Now, |
can just make a recommendation. The District Court Judge has to tum it into an order by
signing the Report and Recommendation. But that includes preventing a Rule 35 examiner
from conducting a Rule 35 exam based on bias. And Magistrate Judge Foley persuasively

explained in the Pham versus Walmart Stores case, 2012 Westlaw 195.7987; this (00 is not
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reported; and Pham, by the way, is P-H-A-M versus Walmart Stores. And he says in that
opinion: A physician who engages in a pattern or practice of providing improper,
inflammatory opinions may justify an order barring him from performing a medical exam
pursuani -- or medical examination pursuant to Rule 35. the Court, however, will not
disqualify -- in this case it was Dr, Cash -- based on a single report in an unrelated case.

So if T was just looking at one other report by Dr, Duke in an unrelated case,
that 1s not sufficient under at least Judge Foley’s analysis, and T"m not sure just one report is
the standard anyway, but you have to take a look at what is being said and analyze it as it’s
intended. So clearly one report i$ not sufficient.

Before proceeding any further, I do want to make suve that I am correct on a
couple of facts. Number one, Dr. Duke did not perform a records review on Mr. Wilson in
this case, is that correct?

MS. UPSON: Correct.

DISCOVERY COMMISSIONER: Okay. Number two, defense counsel, you have
worked with Dr. Duke and he hag performed Rule 35 exams for your firm on multiple
occasions.

MS. UPSON: Correct.

DISCOVERY COMMISSIONER: Mr, Ganz, your firm has deposed Dr. Duke on
multiple occasions involving Plaintiffs where he has performed a Rule 35 exam on your
¢lients.

MR. GANZ: Correct, Your Honor.

DISCOVERY COMMISSIONER: And I don’t want to pul words in anyone’s mouth,
but having reviewed sore of those transcripts, is it fair to say that there are some -- a little
bit of animosity between the Plaintiffs firm and Dr. Duke?

MR. GANZ: It hasn’t been brought out in court docwments, Your Honor, but I can
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tell you that Dr. Duke, and me, and the firms that {'ve been involved in, have at least a ten-
to fifteen-year history of some problems that occurred between former pariners of his,
between former partners of mine, between issues that were going on with Federal
investigations. There’s a whole lot of stuff that was going on back in the day, and [ think
some of that has spilled over into this stuff. I didn’t bring any of that stuff out only becouse [
was dealing with specifically the cases that I had presented to you last time were all, if I'm
not mistaken, all my cases that I had taken his deposition on.

DISCOVERY COMMISSIONER: But Dr, Duke knows who you are,

MR. GANZ: Oh, [ presume so, Yeah, I've - oh, veah, absolutely, he knows who ]
am, I mean, and --

DISCOVERY COMMISSIONER: And he knows you can depose him and take a
deposition, at least in one exchange | saw. And ] don’t think -- and let me just state this, 1t's
very difficudt when you're reading a document to know what dynamics are goingon, 1
didn’t see -- T mean, Dr. Duke didn’t say anything improper. Idon’t think Plaintiff’s counsel
said anything improper. Bot it was definitely a cross-examination,

MSE. UPSON: And 1 would just put for the Cowrt’s record in relation to that is when
we had the conference call a couple weeks ago on this issue, and you said you thought there
were issues with counsel, and | said | wasn™t aware, and vou said | should talk to Dr. Duke, |
did, and Dr. Duke said he has had depositions with him. There's nothing personal in his
mind regarding the depositions. He knows Plaintiffs’ counsel go after him. [t’s no different
than them or any of the others, and he has no personal animosity one way or the other to any
of the Plaintiffs’ attorneys in town.

DISCOVERY COMMISSIONER: Thank you. Allright, So | need to know what the
current condition is of the Plaintiff now --

MR. GANZ: Sure.
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DISCOVERY COMMISSIONER: -- ‘cause we’ve spent a couple of months --
MR. GANZ; And1 think that's a absolutely great point to start at, Your Honor.

First of all, I need to apologize because ['ve heard that you've had other
hearings, some references, that somehow that I proliferated this particular prior ruling in
another one of my cases, and 1 wanted you to understand that I had nothing to do with it

My original intent was for my cases and my clients, and that’s why [ provided
information from my cases to you in order to make those decistons. T didn’t go out and get
hundreds of reports and try to say that he’s a bad guy in the community. I try to really focus
it on my clients and my cases, sa I really want you to understand that that is -

DISCOVERY COMMISSIONER: For the record, the Court’s not saying he's a bad
guy either. That's not the issue, just as it’s not personal animosity from Dr. Duke to the
Plaintiffs. It’s not personal animosity by the Court to Dr, Duke. The issue is whether or not
he should be performing the Rule 35 exam in this case.

MR. GANZ; And --

DISCOVERY COMMISSIONER: Just so we're clear.

MR. GANZ: And here’s thg -

DISCOVERY COMMISSIONER: Go ahead,

MR. GANZ,; -- the facts on that, Judge. They asked 1o use Dr, Duke, We said no.
They filed a motion. We did an opposition. We outlined the stuff, and then we get this reply
brief that wasn't heard before the last hearing. And in the reply brief it talks about, well, the
client, Mr. Wilson, has not been truthful with this person, has not been {ruthful with this
person, and 1t's not uncommon that people, you know, doctors can come to those
conclusions based upon inconsistent testimony, and so on and so forth, And in her brief she
actually said that the cansation is ultimately gonna be the issue in this case as it is in many

cases with IME doctors, and so on and so forth. What that doesn’t do, Your Honor, is it
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doesn’t put my client’s physical condition in controversy, and that’s what the point of the
Rule 35 exam should be.

Just saying causation doesn’t necessarily -- my client’s had two major
surgeries, neck and low back, already, already had the surgeries, so --

DISCOVERY COMMISSIONER: How is your client doing today?

MR. GANZ: He’s doing relatively well, but T do believe, in all candor to the Court,
that future damages will be at issue and in controversy. 1"m not trying to say that I don't
believe that will be. So a limited examination with regard to that by somebody who's
unbiased I would have absolutely no qualms with, and that’s what I"ve tried to convey to Ms.
Upson on a couple different occasions.

The problem is, Your Honor, is | don’t believe that his condition with regards
to all the stuff that she wanied 1o talk about in that reply brief, causation, and whether or not
he told this doctor this, and whether or not he told that doctor that, that stuff’s not his
physicai condition at issue and should not be the subject of a Rule 35 examination.

DISCOVERY COMMISSIONER: [ agree with you.

MR. GANZ: They could do a records review on that, She’s already pretty much
written tt for him in this -- | don’t mean it that way.

DISCOVERY COMMISSIONER: Oh, he writes quite well by himself.

MR. GANZ: My point is the issues have already been well outlined. Those issues are
already decided. There’s no reason why he needs to put my client in a room by himself and
go through a physical examination on those issues and redepose him himself and come up
with his own bases for saying that he’s inconsistent and add additional evidence to what
she’s already got for no reason when his physical condition is not at issug, That’s the first
issue,

The second part of that is exactly what you talked about in the Pham case, 1t
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must be somebody who is unbiased. He's already, in my opinion, biased towards my
Plaintiffs in my cases. It’s pretty obvious. Ihaven't had a single issue, and I’ve showed you
just on five, and I didn’t go back more than even three or four years. I could show you that
his opinions are if they file a lawsuit they have secondary gain issues. Well, how do you
explain the pain that they had on that particular day? Well, they have a lawsuil and,
therefore, 1 believe they’re just exaggerating those complaints over that period of time.

There is nothing specific about any of my people other than the fact that they
filed a lawsuit, and that’s what I tried to bring out to Your Honor, and I don’t believe that’s
the appropriate person to put hands on my client,

DISCOVERY COMMISSIONER: Thank you. All right. Do -« would you prefer to
hear what 1 found in my limited review, or would you prefer, Ms. Upson, Mr. Maupin, to
make some statements for the record? 'm happy to do it either way.,

MR. GANZ: Are they both going to be able to argue, Your Honor? They represent
one individual here.

DISCOVERY COMMISSIONER: Well, do you want your associate to argue too?
"l listen to what he has to say as well. T mean, listen, here --

MR. GANZ: Tunderstand.

DISCOVERY COMMISSIONER: Here’s --

MR. GANZ: It’s a big issue and { understand.

DISCOVERY COMMISSIONER: This is a huge issue, and we’ve gof -- and as |
understand it, Mr. Maupin is actually here for Dr. Duke on some level, but be has associated
in with the Defendants.

MR. MAUPIN: 1am -- just to clarify that, I am here to represent the Defendants in
this case.

DISCOVERY COMMISSIONER: Okay.
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MR. MAUPIN: 1 also separately represent Dr. Duke, and 1 was retained by him to
deal with the, primarily, the improper and egregious use of your order in the Thorne case for
impeachment in front of a District Court Judge who he persvaded to allow that impeachment
with no briefing.

DISCOVERY COMMISSIONER: Well, I really don’t know what to say to that other
than I think my orders have been very clear that they’ve been case specific. That’s all I can
say.

MR. MAUPIN: And I agree with that.

DISCOVERY COMMISSIONER: And that’s what is important, and [ just said |
allowed Dr. Duke to perform a Rule 35 exam within the last week, and I wouldn’t strike him.
So the issue 15 this case. That’s what it 15, And, you know, because of that I was almost
hesitant to review -- I have three boxes of these materials, and they weren’t provided to me
jn any meaningful way. The reports weren’t stapled together. They weren’t divided by year.
They didn’t point out the reports that found injury and those that didn’t. They were just
thrown in the boxes. And so 1 picked one box to review and did not review -- and I declined
to review anymore.

MsS. UPSON: Can I just make one brief comment?

DISCOVERY COMMISSIONER: Yes.

MS. UPSON: He put those in boxes. They were separated by no injury, soft tissue
injury, and more significant injury and our cover letter when they came over - obviously, 1
didn’t have the box to open them -- but the cover leiter said which box was which.

DISCOVERY COMMISSIONER: No, it didn’t, and maybe -~ | don’t know.

MS, UPSON: We had a cover letter that came with this because he told -

DISCOVERY COMMISSIONER: AHright, Well, then that is -- then | will take

responsibility for that, but [ just got the three boxes in my office, that’s what | got, with your
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cover letter saying these are the three boxes.

And, you know, I find that interesting because I went through what I would
call box one and 1 found no injury and injuries in hox ong, So I'm not sure how they were
divided. Ifound all different years, Ms. Upson. | found 2011, 2012, 2014, all just put
together,

I am going to decline to go through the other boxes. Iam telling you though
that in box one that | reviewed. 1 did, in fact, find ten cases where he recommended some
form of surgery, and then in the -- there were a certain number of cases where he did not.
Buot you know what? The injury-noninjury really isn'l the dispositive issue here, so 'm glad
you told me that. I will certainly go back and look at your cover letter, But that’s really not
the issue here.

The issue is whether or not there’s bias or prejudice, and these are -- and 1 will
tell you this is what I looked at. I looked at whether or not in that report, somewhere in that
report, there was an indication of secondary gain. That's one thing [ looked for. And then
the next thing I looked for is whether or not there was some suggestion that the Plaintiff had
some psychotogical issue or psychiatric underiay that is an explanation for the injuries, and
the reason I looked at those two things in particular and, again, is because that’s what |
would consider to be inflammatory under the Federal Court case, and this is why --
because what -- and to Dr. Duke’s credit, many times, noi every time, but many times he
says it could be conscious or subconscious, but that’s not really - it’s not about the person
being examined. It’s about his point of view. It's what he’s looking for because we're
trying to figure out what his objectivity is.

Now, and also in fairmess to Dr. Duke -- and I gave this lecture the other day
when [ had to clarify my Report and Recommendation in the other case again, although it’s

clearly in my recommendation what T said -- T see the same Plaintiffs’ doctors over and over
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and over again, So it is no wonder that on the Rule 35 exams you sce the same defense
examiners over and over and over again. You know, when I get a time, maybe 'l rewrite
Rule 35. I think it is being used as a Htigation tool and it is not being used for the purpose it
is supposed to be, which is really trying to figure out if something’s wrong with the Plaintiff
and what’s related and what is unrelated, and right now it's just - it’s a tool, It’s no more
than a -- it"s litigation bullying is what it is, with all due respect to my defense friends out
there. That’s what it is. It’s using a rule to bully in litigation and, frankly, [ don’t think Dr.
Duke deserves to be used that way or any other physician, and I think 1t’s the Bar's
responsibility to get hold of this Rule and figure out how it should be used because, frankly,
it’s very distressing to me.

S0 | reviewed box one, and I'm not sure, Ms. Upson, whether — 1 can tell you I
did find ten cases that had injury, multiple cases had no causation, some cases had minimal
injury, so I'm not sure they were actually divided that way, ['m not disputing what you said.
I"'m just saying in this box one I found a little bit of both,

5o all I'm really concerned about today are the two issues | talked about,
whether or not there was secondary gain and whether or not there was some psychological
underlay that ¢cansed the probiem because to me those are the two inflammatory issues.
Peaple can have psychiatric or psychological problems ten years ago, but that shouldn’t
preciude them from recovering ten years later in an auto accident if they’re genuinely hust.
But if that's the. you know, if that's the underlying analysis, then that could be a problem. If
in cases it's always secondary gain, or that’s the veason for the causation, that could be a
problem because when juries hear that objectively, oh, they jusi want money, okay, that's
inflammatory, or they’re just nuts, or they’re acting strange so they can't, you know, really be
having all these injuries. That’s also inflammatory.

I reviewed 87 -- or, I"m sorry, | apologize. Treviewed 86 cases in box one.

11
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There were more in there, but many of them were duplicative. They had the -- 1 think I had
three reports from the same patient that were exactly alike, and there were a couple reports |
wasn’t sure were complete, so 1 didn’t want to take a look at those. So the number that 1
reviewed in this box was 86.

Then what 1 did was [ came up with four categories -- secondary gain; second,
minimal treatment; third, no causation; and four, psychological undertay or psychiatric
underlay or -- and T also included drug abuse in there because that seemed to go hand-in-
hand with the psychological problems, and it may well, in fact, be part of the same problem.

MR. GANZ: What was calegory mumber three, Your Honor? 1 missed it.
DISCOVERY COMMISSIONER: Causation,

MR. GANZ: Causation. Thank you.

DISCOVERY COMMISSIONER: Lack of causation.

The way these reports are written, they're all the same format, which actually
was very helpful to me because then [ could just go to the discussion section, and [ would
expect him to follow the same format. That’s reasonable, and it makes it casier to follow
what he’s doing, so | just went to the discussion section.

Of the 86 cases | reviewed, 52 of them had either comrments on secondary gain,
psychological problem with the Plaintiff or both, 1 was wondering it over the years it
changed, so I looked at these per year, you know, as the more he did, the more he developed
this belief that there was secondary gain or psychological overlay, but that’s not what |
found,

Tn 2011, for the cases, I reviewed 22 cases total in 2011, and of that 8 cases had
some secondary gain, and © cases had some underlying psychiatric issue.

And then in 2012 there was only one case that had the secondary gain, and then

there were a few cases that had the underlying issue.
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In 2013 there were 26 cases, 14 cases had either secondary gain or psychiatric
issues mentioned.

And, finally, in 2014, there were 23 cases, 12 of which had secondary gain or
psychiatric issues mentioned as the reason why the Plaintitf was not healing or had the
problems the Plamntiff had.

Well, that’s more than one case, and the substantial majority of the ¢ases that 1
reviewed mentioned that, and the issue really becomes is that, in and of itself, inflammatory
to disqualify Dr. Duke. Even if [ say no, in and of itself, it tsn't, I still have to go back to this
case and look at the context, and this is my concern, and actually, believe it or not, my
concern is for the defense -- I know you find that shocking, but it’s true, and for Dr. Duke --
because here’s what 1 don’t want to have happen after all these discussions we’ve had, after
all the cross-examination that the Plaintiff has done, afier Dr, Duke, preparing all these
materials and feeling probably not really happy about it, and the discussions that have been
ongoing, and the one case that got taken out of context and used in another case, and I -

what I don’t want 1o have happen is T don’t want him to be skittish -- [ don’t like that word. |

just can't think of a better word at the moment -- for doing the Rule 35 exam, He needs to be

able to do the Rule 35 exam how he sees fit, and he’s not going to be able (o do it here
because he knows what he’s up against. And then we devalued his role as the Rule 35
examiner, and in this case, and specifically with this firm and this lawyer they’ve been going
at it with Dr. Duke.

So how is that fair to the Defendant, who you represent, Ms. Upson, or to the
Plaintiff, who has to be examined? [n this case, [ don’t think it’s fair. I have no problem
giving you your Rule 35 exam, but it’s not going to be with Dr. Duke in this case for those
reasons. And you are welcome to object to my Report and Recommendation, absolutely

weltcome Lo,
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And I want to make it clear that that does not mean I am striking Dr. Duke in
every case. Another case that I allowed him to go forward in, neither the Plaintiffs or the
Defendants really had any exposure to him, and everybody was fine with it. We put some
parameters in place. Fine. And understand that in terms of the impeachment of ali the
evidence that’s out there, you know, he’s a retained expert technically, so he’ll have to deal
with that on his own, and I’m sure he will. I’ve heard he’s very persuasive in trial, and he
obviously has worked very hard over the years in doing these examinations,

S0 1looked at the totality of the circumstances -- love that phrase -- and 1
looked at it from what I found in the box of materials, and I, you know, I just took one box at
random, and [ looked at the briefing again, 1looked at the cross-examination in the
depositions. 1 looked at this firm and the fact that this firm has a longstanding history, and 1
tooked at your firm, Ms. Upson. You used him quite a bit.

So I think on balance in this case only 'm going to disqualify him, not -- let’s
say not disqualify, 1"m poing to require you to use someone else, not Dr. Duke. But you can
have your Rule 35 exam, and you have plenty of time because your initial disclosure is not
‘til September, so go find a practitioner if you want your Rute 35 exam.

Now, let me make this clear because you're going to need to add this,
Plaintiff”s counsel, to the Report and Recommendation. Dr. Duke can testify as an expert in
this case.

MR. GANZ: We understand.

DISCOVERY COMMISSIONER: He can testify as a retained expert. 'm not -- that
is not within my purview to strike him, and I'm not going to. He is certainly capable of
doing that, and, you know what, sadly, he may or may not be right on his, you know, review
of the records. 1 don’t know. Seems like you're very confident in your Plainti{f’s injuries,

and he certainly was injured.
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So having said all that, he can testify. He just cannot perform the Rute 35
exam. And the last time I checked, experts can look at materials that are even hearsay, so he
could certainly look at the Rule 35 report and make comment on it, and whether or not that
that’s cumulative evidence is for the Judge to decide, not for me.

Anything further?

MS. UPSON: Ihave a few comments, but vou can go first.

MR, MAUPIN: Tam here strictly to address a finding that was made in the Thorng
case that got --

DISCOVERY COMMISSIONER: Yeah. Idon't think I can do that unless I have
counsel present --

MR, MAUPIN: Oh, I'm not asking --

DISCOVERY COMMISSIONER: -- in all that case.

MR. MAUPIN: I"m not representing anybody in the firm. ['m talking about how it
got used in another case, and --

PISCOVERY COMMISSIONER: Okay,

MR. MAUPIN: -- I"m not asking you to rule in the other case.

MR. GANZ: You're asking -- she’s -- counsel for that case is not here. Idon’t think
he is, number one, Number two, he doesn’t have any standing in the Thorne case,

DISCOVERY COMMISSIONER: Yeah.

MR. MAUPIN: I'm not arguing the Thorne case. I'm arguing the effect of' this
because the Court, this Court, this morning brought up the problem of using this, these -- a
bias finding. You didn’t make that finding this moming, and, as I understand it -- and I'd
like {0, in some clarification, might ease all of the controversy over this. As T understand it,
the order today is that the motion to have Dr. Duke perform the independent medical

cxamination is denied. We belicve that that is the appropriate method by which you should
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deal with a motion like this, on a case-by-case basis.

The problem is -- and I understand that you have made no findings of bias
because that would end up in a -- if he was actually used as a witness in a case, that would be
a subject of cross-examination at the trial as { understand the explanation of the ruling this
morning. So the problem has been that this ~- the ruling in this other case that he's biased
against all Plaintiffs I think has been undermined by the examination this morming, and the
transcript of the hearing indicates, of the hearing in front of Judge Bare, over the probative
value of the finding in the Thorne case of bias, is pretty egregious,

DISCOVERY COMMISSIONER: Well, again --

MR. MAUPIN: And --

DISCOVERY COMMISSIONER: -- Mr. Maupin, it’s not that I -- I don™t mean to cut
you off, but I just don’t feel comfortable talking about that case because [ don’t have the
attorneys here that are present. And I understand the concern about the ruling as it relates 1o
this case, and, again, I looked at the totality of the circumstances here. But I am going to --
you know, a part of what T did look at was the two inflammatory statements, and, you know,
and those two T talked about, and they came out in a majority of the one box that I reviewed,
and that gave me cause for concern, and it is a bias issue, and I'm not specificatly finding in
this case that he ig bias, but I looked at that, and those are, in my humble opinion in
reviewing the case law and looking at his documents, I think that is clearly a problem. |
think it is bias and inflammatory,

But [ don’t want to go there anymore because | am concerned about this Report
and Recommendations being misused, and I don’t want it misused, {t’s for this case, and I'm|
looking at the totality of the circumstances, but I don’t want anyone to think that somehow [
don’t think he's -- I think everything he’s doing ts okay. Idon’t think that. 1am very

concerngd that in 50 -- the majority, the substantial majority of the reports, I have these, what
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I consider to be, inflammatory, And we don’t have to explore it further because it is not
alone -- you know, by itself it’s not the basis for my ruling, and I don’t know how nuch
more clear to say that,

I don’t want to be taken -- T can't -- [*m not in a position to understand or
defend what happened before that District Court Judge, and I'm nol going to do that today
because that would be improper, But I understand the concern, so I'm trying to make it
really clear, and [ do expect to see in the Report and Recommendation section that this ruling
is only for this case.

MR, GANZ,: Bui it will include the terms bias, and it will include these issues on
those specific cases that you found that raised concern.

DISCOVERY COMMISSIONER: Because that’s what [ looked at.

MR. GANZ: Exactly.

DISCOVERY COMMISSIONER: That's what I looked at, and I think there is a
preblem here.

MR. MAUPIN: Well --

DISCOVERY COMMISSIONER: But [ don’t have to reach the ultimate conclusion
loday.

MR, MAUPIN; Well, I'm not here to -- my role here is not to litigate the merits of
the disqualification in this case, The -- what I am requesting is a statement from the Court
that the review of these records is not to be understood that Dr. Duke has a bias or prejudice
involving all personal injury Plaintiffs.

DISCOVERY COMMISSIONER: 1 appreciate what you're saying, but I'm not going
to do it, and the reason I'm not going to do it is because it’s not -- was not specifically what I
addressed today, and I just don’t think it’s proper. If somebody -- but, you know, part of the

problem in that other case, Mr, Maupin, is no one objected to the Report and
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Recommendations.

MR. MAUPIN: That is -- then that’s a very good point. The reason that there was no
objection was that the -- after the ruling, your ruling in the discovery dispute, the lawyers and
the principal, as they call themselves -- 1 think it’s the insurer -- decided simply not (o use
Dr. Duke, hire someone else, and then not challenge the report. No one told -- no one told
Dr. Duke anything about this, that his bias was being litigated, until --

DISCOVERY COMMISSIONER: ['m sorry [ opened -~

MR. MAUPIN: -- after the order --

DISCOVERY COMMISSIONER: -- the door.

MR. MAUPIN: -- was -- no, no -- until after the order approving the DCRR was
entered. He has never been asked to contribnite to any of this business, and this -- and in that
case this has - this i3 neither the Court nor Your Honor was given the opportunity to even
hear from him, not becavse of this lawyer here, but because the lawyer that hired him.

DISCOVERY COMMISSIONER: Well, here’s my belief, 1f that’s going to be
fitigated in a evidentiary hearing type format, a District Court Judge has to do that. I'm
not -- it’s not me. Al I'm looking at - and, again, obviously I am saying he can testify as
the retained expert, so I’'m not making a ruling on his ability to do that. ["m just looking at,
in this case, whether or not he's the proper person, the proper doctor, independent of his
qualifications -- we’re not talking about that -- independent of his qualifications to perform
the Rule 35 exam, and the test is his independence and his bias, and I am concerned that in
the majority of the reports | looked at that there were secondary gain issues, psychological
underlay that explained all the patient’s complaints, and it just was more than one report,
And if you have that perception going in because you've prepared so many of the Rule 35
exams and so often you find that, then, yes, I think that rises to the level of potential. I'll say

that -- potential bias, But [ don’t even have to go there completely.
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You know, this is not the basts for my decision completely. I'm looking at the
totality of the circumstances. But [ don’t want anyone to walk away thinking I don’t think
there's a problem here because there is. There is a problem, and it falls into the category of
inflammatory staternents which the rules say goes to bias. So the bias word is appropriate,
but the issue isn't whether he’s bias. It just relates to this case. So T guess from that
perspective don’t put in that he’s biased against all personal injury Plaintiffs because 1'm not
finding that today.

MR. GANZ: Okay.

DISCOVERY COMMISSIONER: Okay, Yes, ma’am,

MS. UPSON: Thank you. [ understand the Court’s ruling, and [ just want to make a
couple of comments on the record, obviously, because the Report and Recommendation’s
coming out, First I want to address the comment about litigation bullying and the defense
bar, and is that what is occwrring, and is there --

DISCOVERY COMMISSIONER: Well, let me say this clearly. 1t’s on both sides,
because | see the same treating doctors on both sides, but we're using the Rule 35 exam {
think improperty.

MS. UPSON: But in relation to that, when you look at who’s involved in litigation in
the community, you do see the same Plaintiff treaters over, and over, and over, and over. In
those cases there’s not always objective medical evidence regarding an injury, and if there’s
not objective medical evidence regarding an injury, there has 10 be some type of cause or
analysis of why they may be continuing to complain of subjective complaints.

So the fact that Dr, Duke has put in reports notations regarding secondary gain
and psychological issues, that, in and of itself -- and we respectfully disagree with the
Court’s comument -- doesn't create an inflammatory basis or a bias, and 1 just want to put on

the record why. In every single case that we deal with involving Plaintiffs with the same
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doctors you see over and over — you could say Dr. Cass, Grover, all of those guys -- they, in
every single case, address secondary gain issues through their treatment. They do that in the
form of Waddell findings. They don’t really use the term Waddell findings anymore. They
say secondary gain. They look for things that are inconsistent within the records.

DISCOVERY COMMISSIONER: Well, then when 1 see them before me, I'l] take
that into account.

MS. UPSON: But that's what has to be looked at hiere, 15 if there’s a bias or
inflammatory statcments made by Dr, Duke,

DISCOVERY COMMISSIONER: And [ believe that there is, so let me make that
very clear, you know, and I don’t want to -- I appreciate everybody’s position here. But
based on what I reviewed -- and that includes the cases that the Plamtiffs counsel submitted
o me that they’ve been involved in --there are two inflammatory and I'm gomng to say
potentially biased problems, and that is the secondary gain issue and the psychological
underlay or psychiatric underlay that the patient presents with, And, yes, | do believe those
are inflamnmatory, and I think I found that today,

MS, UPSON: But for the record, in relation to what’s inflammatory, what he’s doing
is a forensic review and he's giving forensic opinions based upon his review. His review and
analysis of those particular issues are no different than the analysis of any other doctor in this
community. So to say he is somehow bias because 1t's in some of the reports, if he held a
true bias, you would see it in every single report; it’s not there, 5o that -

DISCOVERY COMMISSIONER: Well, because it’s not always appropriate. He has
found cases where there’s been injury, but he has, in a substantial majority of the cases,
referred to secondary gain and psychiatric issues in a substantial majority. We're not talking
about one or two cases. We're talking in one box, 37, That is substantial, and part ot it is

because he's done so many of these exams, which brings me back to my concern in this case.
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I don’t think it’s fair for -- to ask him to be the Role 35 examiner in this case
because if it’s true, that the Plaintiff is malingering or whatever your defense is on this
case -- I don’t know what your cauvsation defense is or if he has other issues -- Dr, Duke, to
put bir in a position of having to decide that with the background would not be fair to him.
Do you understand what I'm saying? Because then he would -- would he go, oh, I can't say
that. Tve got to step back. Just kind of like 1 feel right now talking about a ruling in another
case. Do I need to back down from what I'm doing today because somebody is upset that it
was taken out of context? Is he going to have to back down from performing a proper Rule
35 exam because, oh, my gosh, maybe I’ll be challenged on my objectivity even though |
really believe this person is completely making all this stuff up? That’s the problem. And
the reason it's a problem in this case is that there’s history between your firms and Dr. Duke,
and I just think at the end of the day it’s not fair to ask the Plaintiff, who chose his lawyer,
and was unaware probably of all these other Rule 35 exams, was unaware of them, to ask
him to submit now to a Rule 35 exam by an examiner who there is clearly history with this
Plawmiffs® firm. That’s what concerns me.

MS. UPSON: But then what's gonna happen every single time there’s a case with
Mr. Ganz, he’s gonna use that and say, no, Dr. Duke can't be used, It should be Dy, Duke
doing a forensic review, giving forensic opinions. If he then makes an opinion that’s
completely contrary to what he’s done before and he doesn’t think that it’s there, that’s an
issue for cross-examination,

DISCOVERY COMMISSIONER: Ms. Upson, I don’t know why you're fighting so
hard on this, ang I appreciate your loyalty to Dr. Duke. But this is a situation that could hurt
the Defendant. [ would find another Rule 35 examiner without the same concerns. [t doesn’t
mean that you can't use Dr. Duke as your retained expert. But I think the examination needs

to be done by somebody else. And, unfortunately, when you are this active in the litigation
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community and perform 1 think -~ the last, one of the last motions I had, someone said 375,
and { might be off a little bit, but Rule 35 exams, that’s a lot, And that’s not the tes(, but
when you see the repetitive statements, it's a problem, and T don’t want to restate my ruling,
SO.

MS, UPSON: And I accept. I'll just put two more comments on, and then we’ll stop,
and we'l] just reserve it. My loyaity isn't to Dr. Duke, It's to the process. And what we
have in this --

DISCOVERY COMMISSIONER: Mine is too.

MS. UPSON: -- to this cormmnunity is only so many doctors that do this type of work.
You have -- and just by way of example, in the last trial I just had with Dr. Lemper, over the
last five years he mdicated he’s had several thousand patients from Glen Lerner’s office,
several thousand. We only have a few doctors in this comrmunity that do IMEs in relation to
the neck and spine, less than five, so they’re --

DISCOVERY COMMISSIONER: Well, maybe Il just start denying all IMEs,
Maybe we just won't do any more. You know, with all due respect, I care about the process
too, and that’s why I"m taking the time with this, because T know how important itis. So
please don’t think [ don’t care about the process.

MS. UPSON: I wasn’t even implying that, I was just saying 1 didn’t want the Court
or the record to reflect that my loyalty was to Dr. Duke, 1t was 1o the process of the defense
as a whole, and I was not implyiog that the Court is, in any way, not taking the process just
as seriously.

DISCOVERY COMMISSIONER: Okay.

MR. MAUPIN: May I just? This is gonna sound strange coming from one of the
parties, but the personal injury litigation system, and not only that, the commercial tort

litigation system has -~ is obviously a forensic exercise. When a treating physician, however
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that physician comes 1o be retained, is performing clinical functions, but when you take that
doctor aud put bim on the stand, or have him write a report, and then he’s -- he or she is
asked the question did what you saw in the clinical environment, does it relate to some event
that has legal significance, and if you think so, you must so state, 10 a reasonable degree of
medical probability; that is where the clinician switches from the clinician into a forensic
witness because that’s a forensic exercise. The term reasonable degree of medical
probability has absolutely zero meaning in the clinical environment. No doctor ever thinks
about that.

Rule 35 is simply a process or defines a process that addresses the fact, that
shift from the clinical side to the forensic side, and the idea is 10 level the playing field.
Now, I must say on -- you know, in fairness to Dr. Duke, he’s just a -- he’s a doctor, He gets
called for these exams, The legal significance of the number of exams he’s done, I think
he's now aware of it because he knows full well he can be cross-examined about all that.

RBut make no mistake about it. The process that you're engaged in right now
about how to use Rule 35, what's the scope of discovery, what's the fairness with regard to
how personal injury litigants, both Plaintiffs and Defendants, should be treated is part of a
commitrnent that the Discovery Commissioners have made to this process since the
Discovery Commissioner system was invented back in the 1980s. And so there’s no
question about that the process of developing that balancing test is a difficult one.

And 1 have to simply state that there is -- one of the considerations in the order
today has to do with the fact that the animosity or dynamic between this lawyer and Dr.
Duke. It has been said that he has said that Dr. Duke hates ail personal injury clients. T want
to make sure that, from my interaction with him, Dr. Duke doesn’t hate anybody.

DISCOVERY COMMISSIONER: Thank you, Mr. Maupin, Anything further?

MR, GANZ: Very quickly, Your Honor. Procedurally, because there may potentially

2%
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be a objection -~

DISCOVERY COMMISSIONER: Objection, right.

MR. GANZ: -- to this, can we ask you to preserve what you have been provided until
that ruling is done or --

DISCOVERY COMMISSIONER: | was absolutely going to say that.

MR. GANZ: Okay.

DISCOVERY COMMISSIONER: I'm hanging on to everything so that I've marked
my box one so it’s box one, and candidly, you know, I apologize that I missed | guess the
breakdown here, but --

MS. UPSON: If I could interrupt briefly. T got the E-mail from Cathy on the letter.
She didn’t put it in the letter, so ! take back what 1 said before.

DISCOVERY COMMISSIONER: Okay.

MS. UPSON: But she was supposed to have put in the letter what each box was. We
will do a new letter saying what each box was.

DISCOVERY COMMISSIONER: Okay. That’s fine, You can. Just send a copy to
the Plaintiff so it’s not ex parte.

[Counse! conferring off the record - not transcribed]

DISCOVERY COMMISSIONER: And [’H put it with the box, but 1 -- again, just to
give some comfort here to the defense, that really wasn’t, you know, my concern because in
this box ["m not sure how the breakdown really worked ‘cause I found both. T did find there
he recommended surgery in several of the cases 1 looked at, o, you know, 1'm not sure how
the breakdown worked with this particular box, That’s all that ['in saying.

MR. GANZ: Your Honor, the last thing I'd like, if I could, just say is I recognize this
put a great strain on you, and T do appreciate you taking the time. [know Ms. Upson does as

well, Mr. Maupin as well.
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DISCOVERY COMMISSIONER: 1 know you both do. 1 understand,

MR. GANZ: This is not easy, and you're being thrown right into the fire; that is hard
to make decisions either way. So I appreciate you taking the time, and certainly we will
work with them getting an order that all can be content with and make sure we talk about
potential bias and also talk about with this specific case, and make sure that that is strictly
adhered to.

DISCOVERY COMMISSIONER: And I will be very careful when I review the
report. I do want to say this, 1 think it’s all of our responsibility, the bench, the Bar,
everybody’s responsibility to figure this out because it is very distressing to see the same
treating doctors on one side to, as you said, there’s a limited pool I guess of Rule 35
examiners, I think I can count, when | was in private practice, I think I can count on one
hand the time 1 did Rule 35 exams, Now, I did a different practice area. 1 didn’t do the
autornobile. But I have a very wise teacher who really, you know, we used them when we
liad to, not as a matter of course, and that’s where I think we need to change our focus.

But, Plaintiff’s counsel, you all have responsibility too. So everybody has
responsibility. So on that happy note, have a wonderful weekend. Thank you. Plaintiff’s
counsel, you prepare my Report and Recommendation,

MR. GANZ: Ten days, is that what you need?

DISCOVERY COMMISSIONER: Ten days. Run it by both Mz, Maupin and Ms.
Upson, please, and to approve as to form and content. And the status check for that will be?

THE CLERK: May 8" at11.

DISCOVERY COMMISSIONER: But don’t be here for that, Plaintiff’s counsel.

MER. GANZ: We'll get it done.

DISCOVERY COMMISSIONER: Get the homework done, Okay. Great. Thank

you very much. Have a nice weekend.

D5
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MR. MAUPIN: You have a nice weekend yourself.

{Proceeding concluded at 11:21 a.m.]

e W&

ATTEST: | do hereby certify that | have truly and correctly transcribed the audio-
video recording of this proceeding in the above-entitled case.

-26-

Lrmaiti Heak

FRANCESCA HAAK
Court Recorder/Transcriber
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20
21 || MITCH WILSON, an individual, CAST NO.:  A-13-6%0635-C
] DEPT NO.  XVI
22 Plaintifr,
23
vs, AMENDED FINDINGS OF FACT
24 AND CONCLUSIONS OF LAW IN

he SCOTT  YANCEY, an  individual, AMY | SUPPORT OF ORDER

= HYANCEY, an individual; GOLIATH | PRECLUDING DEREK DUKE, M.D,,
COMPANY, LLC, a domestic limited-liability § FROM CONDUCTING A RULE 35
company; GOLIATH INVESTMENTS, LLC, a4 | EXAMINATION

27 | domestic Bmited-liability company; GOLIATH
15 PROPERTIES, LLC, a domestic Emited-Tiability
< 1 company; GOLIATH-CITY COMPANY, LLC, a
domestic imited-liability company; GOLIATH
LAND & DEVELOPMENT, LLC, a domestic
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Limited-liability company; GOLIATLH-UPITER
INVESTMENTS, LLC, & domestic limited-
liability company, JUPITER REAL ESTATE
HOLDING COMPANY, LLC, a domoestic
limited-liability company; BAD ASS GOLF
CARTS, & domestic  corporation; A&
TELEVISION NETWORKS, LLC, d/b/a A4E
NETWORKS, LLC, a foreign limited-liability
company; LIONS GATE ENTERTAINMENT
INC., d/b/a LIONSGATE TELEVISION, INC., a
foreign company; LOVEABLE SCOUNDRELS,
INC., & foreign company; DOES 1 through XX,
andd ROL CORPORATIONS 1 through XX,
inchusive,

Pefendants,

This Court conducted an evidentiary hearing on Defendants’ Objection to the Discovery
Commissioner's Report and Recommendation, and Plaintif™s related request to disqualify Derek

Dulke, M.I). from conducting an NRCP 35 examination. Plaintitf, MITCH WILSON, appeared

by and through his attorney, ADAM GANZ, ESQ., of the law firm of GANZ & HAUF, and
ROBERT T. EGLET, 1BSQ., of the law Nrm of EGLET PRINCE, specially appearing.

Defendants Scott Yancy, Amice Yancey, Goliath Properties, LCC, and Bad Asy Goif Cans,

appeared by and through thetr attorneys, STACY UPSON, L3Q. of the law firm of UPSON

SMITH and WILLIAM MAUPIN, ESQ., of the law firm of MAUPIN, NAYLOR BRASTER.
After review and consideration of the points and authorities on file herein, and having

heard oral arguments of counsel i this matter, the Court hereby Ginds and concludes as [ottows:
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[.  BACKGROUND FACTS

A. Procedural History

1. On Febraary 18, 2012 Mitch Wilson alleges that he was thrown from & custom
polf cart, manufactured by Defendant Bad Ass Golf Carts and driven by Defondam Scott
Yancey, Mr. Wilson alleges that he suffered significant injuries that lead to a spine fusion,

2, Plaintift filed his complaint on Apyit 23, 2013,

3. Defendants Scolt Yancey, Amice Yaacey, and Goliath Properties, LCC,
inswered on December 4, 2013,

4, {On November 10, 2014, the Yancey Defendants requested that Mlaintff, Miteh
Wilson, subvnit to an examination pursuant fo NRCP 35 at the hands of their chosen doctor,
Perck Thake, M.1,

5, PlaintilT responded that he was willing to underge & Rule 35 cxamination, but
ot with Dr. Duke on the basis that Dr. Duke 15 known to be bigsed against plaintiffs in personal
njury actions,

£, On December 9, 2014, the Yancey Defendants filed a Mation to Compel & Rule
35 cxmmination before the Discovery Commissioner, Bonnie Bulla,  The Plaintlt fited an
Opposition on December 26, 2014, and the Yancey Defendants fiked his Reply on January 3,
2015,
7. During a telephonic conference between the parties and Commissioner Bulla,
turing the week of January 12, 20035, the Commissiongr ordercd Dr. Duke 1o produce the last
four years of Rule 35 reparts Lo assess how many tmes Dy, Duke concluded an injury occurred
15 a resull of an aceident,

a. Dr. Duke produced three large boxes of NRCP 35 veports and record reviews.

‘he Comtmissioner reviewed only one box of reports that Dy, Duke had appavently classified as
T'he € I only b f reports that Dy, Duke had app tly classilied
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both “injury™ anrd “ne injury™ opinions between 2011 and 2014, In fotal, the Commissioner
eviewed reports from approximaltely 86 different cases.

9. After muitiple continuances and conferences on the issue, Commissioner Bulla
held 2 hearing on Defendants” Motion w Compel on April 3, 2015,

10, Dr. Duke was not present al the hearing, but his personal counsel William
Maupin, Esq. made a special appearance for Dr. Duke at the hearing.

. After hearing areument, the Discovery Conunissioner found that she did not
1ave the authorily Lo prevent Dr. Deke from performing a Rule 35 exam seross the board in the
Fighth Judicial Distriey, and that each request for a Rule 38 exam would have 1o be evaluated on
i case-by-case basis,

i2, The Commissioner also found that a Rule 35 exam is not a matter of right,
wwever, and that it is within the Couwrt’s digeretion 10 alfow or deny a Rule 35 exam.

13, The Commissioner also found thal & Rule 35 examiner must be free from bias
el arrive at his or her opinions independently of the referring source and without advocating
me way or the other,

14, Specific 1o her review  of the materials provided by Dr. Duke, the
Commissioner's focus was on potential bias or prejucice, which may lead to disqualification of
h Rude 35 examiner.

13, Specifically, the Commissioner reviewed the reports for any indication of what
he pereeived to be polentially inflaminatory issues, including, lindings of scoondary gain
motivation, and suggestions of a psychological issues/underlay.

6. Because the substantial majority of the sampling of reports reviewed by the
Commissioner referenced potentially inflammatory issues, the Comunissioner had concemns
whout Do Buke’s potential biay against personal injury plaintiffs,

4
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7. The Commissioner was also concerned that Rule 35 exams were being used as a
Higation tool, for litigation bullying, rather than to properly evaluate plaintiffs’ medical
ronditions,

1K The Commissionst recommended that Dr. Dueke not be permitted 10 conduct a
Rute 35 examination in this cage,

19, On June 22, 2015, the Yancey Defendants timely fled an Objection o the
Dscovery Commissioner’s Repor! and Recommendation.

20, Plainti{l” requested that Dr. Duke be barred from performing a Rule 33
examination or from serving as an expert wilness, Counsel requested an evidentiary hearing on
he matter with the Court, and the Court grimted the request,

B. Other Proceedings Related To Dr. Duke

AR During the course of this evidenliary hearing, the Court was made aware of
nther proceedings involving simitar claims that Dr. Duke has a bias against personal injury
hlainiiffs,

22, In Thorme v. Milex, District Court Case No. A6D9470, Commissioner Bulla,
ssued a similar Report and Recommendation, wherein it was recommended that Dr. Doke be
excluded as a Rule 35 examiner because he was hiased against alt plaintiffs whe file personal
njury claims.

23, The Honorable Mark Denton signed the Report and Recommendation without
wbjection on February 23, 2013, and Notice of Entey of Qrder was filed on February 25, 2015,
o the Thorne matter,

24, Subsequently, Dr, Duke, via Mr. Maupin ffled a motion to Intervene with the
imited purpose of objecting to and secking an smendment to the Discovery Commissioners

report and recommendation affirmed and adoped on the Fetruary 23, 20138 Order.
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25, Judge Denton entered another order on Jure 3, 2015 that modified some of the
anguage in origingl Thorre Report and Recommendstion, Judge Deston did not alter
Commissioner Bulla’s finding that Dr. Duke s biased against personal injury Plaintiffs,
1owever, he advised Lthat his Order be confined 1o the facts of the Fhorre case,

26, In the Thorne case, as in this case, at the time the plaintiff objected to the Rule
35 examination, Dr. Duke had never been provided any records about the plaintiff, and he had
wver met the plaintfl. Defense counsel had merely requested fo use Dr. Duke as a Rule 33
examiney, but the plaintiff would not agree. Thereafter, as here, the Defendant filed a motion in
o compel the plaint(t o submit to a Rule 35 examination with Dr. Duke.

C. Evidentiary Hearing Before This Court

27. Prior to the commencement of the cvidentiary hearing, the Court ordered
bricfing from the parties on the scope of the sabject hearing, On May 5, 2016, Plaintiff filed his
srief regurding the scope of the evidentiury hearing regarding Dr. Duke. On June 16, 2016,
Defendants filed their brief regarding the scope of the evidentiary hearing regarding Dr. Duke.
Pofendants also [Qled supplements o their briefs on July 13, 2046, and July 1§, 2016,

a8, On July 8, 2016, the Court began the evidontiary hearing regarding BDr. Duke’s
pias against plaintiffs in personal injury matters,

29, Testimony and c¢vidence was submitted to this Court on eleven (1) separate
Hays, Spesifically, July 8, 2016 (Day 1), July 18, 2016 (Day 2), July 19, 2016 (Day 3), August
B, 2016 (Day 4), August 9, 2016 (Day 5), August 10, 2016 (Day 6), August 12, 2016 (Day 7),
Angust 16, 2006 (Day 8), August 17, 2016 (Day 9), September 8, 2016 (Day 10) and September
3, 2006 (Day 11).  Closing arguments were thereafter heard on November 9, 2016 and

November 10, 2016,

o
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30, In connection with this hearing, both parties produced additional documents
related to Dr. Duke’s methodology and alleped bias against personal injury plaintiffs,

2 On day 1 of the evidentiary hearing, Plaintit! produced a ¢hart summary of Dr.
[uke’s compiled reports previousty disclosed by Defondamts o ihe Discovery Commissioner,
md additionat reports produced by Plaintiff prior Lo the evidentiary hearing,

32 The chart was admitted a5 Lixhibit 3, and the summary of the chart was admitted
15 Exhibit 4 to the Hearing, A Final Amended Chart was adimitted ag Exhibit T, and a Final
Amended Summary was admitted as Exhibit 12 pursaant to NRS 52,275,

33 The Court has reviewed all of the reports provided by the parties and that
MainltifT elaims are sumimarized in both the Final Amended Chart and Final Amended
Bumirgary,  The Court fnds that the evidence at the BEvidentiary Hearing snd the admifted
Hocuments gencrally supports the following conclusions in the Final Amended Chart and Final
Amended Sunmmmary: Qut of the approximately 371 distinet reports authored by Dr. Duke
aetween 2011-2015,

a. Approximately 333 include at least one opinion that thiz Cournt finds to be an
inflammatory category. or approximately 90% of the time.

b Dr, Duke disagrees with the treating doctor approximaicly 93% of the time,

¢ De Duke includes opinions regarding opiates and drug secking behavior in
approximately 98 cases, or 25% of the tiine,

d. Dr. Duke Ginds symptom magnilication to be a factor in approximately 108 cases,
or 20% of the time.

e. Dr. Duke finds pending litigation to be a factor in approximately 178 cases, or
48% ot the time,

f. D Duke linds secondary gain to be a factor in approximately 177 cases, or 48%

of the time.
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g. Dr. Duke finds psychological factors (anxiety or depression) to be a factor in
approximately 61 cases, or 43% of the time.

b Dr. Duke suggests that the patient is not being trathiul or giving ineonsistent
information in 149 cases, or 40% of the time.

i, Dr. Duke finds no objective findings of injury in 263 cases, or approximately
71% of the time.

i D, Duke gives a sprain/strain injury or no injury diagnosis when the treating
doctor’s diagnosis was injury or more than a sprain/strain injury in approximately
319 cases, or 86% of the fime,

k. Dy BDuke agreed with the past treaument rendered by the treating doctor in
approximately 15 cuses, or 4% of the time, but still often disapreed with part of
the physicians treatment or fulure recommendation.

II. APPLICABLE LAW
A. Law Related to Rule 35 Examinations

NRCP 35(a) allows for " physical or mental examination by a suitably licensed or
certificd oxaminer,” when a party’s mental or physicat condition is “in controversy.” Nev, R,
Civ. P, 35, This Rule is substantively identical to FRCP 35¢a)(1), as well as similar rules or
stannes in almost every state, See, for example, Ariz. R, Civ. P, 35(8); Cal. Civ, Proc. Code §
2032.020; Ore, R. Civ. P, 44: Tenn, R, Civ. P, 3501/

The instand action is a case of first impression due to the pavcity of Nevada cases

pestaining to the application of NROP 35 to civil cases. Morcover, there are no Nevada cases

' The Nevada Supreme Court has recognized that “federal decisions involving the Federal
Rules of Civil Procedure provide persuasive authority when this court examines ils rules.”
Moseley v. Eighth Judicial Dist. Court ex rel. County of Clark, 124 Nev, 634, 668, 188 P.3d
1136, 1146 (2008), quoting Nelfson v. Heer, 121 Nov, 832, 834, 122 P.3d 1232, 1253 (2005).
Stmilarly, the Nevada Supreme Court will “tern o other jurisdictions for puidance™ when
interpreting simitar siatutes and rules, Rubio v Srore, 124 Novo 1032, 1041, 194 P3d 1224,
1230 (2008); Las Vegay Mach., & Ing's Works v. Roemiseh, 67 Nev, 1, 8-F1, 213 P.2d 319,
323-24 (1950,
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refating to atlegations of bias and/or the validity and relisbility of the examination method of a
Rule 35 examiner, In light ol the foregoing, this Court feets competled to point owt, that while
Rules 26, 33 and 34 provide for discovery of material relevant 1o the subject matter involved in
the pending action, Rute 35 contains a stricler requirement. Thus, the moving party must muke
an affinnaiive showing that the condition as fo which the examination is sought 5 in
controversy and that there is good cause existing for ordering the partieutar examinalion. See
Sehlagentouf v, Holder, 379 ULS, 104, 85 5.C1. 234, 13 L.Ed, 2d 152 (1904).

Under Rule 35, the mentat or physical condition of the plainGff is always in controversy
in personal injury liligation. However, whether good cause is cstablished depends on both
relevance and need. Sge Sucromona v, Brideestone/Fivestone, Inc., 152 F.RID. 428 (1D, Mass.
1993Y, Mohamed v. Marvion Int L, Inc., 1996 U8, Dist, Loxis 2788 (S.DNY. Mar. 7, 1996);
Smith v, LI Case Corp., 163 FIRI 229 (E.D, Pa. 19958); Perers v, Nelson, 133 F.RID, 635
{(N.D. Towa 1994); and Simpson v. University of Colorado, 220 FR.1D. 354 (D. Colo. 2004},
Thus, controversy does notl equate to good cause, which mandates a separate and distinet
analysiy, because good canse may not be found if the mental and physical examination of the
plaintifi may be established by prior documentary evidence,

As the Upited States Supreme Court noted, in determining whether good cause exists
for a Rule 33 examination, “Jtihe ability of the movant o ablain the destred information from
other means s also relevant.” Sehlagenhayf, supra, at 118-119, For exampie, “[o]ne of the
factors which must be considered in determining good cause is whether the defendants have
utilized other discavery procedures before secking the medical examination.” Anson v. Fickel,
HO F.R.D. 184, 85 (N.D. Ingl. [986). Thus, a plaintiff is not required to submit to & Rule 33
medical examination simply because he or she sustained injury when the defendant had been
supplicd all of plaintiff' s medical records and had deposed the plaintill. See Stemislawski v.

9
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Duncan v. Upjahsn Co., 155 FR.D. 23 {D.Conn. 1994, Shapiro v. Win-Sun Ski Corp., 95

Justice requires to protect a party or person lrom anpoyance, embarrassment, opprossion, or

Upper River Serv., 134 F.R.D. 260 (D. Mima, 1994), In light of the good cause requirement, a
Rule 35 examination shall only be required if the plaintift asserls ongoing injury, ongoing

injury necessiating surgery or a significant worsening of® plaintiff' s medical condition. See

PRI 38 (WD WY, 1982); Ziemann v. Burlington Counry Bridge Comm n., 1535 FR.ID. 497
(DN 1994); and, Galieti v. Ste Farm Mur, Awio Ins. Ce., 134 FRID, 262 (12, Colo. 1994},

Tiven i pood cause for ordering the mental or physical examination is established under
Rule 33 it 35 sl within the sound discretion of the teigl conrt (o order examination of the
plaintiff, See, Ligotti v. Provident Life and Casualty (ns. Co., 857 F. Supp. 2d 307 (WD NUY.
2001y, and Curris v, Express, Inc., 868 F. Supp. 467 (N.D.NY, 1994). Consequently, a Rule 35
examinalion of the plaintift is not granted as a matier of right. Grear West Life Assuranee Co. v,
Levithan, 153 FRD. 74 (E.D. Pa. 1994),

This Court may also place reasonable limitations on & Rule 35 examination, Nevada

Rule of Civil Procedure 26(c) provides, in relevant part, that a court "may make any order which

undue burden or expense, including one or more of the follfowing: ... (2} thal the discovery may
be had only on specified terms and conditions ... " Nev, R. Civ. P. 26 (emphasis added).
Maorcover, Nevada Rule of Civil Procedure 35 states in pertinent part;
The order may be made only on motion for good cause shown and upon notice to
the person 0 be examined and 1o all partics and shall gpeciy the time, place,
mamicr, conditions mnd scope of the examination and the person or parsons by
whom it is fo be made.
Nev. R, Civ. P. 35 (emphasis added).
Because there is no absohute right Tor defense counsel to choose a specilic physician for

the Rule 35 examination, the identity of the cxamining physician is a “coadition” that can also

be determined by the Couwrt.  Newron v, Ceasar, M2000-01117-COARIOCY, 2000 WL
10
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863447, at #2 (Tenn, Cr, App. Junc 29, 2000), citing Liechy v. Tervill Trucking Co., 53 F.RI.
390 (BB Tenn, 1974y Stwart v, Burford, 42 FR.D. 591 (D.C.OKla. 1967); Timpre v, District
Court, 421 P.2d 728 (Colo. 1966); Martin v. Superior Cours, 451 P.2d 597 (Arz. 1969).
Ultimately, “if the court finds that a particolwr doctor cannot be trusted to make a fuir
examination, it may refuse the requested order or designate another doctor in whom the court
has confidence.”™ Warrick, supra. A Nevada fedoral court has concurred:

The court nevertheless has the awthorily to exciude evidence, including expert

oninion teslimony, that is irrelevant, or whose probative value is substantially

outweiphed by the danger of wnlair prejudice, confusion of issucs or of

misteading the jury, Fed R.Evid, 402 and 403, A physician who engages in a

pattern or practice of providing improper, inflammatory opinions may

jusiify an ordes barring bim from performing a medien! examination

purstant to Roele 35,

FPham v, Wal-Mart Stores, fne,, 2201-CV-01 148-KID-GW, 2002 W 1957987, a1 ®1 (2, Nev,
May 29, 2012)(emphasis added).

Of paramount significance, the trigl court in the exercise ol its discretion with regard o
the requested cxamination, shall consider if challenged, the scientific validily and rellabitity of
the Rule 35 examiner or examination method,  Nevada 1rial court judges assume the role of a
salckoeper in assessing whether experts satisfy these reguirements, and in that capacity have
“wide disceetion, within the parameters of NRS 50.275, to fulfill their gatckeeping duties.™
Higgy v, State, 222 P3d 644, 658 (Nev, 201D, As the patekeepor of evidence in this case, the
Court’s focus shall be fimited to determining whether Dr. Duke's expert opintons will assist the
trier of fact in this mauter, In doing so, this Court nust the follow the mandate of the Nevada
Suprerne Court in Halbmark v Eldridge, 124 Nev. 492, 189 P3d 646 (2008). Under Halimark,
to testifly as an expert witness, the withess must satisfy the following three requirements:

(1) he or she must be qualified in an arca of scientific, technical or olher

specialized knowledge (the qualification requirement); (2) his or her specialized

knowledge must assist the trier of fact {0 understand the evidence or w

1
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determine a fact in issue (the assistance reguirement); and (3) his or her

testimony st be Himited to matters within the scope of his or her specialized

knowledge (the limited scope requircment),
Ted wt 498,

An expert’s testimony will assist the trier of fact only when it is (1) relevant and (2) the
product of reliable methodology. 7d. Addiionally, when determining whether an expert’s
methodology is relisble, the court should consider whether the opinion is (1) within a
recognized feld of expertise; (2) testable and has been tested; (3) published and subject to peer
review: (4) gencrally accepted in the selentific community (not always determinative); and (3)
based on pasticularized facts rather than assumption, conjecture, or generalizaton, Ik al 498,

1. FINDINGS OF FACT AND CONCLUSIONS OF LAW

A. Dr. Duke’s Reports And Opinions Fail the Assistance Requirement of Hallmark and
NRS 50.275.

Applying Halfmark and NRS 50.275 to the instant action, the court {inds as a matter ol
law that Dr, Duke’s medical opinions are personal and his methodology unreliable, The Court
further finds that Dr. Duke’s medical opinions rely heavily on speculation and other frrclevant
factors.

This Court’s decigion is based on the evaluation of Dr, Duke’s methods and practices in
conducting a Rule 33 examination, and i% also based on, but not limited io, the foliowing factors:

I. Dr. Duke Failed to Demaonstrate How He Could Reliably Apply The BPS Model of
Healtheare to Forensto/Cansarion Rule 35 Examinarions.

Dr. Duke testified that he utilizes the biopsychosacial model of healthcare (“BPS
model™) in bath his private practice and his Rule 35 examinations. Dr. Duke states that he treats
hig patients wsing & “whole body perspective,” and that he believes it is important for him o
understand how his pationt’s other health issues and other social factors might be contributing to

the patient’s condition,
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fn a Rule 35 examination, Dr. Duke sees a plaintiff one time, for 30-40 minutes. He
rarcly, i cver, is provided with the plaintift®s entire medical history, and he is not permitied 1o
discuss the plaintiiTs condition with his or her treating physicians. Asg a Rule 33 Examiner, Dr.
Duke does not have a physician/patient relationship with the plaintiff, cannot refer the plaintify
for further testing, and cannof devise altermative treatment pians for the plainttf gomg forward,
Unlike his own patients who see De. Duke by choice, a personal injury plaintiff preseating for a
Rule 35 exam is ordered by the Court to subntit to a physical examination by Dr. Duke - a
physician they do not know and did not chose. Dr. Puke testificd that he does not permit anyonc
clse (besides his stalt) in the examination roon. Such conditions could inevitably resuil in some
tevel of discomfort, distrust, unfamiliarity or sppichension on the part of examinee, During this
evidentinry hearing, Dr. Duke failed to artieulate precisely how he could reliably apply the BPS
madel of healthvare to & causation analysis given the constraints and limitations inherent o a
Rule 35 examination,

Further, Dr. Duke is not a psychologist and does not administer any psychological testing
during his cxams,  Nongtheless, Dr. Duke ultimately confirmed that he believes ¢ Rule 35
examination 13 the proper setting for the application of the BPS maodel ol healtheare- despite the
fact that clear limitations and restrictions placed on such examinations may impede his
assessment of a patient’s psychosocial factors and the impact on thew pain complaints, The
Clourt notes that Dr, Duke even acknowledged that the limitations of a Rule 35 examination
countd inpede his application of the BPS maodel.  Dr. Duke™s attempt to import the BPS maodel of
heatthcare into his forensic work results in discussions of “potential™ social and psychological
factors that could “possibly™ be causing or contrilnting o the patient’s pain. Dr. Duke does not
actually determine exactly how, or even if, such factors are actually relevant or contributing (o
the patient’s complaints in a specific case, Without the appropriste time and information
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necessary to faitly address the “whole person,” Dr. Duke’s examinations resull in highly
speculative and prejudicial opinions that unfairly cast doubts about the veracity of claims by
personal injury plainiffs withowt a sufficient foundafion for such opinions.

2 Dr, Duke’s  Rellance on The “AMA  Guidelines” in Conducting o
Forensic/Caunsation Rute 35 Examination Results in an Unreliable Methodalogy,

The Court alse finds that Dr, Duke gives great weight to certain AMA Guidelines
MNewsletters in conducting his forensic injury/causation Rule 35 cxaminutions.  Although
Defendants produced evidence that the AMA Guides Newsletters were peer reviewed, the Court
was nol provided any information about what that peer review process entails. Regardless, the
Newsletters appear (o be fargely based upon opinions and testimony by author Robort Barth,
Phiy, The Court finds these Guidelines 1o be woolully unreliable, misleading both in law and
fact, and not based upon proper scientilic methods,

Dr, Duke discussed in great detail the steps sel forth in the fengthy May/June 2012 AMA
Guides Newsletter authored by Dr, Robert Barth, De, Duke testified that the information in the
May/june 2012 AMA Guides Newsletter summarizes how he uses the BPS mode! during his
treatment of patients or during Rule 35 exams. Dr. Duke testified the AMA Guidelines were the
“mold standard” lor determining causation, and are an authoritative source for physicians for
wnderstanding how o utilize the AMA Cansadion baok in their forensic work, Dy, Duke also

touted the suthor Dr. Barth as “a giant” in the ficld.”

? Phaintfr presented evidence regarding the AMA and its active agenda to promote (ort reform
on a state and federal level. As part of those cfforts the AMA has taken steps to limit non-
ceonomic damages, to advocate for sereening panels for medical malpractice cases, and 10 Bmil
the ability of (reating physicians (© give causation opintons,  Accordingly, the AMA is not &
“newtral” organization with repard to legislative policies related to litigation atfecting the court
sysicm.

14
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Dr, Duke’s reliance on Dr. Barth's approach on how o viilize the AMA Guides, as
reflected in the AMA Guides Newsletter is troubling to the Courl because Dr. Barth ig not a
medical doctor, he does not see patients in a clinical setling, and, like Dr. Duke, be is bired by
the defense as an expert in at feast 95% of his cascs.” A close review of the Guides Newsiotiers
authored by Dr. Barth demonstrates a general bins against plaintiffs and the courl system in
genernl. Dr. Barth encourages physicians not to cooperate with the court system and 10 combai
what he believes to be the “anti-fact” bias of the court system. Dr. Barth towts the Causation
Guides as being “especially notable for the powerful manner in which it diveets doctors away
from the anti-fact bins that is inkerent in court and administrative systems.”

For example, De. Barth siates in his Chapter 16 in Censeavion that he does nof believe thaf
a plaintiff claiming & mental illness-refated mjury will ever be able to establish causation in the
tegal setting,

Inan effort o leave no ambiguity, this chapier’s author and contributors endorse

the foliowing statement: All of the issues discussed above have left a very strong

impression that the scientific knowledge base is so flawed that it cannet be

credibly used to justify any claim of causation for any mental illness.
Cansation at p.498.

This is important, because in the May/lune 2012 Guides Newsletter authored by Dr.
Barth, he encourages physicians 1o apply his methodology 1o Al types of Medical-Legal
Claims™- not just claims of mental injury 1o forensic injury/catsation Rule 35 examinations. In
the 2013 AMA Guides Newsletter, upon which Dr, Duke also religs, Deo Barth appears to
encourage physicians to apply his methodology to establish that it 15 not_possible w determine

the cause of chronic pain in the litigation setting (suggested chronic pain should be treated as &

*Dr. Duke testified that he served as defense expert in 93% of his medicolegal work, and that he
had made approximately $1 million per year providing expert testimony, Sec 7/8/16 Hr. Tr. at
187: 3-10; 190:11-21,

15
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purely psychological issue).  Given such views, it s unsurprising that other Courls have
excluded Dr. Barih as an expert on the grounds that he is not credible and biased against injured
claimanls.

Based on his testimony, Dr, Duke appears to have adopied Dr. Barth’s methodology and
that is reflected in his reporis which do not establish causation in an overwhelming percentage of
cascs, Dr. Duke’s testimony strongly sugpests his resistance to {finding cavsation when he told
the Courf that “nothing is fully known™ with regard to the spine because it 15 a “gray thing”
Finnly, when confromed with these criticisms of Dr. Barth, Dr. Duke testified that he still had
“no coneerns” relying upon Dr. Barth’s Methodology,

So knowing that a court has entered an order [excluding] someone that you

gonsiderced to be "the giant” in this Aeld of that nature, PH ask you again: Would

you have any concerns about relying on Dr. Barth or authoritative for scientific

findings?

A, No.

BAU7/16 Tr. at 98:20-25.

Dr. Duke's relisnce on the opinions and methodology of Dr. Barth who has been
exchuded frony testfying in multiple trial courts across the country as an expert witness, beciuse
of bias and lack of credibility, i5 not only unreliabie, but astonishingly unacceptable,

3. D Duke’s Application Qf The AMA Guidelines And Methodology Resulis In The

Application Of A Causation Standard Tn A Forensic Injury/Cansation Rule 35
Examinution That Exceeds Nevada Law.

The protocol advocated by Pr. Barth in the AMA Guidelings Newsletters, ag applicd by
Dr. Dutke in his forensic infury/causation Rule 33 examinations, i also irrelevant and unreliable
because 11 subjects injured plaintiffs (o o higher standard of cousation than is required under)
Nevada law, In Nevada, a plaimifl need only prove that his or her injuries were mmore bkely than

nol causcd by the subject incident, By following Dr. Barth's protocol, De. Duke appears to be

16
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advotating for a more rigorous causation test that plaintiffs, absent an acute or ohvious njury,
will rarely be expected to pass. Dr. Duke testificd that he applies the methodology set forth in
AMA Guidelines Newsletters which requires s “definitive disgnosis™ of injury and at times
requires “an unusually high rigor of scrutiny.”  This methodology also assumes that injured
plalmtifs give Malse information in ncarly F00% of cases,

Evaluators should note the scientific {indings, which indicated an approximate

rite of 100% of examinee-reporied histories being false when the examinee was

Irlaming someone else for his or her health complaits,”

May/June 2012 AMA Guidelines, /d at, p, 9.
Dr. Duke introduced the May/June 2012 AMA Guides Newsletters into this proceeding,
and Lestified that it was “authoritative,” and that he followed the deseribed protecol when
conducting hiy Rule 35 examinations.  This Newslotler, avthored by Dr. Barth, appears to
encourage medical legal experts to defy the legal standard of causation and adhere ta the medieal
standard - which Dr. Barth argoes will never be satisfied dusing ligation,
By using this protocel, cvaluators can demonstrate their allepiance to, and
adherence to, the scientific tradition of prefessional health care and ean

demonstrate and justify their resistance to the anti-fact bias of the court and
administrative systems.

May/dune 2012 Guides Newsletter, at p. 5.

By adopting this methodology, De. Duke subjects plabutiffs 1o g higher causation standard
than that required under Nevada law, and the summary of opinions prepared by Plaintii
generally reflects the skewed opinions that result from application of this methodology.
Pefendants argue that Dr. Duke has found some type of injury In a high percentage of cases,
however, with the exception of a handful of acute injury cases, Dr. Duke has consistently found

the elaimed injury to be nothing more than a soft tissuc injury {sprain/strain) cven though the

* 1n the Newsletter, Dr, Barth gites t bimselT for this findimg. Id at fn.8,

7
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claimant and the treating physicians were claiming a more serfous injury.  As a result of bis
flawed methodology, Dr, Duke's reports and opinions fail 1o apply the legal causation standards
under Nevada law, and therefore provide no assistance under Hollmerk.

4. Dr, Duke Does Nor Follow the AMA Guidelines Resafting in Opinions that Are
Unreliable,

Regardiess of whether the AMA Chuidelines themsetves are biased against personal injury
plaintiffs or are otherwise inconsistent with Nevada law related o causation, the manner in

which Dr. Duke applies them is unscientific and unreliable.

a. Dr. Duke’s Injury/Ca

Cite 1o Scientific or [

sation Opini
sidermiotogical Data,

Step two of the Dr. Borth's protocol, as explained in the AMA Guidelines Newsleticr,
charges evaluators to apply sciendific findings and epidemiological data to the case at hand.
Indeed, the Chapter on “Report Writing™ in the Cousarion Guides even staies that,

"In_the discussion of causation, scientifically veferenced  reports are
preferred. Tn addition to the contents of the problematic report described
abave, the evidence-based report will discuss the available medical Hterature
on capsation, the presence or absence of other risk factors or injurics and the
mathematical hikelthood that the exposure is related to the ilness or injury in
question. '

see Causation at pist (emphasis added).

The Court notes that Dr. Duke’s reports do nol comtain any references o specific studissg,
epidemiological data or other scientific findings that he relics upon in support of his opinions.
Indecd, throughout the hearing, Dr. Duke was often unable 1o cite to specific articles or scientific
Journals 1o support his opinions — even when asked by the Court. Dr, Duke did nol appear to
have “working knowledge” of the precise studics or empirical data he relies upon to support his
analysts, As a result of Dr. Duke’s vague and non-specific references to “sciontific hterature”
the Court at times had difficulty determining whether he was simply unable to provide the source

of certain data, or whether sueh data existed at wll. By withholding this information, Dr. Duke
18
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makes it overly burdensome for a plaintiff or plaintif®s expert to evaluate his opinions without

the need for further inguiry and clarification,

b, D Duke’s Generie Use OF Term “Risk Factors” In His Injuiy/Crusation Rule
35 Experl Reports Creates Confusion, and He Never Clarifies The huportant
ek en “Ruling Out” Or “Ruling 1n” The Likely Cause Of Injury,

One of the most troubling parts of Dr. Duke's methodology s his testimony that he
engages in a clear analysis of a patient’s “rigk factors.” In the 2012 AMA Newsletter, Dr. Barth
slales,

I order for a causation conclusion to be credible, the process of ereating that

conclusion  must  have  included  comprehensive  consideration  of  the

epidemiological scientific findings for the definitively cstablished  diagnosis,
determination of risk factors for the diagnosis (based on scientific findings),
determination of which of the risk factors apply to the case at hand (which ones

are relevant), and determination of which relevant risk factors arc of greatest

significance (or the diagnosis in general and for this case in particular,
Id. atp. 8.

The Chapter tegarding “Report Writing” in Cansarion also states that evaluators should
include “the presence or absence of other risk factors or injuries, the mathemalical likelihood
that the exposare is related to the tlness or injury in question. " Causation at p. 181 (emphasis
added). Throughout his testimony, Dr. Duke repeatedly states that his methodology includes an
examination of various “risk factors”™ wherein he analyzes the “domiuant risk factor” refated to
the plaintift’s pain complaints and/or claimed injury. This Court, however, has reviewed nearly
400 reports written by Dr, Duke and notes that Dy, Duke docs not appear to use the terin “risk
factor” or “dominant rigk factor” in any of those reports. Further, Dr. Duke did not provide clear
testimony during the evidentiary hearing with regard to what a dominant risk factor is, or where
someone reading his report can locale s analysis related to any dominant risk factor. e also
tails 10 inclode any clear analysis of the magnitude of exposwre, duration, timing, statistical
significance or likelihood that one or more risk factors s specifically impacting the patient at

19
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hand, or to what degree the risk [actor is causing or contribwting lo the patient’s claimed injury.
When Dr, Duke lists the same “risk factors”™ over and over in his reports, he never articulates
whether such risk factors are actually contribuling or causing a patient’s condition. Because Dr.
Duke does not cite to any scientific literature to support his corclusions, the finder of fact is left
not knowing how to apply this information to the case at hand.

Ultimately, Dr. Duke did not present to the Court any reliable or testable methodology
that he uses when he decides (o include references to certain risk factors besides generically
stating that he makes the decision “internally” or based on “training, experience and the facts of
that case.” See 9/8/16 Hr. Tr. at 67:9-18,

Although Defendants suggest that Dr Duke’s “risk [actor” opinions are somehow
admissible ag other plavsible causes under the lower standard discussed in Williams v. Eighth
Juelicial Dist. Cowt of New,, 127 Nev. 518, 262 P.3d 360 (2011), other plausible cavses are not
even evaluated under Williams until such causes salisfy Hallmark and are demonstrated to be
relevant 1o the condition of the subject plaintiff.  Dr. Duke’s opinion iy impossible 1o evaluate
hecause his analysis is not clearly identifiable, and conclusions appear to be based on
speculation. As a result of this unscientific and unreliable approach, T, Duke’s resuliing reports
often set forth nothing bt a genperal “possibility” that cortain risk faclors might be impacting
pain. Dr. Duke also docs not appear to appreciate that his discussions of such possible “risk
factors™ ofien cast the plaintiff in & negative light or calls in question the legitimacy of their,
claimed injury. Such opinions therefore not only fail 10 assist the Court (or the jury) in analyzing
causation, but are more prejudicial than probative,

¢, Br Duke's Reporis and Opinions are Littered With Personal Observations and
Impregise Lansuage,

20
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1 The Court is further troubled by Dr. Duke’s repeated inclusion of his own

2 “observations,” “stalements,” and “considerations” in the same “Discussion” section of his
3
report where he purportedly includes his risk factor analysis,
4
< Q. F(.?kﬂy. That's your c.lpini(m, vight?
l A. That's my ohservation.
6 (3 Thig is -~ these are your words, right?
A, Yes,
7 (. Your conclusion from your report, correct?
\ A, Tt's in that - it's in the Discussion section,
4 Q. That's where you put your conclusions in your report, isn't it, Doctor?
g A. It's the Discugsion Section.
Q. BEvery one of your reports, the Discussion section is whore you (it your

1o opinions, correet?
A, T'm putting my discussion and observations there and -~

11 L . . .
{J. And that's where your opinions are, right, Doctor?
) A, 1n Observations and --
Q. And your opinions, correet?
13 A. This is my observations.
14 (. Do vou have a separate section that says Conclusions and Opinions in
vour reports? You don't, do you?
15 A, There's one section called Discussion.
Q. And it's - and it glves your opiniens and now what you're claiming are
1o observations, right?

A. That's my ohservation,

EE [ 8/9/16 Hr, Tr. at 29:4-30:13 {emphasis added).

EGLET®

¢ . - .
19 Q. Well, let's look at what you said here. "Opiate dependence is a strong
20 motivator for sceondary gain behavior which can occur on cither a subconscious
or conscious basis and is known to signiftcantly affeet one's report of pain
21 complaings,”
a
2 A Yes,
23
Q. And you said that in -- with regard 10 your opinions in this case about this
2d patient, right?
25

A, Well, it's a general statement. 1t's — I'm not saying that they're motivating
26 him. No, I'm not saying that,

27 111d., at 232:20-233:7.
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the difference between o “risk factor,” “observation,” “statement,” or “consideration.”  Further,
because such observalions are personal to Dy, Duke, they are not subject to medical or scientific
cvaluation. It is likely for that reason the AMA Causarion Guides has stated that expert opinions
are problematic when based upon Ypersonal experichee” or “ancedotes,”™

In the discussion of causalion, problematic reports ave those thal stale medical

facts (history, cxam, and tests), the diagnosis, and the physician’s opinion or

concluston, with the conclusion apparently based upon “my years of expericnee.”
This is anecdote,

Caugarion atp, 18],

The Court is also perpiexed by Dr, Duke's decision to inciude these personat
obscrvations ar statements in his report,

Q. 50 -- 50 this is something you consider in your opinions and discussion, what -
- when the plaintff hired an attorney, right?

A, No,

Q. Olkay.

THE COURT: Then why is it in the repon?

THE WITNESS: Well, again, this is just a statement that oftentines
whenever 1 see this, 1 -« carly refercal, § see this pattern of eare. That's -
that's all {'m saying is that 1've scen this pattern in the past, Tt didn't — it
dida't affect my epinion as to causation in these cases. Just a pattern that 1
see oftentimes,

TAR6 T, Tr, at 64:12-25,

Another reason Dr. Duke's personal observations and considerations are problematic i3
because he regularly couches them In imprecise terms without providing any consisient context
to their meaning. Because Dr. Duke’s personal observations are personal to him, they cannot be
fully understoad, challenged or evalusted. The Court notes that Dr, Ditke’s reparts repeatedly

LAY

deseribe the frequency of his expericnees with vague terms such as “oftentimes,” “ume to 1ime”
or “quite Trequently,” without any specific number, percemtage, or specific meantng that can be

attributed or measured report to report.

28]
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Q. 1 ask you, Weil, what would -- if you did something from time to time out of
371 reports, what would be your estimate of Umc o Hme, you would have no
esthmate; ts that correct?

A. It's a vague, you know, meastre.

Q. Your statement “time to thne™ is a vague statewment, right?

A. Yeah, that's right. Beeanse [ don't have the number,

Q. So when you say "time to time,” you really have no idea how many times
you've done that out of your reports, right?

A Tdon't know g number,

4/8/16 Hr. Tr. at 46:8-20 (emphasis added).

Q. If you had writien here "medical providers oftentimes have significant
tinancial incentives to perform these medical services,” what do vou meuan by
using the phrase "oftentimes™? Does that mean more than 50 percent of the time?
tess than 50 percent of the time? two out of ten? cight out of 107 What does that
mean fo you?

AL It doesn't mean any of those.

(1t doesn't mean anything to you?

A, Nou It means something, it nof those things,

Q. Well, what docs it mean? Tell me what it ineans, When you use the phrase
"oftentimes,” what does that mean to you?

A. I don't have a definition other than oftentinies is what it is,

Id. at 53:11-25 (emphasis added).

Q. How is somteone supposed 10 know what you mean -- when they're reading
your report what you mmean by "quite frequentiy™?

AL T assume they know whal the English language means, Fdicn't defing the word
“and™ or "the" for them cither,

Sec 8/8/16 Hr, Tr. at 66:14-19.
Br. Puke eventually confirmed that the meaning of these words could change from “day

to day,”

THE COURT: Doctor, please just try to answer it your can, And lsten. | think
that's what's what's causing us over talk,

Q. Doctor, if you change your interpretation as you've just told us i you change
your imterpretation of the definition of words that you use in your reports,
frequently, and you change -- and you just ol us well those definition and change
from time to time with you, how is someone, whether iUs a fawyer, a judge, ora
fay person reading your reports have to - be able to understand what you're
saying iT your definition in your mind change these words change from day to day
how are they supposed to do that?
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A, Definitions -- the definitions don't change. The words that you use to describe

them ¢ould change. 1 could say oo one day if you asked me what a word

means, o certain set of words, and another day T could say a different set of

words, The concept of what it represents is speeific 1o the setting in which the

word was used and- and- and- and so that's very important. But the concept tha it

relays docs in the change,

See 8/9/16 Hr, Tr. at 37:4-38:1. (emphasis added).

Dr. Duoke's repeated reliance on personal observations and ancedotes is problematic, Dr.
Duke’s “observations™ and “statoments” lack scientific loundation under Hallmark because they
are not medical opinions, but are merely personal to him and *things he’s seen” or “things he
heardd” Coupled with his use of such imprecise language, the use of such anecdoles create a
significant threat of prejudice when considered by a jury. I many” means anywhere “between
3 or an unlimited number,” as Dr. Duke sugpgested, then different jurors will aitach their own
definition to the term potentially placing greater tmport on Dr. Duke’s observations than he cven
mtended. Because differen people attach vastly dificrent opinions about the meaning of Dr,

Puke's words, and because De, Duke himsel [ uses difforent definitions for the words he uses in

hig reports from one day to the next, such opinions do nat assist the trier of fact,

Hallmark,

. Dy, Pule Exceeds the Scope of His Qualifications When He Offers Opinions (n
Mualingering, Secondury Gain, Depression and Anxiety Withont A Propen
Nenropsyehaologival Werkup,

The third prong of Hallmark requires that the expert’s “testimony must be Hmited 1o
matters within the scope of his or her speciafized knowledge” The record in this case also
cstablishes that Dr, Duke repeatedly offers opinions that exeecd the scope of his specialized
knowledge, and exceed his role as a Rule 35 Examiner,
The BPS mode! that B Duke adheres to s heavily dependent upon a thorough analysis

of psychological factors, 14 is evident from bis testimony and From reviewing his reports, tha

24
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Dr. Duke frequently exceeds the scope of his qualifications as a spine surgeon when rendering
opinions with regard to psychotogical issues such as malingering, secondary gain, depression,
and anxiety, The Court notes that on the very first day of his testimony, D, Duke informed the
Court of his ability to diagnose and treat depression and anxicty without the need  for
navropsychometric testing, and often mercly by talking with them. See 7/8/16 Hr, Tr. ai 35:4-
36:16.

Dr. Duke is noi o psychoelogist, and he does not use the DSM in his practice. He does not
administer newropsychological testing, Dr. Duke testified that he only includes a diagnosis of
anxiety or depression in a medical legal report when another treating physician has already made
the diagnosis, however, Dr, Duke’s reparts and prior deposition lestimony  demonstrate
otherwise, The Court reviewed multiple reports where Dy, Duke relied upon @ patient’s self-
reporting of depression and anxiety, which in some instances occurred a substantial amount of
ftrne before the subject incident,  In one report Dr. Duke relied solely on the patient’s self-
reporting of a specific 6 month period of depression (after his father died). Despite having no
current diagnosis and no information regarding the prior diagnosis of depression, Dr, Duke
report included a current disgnosis ol depression in his report, and sugpested the plam(iT was
depressed from (1) being "misinformed” of his medical condition by his treating physician; and
(2} by the mere fact this patient was invelved in litigation,

Q. So you were suggesting heve that Drr, Prater's diagnosis 4 causing this patient's

depression?

Al - Tean't gather that from -~ from this.

Q. You are speculating that Dr, Prater's dingnosis could lead to concern by

this patient and that such concern could lead to depression, right?

A. Possibly,

(. Okay. Bui you really dow't know cither way if Dr, Prater's diagnosis had any

psychological impact on this patient at all, right?

A Notas T st here today, no.

D/8/16 41 22:63-23:16, at 25:6-12; see also D-000528 {emphasis added),

25
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In another ease, Dr, Duke included a non-sceident related diagnosis of “Possible
psychological factors affecting his general medical condition” for a plaimtifl with no hislory of
mental health issues. Dr. Duke made this conclusion based upon the person’s “affect” during the
Rule 35 examination. Dr. Duke, however, never even described the affeet in the physical
examination seclion of his report, Sce Report D-001447,  Once again, this diagnosis was
inctuded without any review of any mental health records or prior diagnoses of anxiety or
depression.

Or, Duke is not qualiticd to diagnose anxiety or depression, and he should net speculate
as 1o their “possible™ impact on a plaintiff®s condition.  Such opinions lack foundalion, are vot
rehable, and are more prejudicial than probative, Indecd, the frequency of D, Duke's improper
discugsions of paychological issues is reflected by the Fact that he includes such discussions i
43.4% percent of his reports, This is despite the fact that Dr. Duke testified that he linds anxiety
and depression in only (0% of his own patients - consistent with the general population. See
T/8/16 Fr. Tr. at 61:22-62:1,

2 D, Duke Exceeds The Scope of Rule Examiner When He Inguirves Into Matters
freelevant to a Rule 35 Examination,

The record in this case demonstrates that Dr, Duke frequently goes beyond the scope of a
Rule 35 Examiper, and the Court finds that there was sufficient evidence produced during the
hearing that established that Dr. Duke truty failed to understand his role as o Rule 33 xaminer.
Instead of conducting a straight-forward injury/causasion analysis, Dr. Duke frequemly detoured
into the realm of advocacy by conducting “defacto depositions” and discovery.

Based upon evidence produced at the hearing, Dr, Duke attempts 1o freat patients, openty
disugroes with their currenl treadment plan, and often cnunsc{s them regarding whal changes he

believes should be made to their treatment plan, Dr. Duke testificd that he often includes

26

APP-1444




=
-
2
[

¥
L

I
L]

B
o

26
27
28

opinions aboul “possible” treatment constderations that do not rise to a reasonable degree of
medical probability, simply becsuse he wants to cducate the examinee’s treating physicians or to
assist In the examined’s future, unknown treatment plan,

Regardless of whether Dy, Duke is motivated by the best mterests of the patient or by
some other sell-interest, his role as a Rule 35 Examiner 1 simply to evaluate whether the injury
in controversy was related to the subject incident. A Rule 35 Examiner's role is nol 10 insert
himsell inlo the patient’s ongoing medical treatment, to advise the patient to disregard his or her
treating physician’s instructions, or to counscl the patient about what he beligves s the proper
treatment plan,

Dr. Duke also frequently inquires into matters regarding litigation, including when the
plaintifT hired an atormey and whether the plaintiff s treating on liens. Dr. Duke should never
question an examines on when he or she retained a tawyer, as such information is not relevant to
a forensic injury/causation Rule 33 examination, He certainly shouwld nol comment on the
ongoing litigation and weigh in on what he believes to be the weaknesses of the plainiifTs case,

The Court s particufarly copeemed with the audio recording of the Ribora Rule 33
examination. Although Dr. Duke believed the audio to be incomplete, he acknowledged that it
was his voiee on the recording, and that he had heard the Ribera recording before this hearing,
Do Duke also testified that he had no reason to belicve that his examination of Mr. Ribera
deviated from his typicad Ride 35 examination, See 7/8/26 M, Troal 222:47.20. In that exam,
Dr. Duke essentially arpued with Mr, Ribera, told hiny that even a 60 mph crash would not cause
the nead for back surgery, told him that the need for back surgery s known within 10 minutes of
an ineident, and that 99 percent of poople who have back surgery are not in motor vehicle

crashes. See Ribers Transeript at 29:1-25,

APP-1445



e
O
Z
2

EGLET

3

h s

i3
14
15
14
17
18

The Court is concerned that Dr. Duke conducted a “de facto deposition™ of Mr. Ribera,
This is troubling becavse plaintiffs ordered to undergo such examinations are allegedly njured,
are vulnerable, and are subjecting themselves to a stranger for medical exam under court order,
The most troubling thing about this Rule 35 examiner conducting a “*de facto deposition,” is that
it iy done with none of the safeguards of an actual deposition. These plamtitfy are foreed to
appear with no witnesses and no legal ropresentation, There 15 no court reporter and there is no
record of what questions are asked or whal the answers were. Discussions such as those on the
Ribera vecording could also be construed as unauthorized communications with a represenied
party - which is highly inappropriate. Moreover, Dir. Duke’s Report becomes the “record” ol
what oceorred duving the cxamination, and its Dr. Duke’s word against the plaintiff’s ifthercis a
disagreement as o what actually occurred during the exam,  Any such dispute covld result in
tremendous prejudice to the Plaintiff,. As the Court in White v, Stare Form Mur. Auto. Iny, Co.,
OBO S, 2d | (LaApp. 3 Cin 1996) noted,

More importantly, in instances where the basis of an expert opinion {whether

iterated by a charlatan or a prince) is beyond the common knowledge of the jury.

the jury can be deprived of the ability to objectively and rationally evaluate the

merit of the expert's opinion. It is precisely in such instances that a retained

expert's ‘apparent objectivity’ can carry ‘undue weight' with the jury. (citations

omitted),

Thus, precautions must be taken lest a retaiped expert's testimony, 'dressed up

and sanctified as the opinion of an expert,’ be permitied to unduly influence

the jury., These precautions include enabling parties litigant o discover an

eapert’s bias by discovery or subpoena, o present evidence of such bias to the

trier of fact and, in extreme cases, to have the experl's festimony declored

inadmissible

680 50.2d at 13, (emphasis in original)

A logk at (he entirely of the examination reveals cven more evidence that Dr, Duke

exceeds the scope of bis role as & Rule 35 examiner, Dr. Duke appears to attempt to provide
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legal advice to Mr. Ribera by discussing what he views to be “red flags™ or problems with Mr.
Ribera’s lawsuit,
DR, DUKIEE: The ~ you know, the—1 think part of your - the 1ssue tog with your
case that’s difficult is that — you know, you were seen for a lifting injury at
(unintelligible}—at home, you know, right after the car wicck... you know the
history changed, and T think that's what's got a red flag raised on your case, And
so-—and then to - you know, it makes it very difficult, you know — these kinds of
things, because i's hard 10 go back and undo and erase the - the medical record,
which savs what is say, vou know.
Id, at 21:17-22:11,
Dr. Duke (hen souggests to Mro Ribera that he should use his insurance because,
presumably, he is going (o lose his lawsuit. Id. at 22:12-106.

Although at one point during the hearing Dr. Duke expressed some general regret about his
examinalion of Mr. Ribera, he ultimately refused to indicate exactly what he would change about
his examination,

Q. Well, if you would da it differently, which parts would you do differently?
A. 1 don"t know.

Q. Ckay. S¢ you think you would do something differcntly, bul you can't toll ug
what you would do differently: is that correct?

A, Notas | sit here today,

Soe B/U7A6 Hr, Tr.oat 128:2-8,

Finally, the Court is concerned that Dr. Duke frequently uses his roporls to engage in
unnecessary attacks against the Rule 35 examinee’s treating physicians. In the reports reviewe
by the Court, there are various irrclevant opinions regarding local providers, including: (1) that
“The reputation of Las Vegas spine surgeons nationally s guite poor,” and the treating
physician’s recommendations “represent ample evidence to support this reputation.”; (2) that a
treating physician was “blatantly pandering to those secking to inflate the economic value of
litigation.™; (3) that tocal providers purposely “drive up” the ceonomic value of eases; and {4}
that focal providers were part of a “ring” or engaging in a conspiracy,
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Indeed, in onc report, Dr. Duke describes a provider as being “overtly uncthical” and
deseribed bis reporis as, “lack[ing] professionalism™ and being, “withowt medical basis,
unprofessional, and likely serve to damage {Patiem] psychologically by indicating to him he has
a multitude of injuries and diagnoses that arc not present. Presenting this false information 1o thel
patient could have very serious negative psychological consequences.” Afier discussing this
specific opinion, Dr, Duke confirmed that he found nothing wrong with wvsing s type of]
language in his reports,

Q. Okay. All right. So aceepting that from the Court as what a

Rule 35 cxamination, do you believe the language you used about D, Gross in

this report was appropriate for a Rule 33 report?

A Yes,

See B/17/16 Hre, . at 159:15-20,

On at least one occasion, it also appears that Dr. Duke used his position as a Rule 35
Examiner to obtain information used 1o fle a complaint with the National Associatton of Spine
Surpeons (NASS) alleging malpractice against his former business pariner, Although this
Complaint was later dismissed as lacking merit, a Rule 35 examination should never be used as a
vehicle to settle a score with an ex-partner as the record has established in the instant action.
Such conduct by Dr. Duke strongly suggests a lack of objectivity in his analysis of an injured
claimant, and also evidences an escalation in Dr. Duke’s attacks agoainst local physicians who
treat personal injury paticnis.

These types of inflammuatory opinions regarding treating physicians, litigation, and
personal injury atlomeys, are similar o the inflanmatory opinions the Whire Court found to
evidence “exirome biag,” As an experienced medical expert, Dr, Duke should be fully capabic of
setting forth his medical opinion without the need to hurl insults at providers he disagrees with or
dislikes, Dr. Duke appears to lack objectivity when it comes o assessing the diagnoses of other

providers if different than his, and the language Dr. Duke uses to discuss treating physicians that
30
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could potentially inflame a jury thereby resulting in undue prejudice against a plaintiff’

C. Dr, Duke Often Formulates His Medical  Conclusions  Without A Rule 35
Examination.

Just as an Alabama Court f'om}d with I3, Bavth, Dr. Duke appears fo develop his
causation upinic:;n without the need to conduet 2 Rule 33 examination. e, Duke appears W make
s dingnosis after reviewing the gvailable diagnostic imaging, and then spends the majority of
his report discussing specuiative and unquantified “potential™ risk factors that might {or might
not) be causing the paticats pain,

Pr. Duke has testified that he can typicaily tell if an injury was troumatically induced just
by looking at an MRL Sece 7/8/16 at 46:17-23. He also tostified that he sometimes spends only a
“couple of minutes™ on a physical exam, I, at 282:8-11. Based an the reports revicwed by the
Court, Tir, Duke does not appear to place much relianee on the results of the physical exam, and
the physical examination portion of the reports is typically the least detailed, and contams very
little commentary beyond scoring range of motion. Afier & review of nearly 400 reports by Dr.,
Duke, absent an acute and obvious mjury apparent on an MR, the Rule 35 examination appeary
to be a mere formality that enly provides Dr. Duke with further opportunity 1o obtain
formation from platntilTs, who are present without counsel or witnesses, to provide additional
support to his preconceived opinions,

I}. Dr. Duke’s Reports Themselves Are Unreliable.

e Court also finds that the procedures Dr. Duke utilizes in the preparation of his expert
reports are wnreliable,  Dro Duke's reports are often produced withou! his review, contain

transeription errors, and he faifs to follow the safeguards of accwracy required by the AMA

: Although Defendants argued that expert reports ave not admissible, and therelore the
imflammatory langeage would likely be excluded from trtal, Dr. Duke should not include
language in his reports that he should know is improper, and plaintiffs should not have to expend
valuable time and resources repeatedly challenging such improper opinions,
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Guide to the Evaluation of Disease and Injury Causation (July 26, 2013).  Dr. Duke testified as
follows,

Q. Okay. Want (o go back a litle bit on the record (o see the process, Wlen you
generale a report, how is that done within your office?

A I dictate the audio. 1t's then sent to a transcriptionist. We have several
transeriptionists. They then transcribe the report. s sent 1o my seerctary, And
most oflentimes, 1 tell her to send the veporis, 1o send the report. Somelimes |
review the reporl, And that's how it gets sent oul,

(3. Have any of your reports ever been sent out with errors in them?

AL Sure.
Sec TE/G Hr, Tr. at 74:22-75:9,

D, Duke testificd that he sends out reports without reading them (and atlows his office W
stamp his signature) despile the fact that transcription errors could negatively affect or unfairly
affect an inpured party,

Q. Okay. Thal doesnt answer my question. It is important that you read these
teports to make sure there are no transcription crrors that could negaiively affect
or untiirly affeet an injured party betore these reports are sent out, vight, Doctor?
That's important.

A, 1t can be important.

(. Qkay. And you don't do that, do vou?

A Nol abways.

Q. In fact, you talked 1o us a week and a half ago when you tatked about some of
your reports, and you said, Well, that's my - that's my stamp signature right?

AL Correct,

Q. 50 most of the time you don't read these reports before they go out after
they've been transcribed. You just have your office stamp your signature, right?
AL No, Fwouldn't say most.

Q. Many times, right?

AL - you could say many,

(). Many. Okay.

1, at 7816 Hy, T, st 53:9-54015,
The Court also reviewed two audio recordings of ciaimants who assert that Dr. Duke did
not aceurately represent what occwrred during the examination.  On at keast one oceasion, D
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Duke expressed that he was “fortunate™ to be able to locate the original audio file of his
transcription {which he typically does not save) evidencing that a patient was corrcet about a
major error in & report produced by Dr. Duke, See 9/9/16 He, Tr, at 77:2-12, Specifically, Dr.
Duke’s report gtated a paticat had reported pain in the years before the accident, when she had
suid the opposite.

Expert opinions can potentially make the dilference as to whether a plaimiff receives
compensation lor his or her clainl. For that reason, NRCP 16.1 (2)(2XB) requires that an expert
report be “prepared and signed™ by the witness, 1d. Such a rule is designed to ensure the final
report i actually reviewed by the physician (who must then sign it) - as opposed 1o Dy, Duke's
practice of allowing his office 1o starnp s mame on o transeription without final review,

Accordingly, and notwithstanding this court’s finding that Dr. Duke's Rule 338
sxamination practices fail to neet the assistance requirement under Halfmark and NRS 50.275,
the court is concerpod that he is pot a reliable historian based on evidence ecstablishing that Dr.
Duke maccurately recorded discussions with a Role 35 examinee, There should never be a
factual dispute as (0 what was discussed between a Rule 35 physician and the examinee,
However, when there is a fuctual dispute regarding what was said during a Rule 35 examination,
and because of conflict created hy the physician’s poor record keeping, whether intentionat or
not, this resultz in the expansion of Rule 35 exmmination bevond tnjury/causation analysis and it
becomes 4 litipation tool Lo attack the eredibility of the Rule 35 examinee,

This same cancern applies to allegations of secondary pain/malingering by Dr. Duke,
This is of grave concern fo the Courl because when physicians westify before a jury they are
cloaked with the perception of trustworthingss and belicvability which is difficult 10 overcome,
This perception is elevated under the backdrop of an independent medical examination and
places an additional evidentiary burden on the Rule 35 examinee that 1s collateral 1o the salient
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facts of the case and conlrary 1o the purpose of a Rule 35 examination - which is lo conduct an
injury/causation analysis.

"he Court is therefore concerned sbout Dr. Duke's roporting practices because of the
potential a jury will be highly tkely to belicve D Duke, and not the plaimiff, gtven a
disagreement about what actually occurred during the cxamination. Dr. Duke has demonstrated a
lack of care or concern that his reports are complete or even accurate, and he testified that he has
ng intent o change his practices.

Near the end of the hearing, counse! for Plaimi(f gave Dr. Duke a full opportunity 1o
oxplain anything he might change in the way he conducts his Rule 35 examinations of prepares
his reports, and he could not think of anything,

Q. After going through these numerous days of examination, Doctor, is there
anything you would change about the way you conduct your Rule 35
examinations or write your reports?

A. 1 can't point to anything specilically, but

I'm sure cverything in life has some impact on what you do.

Q. As we sit here today, you cannol tell us that you weould in any way change the
way you conduct your

Rulc 35 examinations or the way you write your reports,

Is that a fair statement?

A. Not precisely, bul again some language I certainly would probably change. But
| cen't point to anything specifically.

). Az we sit here you can't tell us anything you would change, correct?

A. Well, not specifically.

Q. Weil, that is the question.

A. 1know. And I'm answering it

(. Okay. Thark you,

Sce 9/9/16 Mr. Tr. at 137:2-21.

Based on the forcgoing, the court hereby affirms the Degision of Discovery
Commissioner Bulla.  In addition, based on the totality of the evidence produced at the
evidentiary hearing, the Court expands the decision to preclude Dr. Duke from performing a

Rule 35 examination based on  history of personal bias as to some treating physicians and
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bl extrome bias resulting in prejudice against personal infury plaintiffs.
2 Lastly, Dr. Duke shali be excluded from conducting # Rule 35 examination in this matier
3
for the failure to mect the assistance requirement under Hallmark and NRRS 50.275,
4
5 ITIS 50 ORDERED,
. 3, 2017
6
7 ,-j ; i ,@k_gh/ :
8 .Ii)fxs‘"fmrf:'r/(“cmr{'r JUDGE .
9
10
1 SUBMITTED BY: APPROVED BY:
12 EGLFI‘)‘RIN CE/ LAW ()17]5‘1(.12‘5 OF KARL H. SMITH
(4 Il ROBERLT. EGLET, ESQ, .
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15 i Las Vegas, Nevada 80101 P.O. Box 258829
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Page 1

TRANSCRIPT OF MEDICAL EXAMINATION

Transcribed from
DVD provided by

Richard Johnson, Esg.

Transcribed by: Jennifer A, Clark, RDR, CCR #422

Rocket Reporting
702.8Rocket (702.876.2538)
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2 {Pages 2 to 5)

i A e o
Page 2% Fage 4 [;
1 DR. DUKE: What - what kind of - how 1 MR, RIBERA: Yes.
2 did you get run in - or what was the mechanism of 2 DR DUKE: - to get some laser spine
3 the action of the accident? 2 surgery?
4 MR, RIBERA: Ay - as far 4 MR. RIBERA: Correct.
5 as (unimeligible) -- 5 DR. DUKE: Which -- which never works, [
& DR, DUKE: What - what agtually & MR, RIBERA: | had D, Flangas say the
7 happened during the car wreek? 7 same thing.
g8 MR, RIBERA: The -- the vehicle got hit g DR. DUKE: We thought about -- we were  §
% from the side by -« from a vehicle that was coming 9 renaming our office. We were going to rename it to
10 down poing eastbound on Charleston right where the 10 the Laser Spine Institution Correction -«
11 Home Depot there is on Hualapai and Charleston, The fi1 MR. RIBERA: Correction facility, A
12 inlet that -~ 12 DR, DUKE: Correction Facility, yeah.
13 DR. DUKE: Uh-huh. 13 MR. RIBERA: Soare you gettingalotel  F
14 MR. RIBERA: Right where you come outof  §14  patients back from that?
15 the parking ot 15 DR, DUKL: Oh, yeah. Tons.
id DR, DUKE: So the other vehicle got hit, 16 MR. RIBERA: Do youreally? Youknow, |}
17 pushed into you - 17 it's funny, ‘cause the pain was different when 1
18 MR, RIBERA: No. He hitus. We were - 18 first went in there. B was - it was more of a -- i
12 he was blindsided from a vehicle that was turning 149 ir was sharper before the surgery. Like, [ mean,
20 into the Home Depot parking lot. That's why he was 20 -~ well, now | can tolerate sining down, Before
21 neverseen. e was behind him, so he wasn't seen 21 the surgery, { couldn't. | mean, 1 couldn't sit
24 until he was coming out further. And he came and 22 down more than 15, 20 minules, and [ had to getup. §
23 hit the -~ hit the - hit the whole guarter panel 23 1had to be walking around, and that took the pain
24 side and then spun the whole truck around. Andthen 324 away.
25 shey deemed it - they totaled it, | guess. 25 DR, DUKE: So what -- what pain were you E
Page 3 Page 5 '
1 DR, DUKE: Did you get knocked owt? 1 looking to et rid of with laser spine surgery?
2 MR, RIBERA: Did 1 get knocked out? 2 MR, RIBERA: Kind of what I'm feeling :
3 DR. DUKE: Yeah 3 right now. Ithought it was going to be gong :
4 MR. RIBERA: Nuo, no. 4 complately. 1 mean, that was (unintelligible) «
5 DR, DUKE: Okay. Did vou have a seal 5 DR, DUKE: What exactly are you feeling?
& belton? & Idon't know that.
7 ‘MR, RIBERA:; Did | what? 7 MR, RIBERA: It's kind of a numbness and
8 DR, DUKE: Have a seat belt on? g aburning down right at the tattbone, right -- right
g MR, RIBERA: Yes. 9 atthe base, tike -
10 [DR. DUKE: Okay. These are just 10 DR, DUKE: In the middle?
11 standard questions, 11 MR. RIBERA: Right in that arcavight in
12 MR, RIBERA: No problem, 12 there.
13 DR. DURE: And did you get taken to the 13 DR. DUKE: Okay. Soright in the i
14 hospital or anything like that? 14 middie. ;
15 MHE, RIBERA: No. 15 MR, RIBERA: Like right down below i
ia DR, DUKE: When did you first seck 16 the - hike, almest like the bottom of the - the
17 medical attention? 17  bone. You know, 'cause | guess that's the bottom of
18 MR, RIBERA: It was a few weeks 18 your spine right down there,
19 afterwards is when T {irst sought medical attention. 319 DR, DUKE: Xd you have any feg pain
20 Ithought the pain was just going (0 go away, and it §20  before the laser spine surgery?
21 npeverdid, so that's when | decided to go in when 21 WR. RIBERA: No.
22 | -- whenl couldn't take it no longer. 22 DR, DUKE: Did you have any after?
23 DR, DUKE: Okay. And now lets - lat's 23 MR. RIBERA: 1t -- the pain came and
24 goover - you -~ you had -- you went down to 24 went. It --the lefi - the pain in my left leg
2% Scottsdale - 25  comes and poes. It doesn't -« it's pot there gvery

Rocket Reporting

702.8Rocket (702.876.2538)
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3 {Pages & to 9)

Page &9 Fage & &
I day. -l MR RIBERA: [ think it's atiributed to
& DR. DUKE: When did it start? & but - *
3 MR. RIBERA: H's kind of there every 3 DR. DUKE: Did you make a claim for it,
4 day. 4 though? Mave you sued them for neck symptoms?
! Fuh? 5 MR. RIBERA: Oh, well, just the whole
& DR, DUKE: When did it start? &  back. I mean, that's part of the back, isn't it?
1 MR, RIBERA: [t started sometime after 7 DR DUKE: Well, usually people, they
8 that, you know. | didn't - | didn't notice it 8 sue for their lumbar spine or their cervical spine.
9 until | just felt a frequent pain, 1t was not g MR. RIBERA: Oh, I mean, I didat
10 frequent but just pain that was coming in my lefi 10 realize -1 mean, I - | get treatments for that.
11 leg, and it would be kind of numbing. And twould §131 | get massages for that and stuff like that from --
12 last for a week -- it would last anywhere from three 512 I've had people come to the house and the gntire -
13 or four days to a couple of weeks, and then it would  §13  you know, other massage therapists,
14 goaway. 14 DR, DUKE: Let's -- let's go over
15 DR. DUKE: Uh-huh. 18 your -
18 MR, RIBERA: And then & month later, it LG MR. RIBERA: But -- but not necessarily :
17 would be back. And 1o -- you know, you couldi't do §17  saying, you know, this is, you know -
18 this, you couldn't do that and pet comfortable. 18 DR, DUKE: Okay. Let's go over your
19 You -- you sit on the couch, elevate it, and just 19 current symptoms starting with the most severe,
20 whatever you did -- 20 Number one, what's the most severa
21 DR DUKE: Uh-huh. 21 symptom you have? j
22 MR, RIBERA: - it wouldn't get -- 22 MR, RIBERA: It's - it's the L4-L.3-81
23 wouldn't be comfortable. And that's - 23 pain,
24 DR, DUKE: So the -« the -- the symptoms 24 PR, DUKE: Let me just - just tell me
25 .that you had surpery for at the Laser Spine 25 . what the symptoms are, 1f vou use L4-5, that's a
Bage 7 tage 9
b Institte was pain and burning at the bage of your diagnosis.
2 spine MR. RIBERA: Okay. Well, ! just thought
3 MR. RIBERA; Yes. I didn't notice this from what the doctors say, it's just - the pain
4 until after, and if it was there before, | - level, Lower back? Ts that fair enough?

DR. DUKE: How long after?

° DR, DUKE: So low back pain.
] MR. RIBERA: Iean't recall, |--1
¥

MR, RIBERA: Yes. That's the more

realty dont -« I reatly dor't kKnow, 10 be honest SEVEFE.
B owith you, You know, like | sald, i could have been DR, DUKE: So low back pain is number :
9 there hefore it, and it's still there now and [ just one. It's kind of like right a1 the belt ting; is

that right?
MR, RIBERA: Beittine? No, { think

10 never noticed it.
11 You know, | do have very -~ I have - |

i fea
B0 £ wF O LD LI R e

12 have a high wlerance for pain, so when I have pain §12  it's below the belt line.

13 inmy body, 'm usually -~ itU's at the exireme 13 DR. DUKE: Below the belt line,

14 before goin, 14 MR. RIBERA: Yeah.

15 DR, DUKLE: What kind of work do you do? §i5 DR. DUKE: Does it go into the buttocks

16 MR. RIBERA: ['m a serviceman for 16 atall?

17 elevators. 17 MR. RIBERA: Vaguely. 1 mean, even

18 DR DUKE: Okay. Now, in your -- 18 if - if it does too much, 1 really don't notice it

18 your -- no neck symptoms, no arm symploms that 1% 'vause of the - the spot right at the -- at the

20 you're -~ that you're treating for right now; 20 base of -~ that's where the main burden of the pain

21 correct? 21 isat i
22 MR, RIBERA: Noarms, butl -1 had a 22 DR. DUKE: S0 really no butiock pain.
23 bunch of pain in the back of the neck leading up - §23 MR, RIBERA: Nol reaily, no. :
£4 DR, DUKE: Are you relating it to the 24 DR, DUKE: And often do you get the leg  §
25 accident or nat? Do voy think - 25  pain? l

Rocket Reporting
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4 (Pages 10 to 13)

o
Page 101 Page 12
1 MR. RIBERA: 1 would say -- | wouid say 1 feels like.
2 | probably get it once every six weeks to two i DR. DUKE: What are your - yout current
3 months, and it Iasts for a week or two. 3 medications include morphing?
4 DR. DUKE: What part of the leg does i 4 ME. RIBERA: Yes,
2 involve? b DR. DUKE: Do you take that every three
& MR, RIBERA: What -- only this left leg. &  hours?
7 DR. DUKE: (Unintelligible.) 7 MR. RIBERA: Every four to six hours.
i MR. RIBERA: Never the right leg. 8 DR. DUKE: | mean, that's an owtrageous
9 DR. DUKE: Pardon me? 8 amount. Wow, 5o -
10 MR. RIBERA: It's like right in the -- 10 MR. RIBERA: 1 probably take about a .
11 is this the quad? 11 fouraday. Sol take one - and U'm just aking
1z BR. DUKE: The top of the thigh? 12 the same thing on Percocet.
13 MR. RIBERA: Yeah, quad area and kind of §13 DR. DUKE: Who's got your on the drugs?
14 poes through down here. And then with that at 14 MR. RIBERA: Dr. Erkulwater,
1% times, 'l get this tingling in my -- 1 know you 15 DR. DUKE: Okay. Wow.
16 puys described as something Hke needles. 16 MR. RIBERA: Sputhern Nevada Pain
17 PR, DUKE: Uh-huh. 17 Center,
18 MR. RIBERA: Pins and needles, that's 18 DR. DUKE: Do you -« do you know that
12 whenl get on -- on -- on the left -- on the left 19 these are highly, highly addictive?
20 foot arca. And then but -- but that that doesn't 20 MR. RIBERA: Uh-huh,
21 always come with this. Sometimes this pain is here §21 DR. DUKE: How long tolal have you been
22 without that pain, As a matter of fact, whenlwas  §22  on the narcotics?
23 outinyour lobby waiting, I had the left -- 1 had 23 MR. RIBERA: T switched 10 the morphine
24 the tingling in the left foot, 24 on-
25 DR, DUKE: Okay, N DR, DUKE: Just narcotics in general.
Page 11 page 13 [
1 MR, RIBERA: Almost like a numbniess, 1 MR. RIBERA: Oh, shit, Fromthe -1 -
2 like it's -- almost like it's fallen asleep, but | Z  lam going to say since May - I'm golng to say
3 know -- and I thought that -- there's -- there's no 3 abouwt mid May 2007,
4 pressure on it. 1t shouldn't be falling asleep. 4 DR, DUKE: Had you ever been on
5 There's nothing - 5 narcotics before?
& DR, DUKE: Okay. Number 27 7 MR. RIBERA: No, never, never,
7 MR, RIBERA: That kind of feeling,. 7 DR. DUKE: Never (unintefligible) -
B DR, DUKE: What's the second most 8 MR. RIBERA: Not that | could remember.
% problematic thing? We can -- we can call that 2. %  Imem,]--
19 What would be number 37 10 DR, DURE: (Unintetligible) Long-term
11 MR, RIBERA: Okay. The mid back. 11 e
12 DR. DUKE: (Unintelligible.) 12 MR. RIBERA: Yes, yeah, You know, l'in
13 MR, RIBERA: And -- and Hke T said, 13 nota-- | might have gone in Tor something in the
14 that's being overshadowed by -- by evarything that's 14 past and | had something that | didi't realize
15 happened with the lower back. 15 wag -
16 DR. BUKE: Okay. 16 PR, DUKE: Any kind of drug use?
17 MR. RIBERA: And the neck. [ would say §17 MR, RIBERA: No.
18 that those two things -- 18 DR. DUKE: Have you ever been through
19 DR. DUKE: Okay. 19 any addictions?
20 MR, RIBERA: 1 mean, anytime | move my  §20 MR. RIBERA: No.
21 neck, there's -~ | muean, there's -- there's - it 21 DR, DUKE: Programs?
22 just - it feels like all the muscles are tight in 22 MR, RIBERA: No (unintelligible).
23 the neck. 23 DR, DUKE: Alcoholism? MNo aleohol
24 DR, DUKE: What are the - 24 addiction?
25 MR, RIBERA: That's kind of what it - 25 . _MR. RIBERA: No.
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Page 14 page 16§
1 DR, DUKE: And then what about have you 1 alleviste the pain and -- and --
2 ever had a - you know, a worker's comp elaim z DR. DUKE: What -- what percentage of
3 before? 3 your pain went away with surgery? '
MR. RIBERA: Worker's comp claim? 1 4 MR, RIBERA: It changed. It didn't -«
S don't think so, no. 5 it dign't - [ wouldn't say it went away. 1t just
5 DR, DUKE: Okay. Yeah, this 15 just 6 changed to kind of a - I
7 standard stuft, 7 DR DUKE: 5o overall -
g MHE. RIBERA: Yeazh, no problem. 8 MR. RIBERA: Yeazh, | would say -- i
E DR DUKE: st standard stuff, 9 would say -- well, enough that T can sit down in a
10 Any other car wrecks? 10 chair now and take it Tor at least an hour before
il MR. RIBERA: 1 did get in a little 11 I'h-- P'mo-- iUs driving me nuts,
12 fender-bender that I ran -~ [ ran into & guy ahead 12 DR DUKE: So would you have done it
13 of me at a stop lght that { - this is after the 13 again? Would vou do it agam?
14 accident. It's probably about nine months ago, but 14 MR. RIBERA: Would 1 do it again? Good
15 it was nothing, 1t was no - 15  question. Knowing what T know right now with the - §
14 DR, DUKE: There was (unintelligible) -- 16 with the pain still there, [ would say -~ T would
17 MR. RIBERA: -- ¢laim, yeah, 17 say no.
1g DR. DUKE: Did he claim an injury? 18 I had to pay a lot of money out of my
13 MR, RIBERA: No, no. Tt was just, like, 19 pocket too, That was the screwy thing, 'cause
20 he didn't even - you know, it was nothing really - 20 they - you koow, you have to get, you know, med -
21 you know, being honest, vou know, to tell you abowt §23  what do you call #t? Med -~ Med Choice. s thm
22 that, it was just something that | just bumped into 22 what it's called? Yeah,
23 the guy on, 8o yeah, no -~ no -- no report was 23 DR. DUKE: Yeah, And so -
24 done. He didn't ask lor any insurance thing to fix 24 MR. RIBERA: And ua lot of people
25 his car or whaleyver so - 25 referred you too, and 1 just took -- I took another :
Paga 15 Page 17
1 DR, DUKE: Sure, sure. 1 route because [ didn't hear about you until :
2 MR, RIBERA: You know {unintelligible}, 2 afterwards (uninteligible), That's how that goes,
3 you look ai the (unimtelligible), you see the 3 PR, DUKE: Let me - let me check your -
4 light's green so you start coasting. Oh, shoot, 4 strength now.
& DR, DURE: Right, right, ) Dr. Flangas is excellent.
6 MR. RIBERA: One of those, 6 MR. RIBERA: Is he? :
7 DR, DUKE: Now -- akay, How did you gel 7 DR, DUKE: Oh, yeah,
&  down to the Laser Spine Institute? 8 MR, RIBERA: Okay. :
9 MR. RIBERA: How did [ get down? G DR, DUKE: Let's check your sirengthout
10 DR, DUKE: Yealh. I mean, did -- was 10 here. -
11 it - how were you referred down there? 11 MR. RIBERA: Al right.
12 MR, RIBERA: Oh, oh, oh, oh. Well, a 1R DR, DUKE: Hold your arms like this real
13 lady at -~ a friend of curs, my wife and I, at 13 stiff, yeah, Hold it there. Now like this and puil
14 Choice Center of Las Vepas said that she had surgery £14  and pull. And push towards me, push, and push,
15 from Dr. Perry in Scots - in Tamps, Florida, and 15 Fingers apart, real Far apart, real far aparl, ;
16 she recommended me just 1o go take a fook st it 16 Good. Fingers up amd pull. And puli,
17 so we did. We did some research online, 17 Then raise up your knees straight up.
18 and ] called them up, and they sent me some stuff 1% Tothe side. Leg straight out like this. Pull your
19 (unintelligible), 1%  toes back. This side straight out. Poll your toes
20 I listened to some of the - you know, 20 back. Excellent,
21 the -- the golfers that are on there. They pot the 23 S0 the strength test is good,
22 one professional goHer saying, yeah, you know, all 22 S0 just any other -- the low back pain,
%3 his pain went away and all that 5o -- vou know, when §23  that's really the main thing.
#4  you're - when you're in pain, you're - you're 24 MR. RIBERA: Oh, 'd give anything for

untintetlipibie) to anything at that point to get - 25 il

25
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1 DR, DUKE: Yeah. Do yvou know that -- 1 attack? 1 mean, what would you do with me?
2 how hard it is for your body to get rid of back pain Z PR, DUKE: You get rid of the drugs
3 when you're on opiates? Did anybody talk to you 3 first, and then you get through that. And you know,
4 about that? 4 on opiates for four years, that's a major problem,
5 MR. RIBERA: No. 5 ‘cause your body gets used to it. You get addicted
& PR, DUKE: 1t's super hard. And -- and &  to it 50 sometimes you have to see an addiction
7 there's a iot of studies that show that being on 7 medicine specialist.
8 oplates chronically impairs your body's ability to e MR. RIBERA: Really? | bet you | could
9 pet rid of aches and pains, low back pain. And 9 quit tomorrow,
10 there's some studies that suggest that it won't -- 10 DR. DUKE: Boy, 1 teil you, that weuld
11  dhat it won't go away once it gets started and you 11 be the best thing you ever did.
12 start the oplates. 12 ME. RIBERA: [ -- ! would just be in
13 MR. RIBERA: Why would they 13 pain, and that would be the pait that sucks,
14 DR. DUKE: 'Cause it down regulates your  §14 DR, DUKE: Yeah. But -- and the pain
15 opiate receptors. [t shuls down your endorphin 15 wonld be worse than while you were o it too
leé  system. 16 because, you know, you're hypersensitized 1o pain,
17 MR, RIBERA: To heal? 17 sothe pain level goes up. It actually takes, bike,
i DR. DUKE: Correct. 18 three months for it {o come down again, and pain
18 And it hypersensitizes your body 1o 19 levels drop. 1tiakes a while and -- it takes about
20 pain. It also blunts and masks some of the 20 three months for people to say I'm not in any more
21 protective things that should be dong to help it go 21 pain than whenever | was taking the drugs. By month
22 away, but since you're on the morphing, those get 22 four, about a hundred percent of people are better
23 Dblocked so you do things you shouldn't do, and then §23  than they were taking the drugs.
24 youend up just redamaging it. So it's like 24 MR. RIBERA: Really?
2% shooting up vour knee with lidocaine ina -- 1n a (25 DR, PURE: Yesh.
Page 19 Fage 21
1 football playver and having him po out and play 1 MR. RIBERA: So now they're just dealing
2 anyway, and they end up just wrecking their knee. 2 wiih that ~- that little bit of pain without the
A MR. RIBERA: Because they don't - 3 drugs.
4 because -- right. A DR BUKE: Correct. But it's better,
3 DR, DUKE: They don't feel it, 5 It's better. And I've had innumerable patients, |
& MR. RIBERA: Recause they're not &  mean, more than | can count that thought they needed
T (unintelligible) « T surgery, but we got them off the drogs, and in fouy
B DR, BUKE: Yes. - B months, Fdon't need surgery, you know, They said
i MR. RIBERA: - major injury because 9 1. my pain is so much better. | thought [ needud
10 they don't feel it. 10 surgery, but | don't.
11 DR. DUKE: Correct, il MR, RIBERA: Huh.
12 MR. RIBERA: Right, L2 DR, DUKE: S0 1 would - hefore 1
13 DR. DUKE: And so you're deing things 13 committed myself to having my back sticed open
14 you probably shouldn't be doing, movements that are 14 again, that's - thai's the rowte | would go.
15 exacerbating the pain, hypersensitization to pain, 15 ME. RIBERA: Okay.
16 N itis a disaster, 16 DR, DUKE: You know, it's my advice.
17 MR, RIBERA: Qkay. 17 The -= you know, the -- | think part of
13 DR, DUKE: And -- and pretty much use of 18 your -- the issue loo with your case that's
19 long-term, high-dose, you know, morphing, it's 19 difficult is that — and I think what's raized red
20 just been completely abandaned. And it's shocking  §20  flags is that | - you know, you were seen for this
21 that -- that you're being managed that way because I §21  difting injury at (unintelligible) - at home, you
22 can - | would bet any amount of money that ne 22 know, right after the car wrack, And then you had
23 matter what s done, you will not get better as long 23 several noles that sald onset of pain, two weeks
24 as you have the drugs onboard. 24 ago, like, in -~ in mid May, you know, a month after
25 MR, RIBERA: So what's the plan of 25 the accident.
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1 You wrote a letter to Blue Cross/Blue 1 they had -- they brought me in and out of the
2 Bhield saying that I'm not being treated for a car 2 anesthesia. They talked to me. 1 -- 1 remember 1
#  wreek, | had a lifting injury at home. 1 was 3 that. And they would say do you fee] anything now |
4 lifting cabinetry. And then it was only later that 4 and -- and - and | remember swearing and using foul |
5 itswitched. You know, the history changed, and 5 language like a mad man. And then they would - | I
¢ think that's what's got a red flag raised on your 6 was out, and then they kept doing that back and
7 ease. And so -- and then to — you know, it makes 7 farth, And T could hear the pinging sound, abmost i
B it very difficult, vou know, those — those kind of g  like an MR! kind of a spund. And 1 don't know if
9  things, because it's hard to go back and undo and 9 that was just the dissect -- discotomy thing that
10 crase the -- the medical record, which says what it 10 they were doing, cleaning the disc up around the -
11 says, you know, 11 arownd the thing or what but -
12 Hopefully you have medical insurance and 12 DR. DUKE: They did a plasma disc
13 can cover future treatment as you need it. 13 decompression. Did they tell you that's an I
14 MR, RIBERA: Uh-huh. 14 experimental procedure, nonstandard?
15 DR. DUKE: Litigating it is going to be 15 MR.RIBERA: | know we talked. I know
1€ very, very difficult. Just -- just -- 16 we sat and we talked, and we have a counsel thing,
17 MR. RIBERA: How else — won't the 17 You know, you're up there for five days, You
18  attorneys -- won'l the attorneys hash that out 18 wenl -- you went there and - and they sent me up
1% because that's what they're there for? 19 for-- for some x-rays up there because mine weren't |
20 DR. DUKE: Absolutely. 20 comect when they shot. The MRIs were good thatl |
Z1 MR. RIBERA: I mean, building cabinets, 21 sentup. They could use those, i
22 what -- what - that's what | was doing at the 22 And then the next day was a consultation
23 time - at the time. Then when they asked me, 23 with the doctor, | think the third day was the
24 what - what were you doing at the time of the 24 surgery. That was on a Friday.
25 eiDjury? | was doing cabinets in the garage when my k25 DR, DUKE; Lih-htih, ;
Page 23 Page 29
1 son picked me up so - and then, you know, we'll let 1 MR, RIBERA: [ had (o stay over the
2 them hash that out. Z  weekend and come back on the Monday and then be
3 DR DUKE: Yeah, absolutely, 3 seen - be seen betore | pot sent home.
4 MR. RIBERA: Yeah, so - 4 DR, DUKE: Okay,
5 PR DUKE: Soveah, 1tis what it is, 5 MR. RIBERA: ButI dont know. 1 mean,
g MR. RIBERA: Yeah. & it's weird, 'cause all the people that - it's funny
7 DR, DUKE: So anyway, any -- any 7 ‘cause the people that were all coming out of the
G other — you mentioned your current sympioms. You § 8 surgery, all -- all of them felt better when they
9 mentioned your -- your current medications, your 9 came out, [ mean, you heard all the stories from
1 current, you know, exam. 10 all the people that were - you know, people that
11 Oh, can T sec the incision they did for 1% were there, like, on their fourth day and they said,
12 that surgery that they did at Laser Spine. 12 oh. 1 feel great right now and all this horse - you
13 MR. RIBERA: I'm going 1o assume it's 13 know. Who knows? | mean -
14 back here somewhere, 14 DR, DUKE; Sa the -- let me see here,
15 DR. BUKE: Okay. So you don't really 13 MR. RIBERA: 8o you would never go that
14 see anyihing? 16 route; right?
17 MR. RIBERA: (Unintelligible) It's right 17 DR.DUKE: No.
L8 in, let's say, where [ had that patch at. Maybe 18 Now, you'd had some back pain in your
19 rightinhere? 18 life prior; correct.
20 DR, DUKE: Qkay, Soit's - 20 MR, RIBERA: Yeah, I've had the basic
21 MR, RIBERA: [t's small. 1t was only -- 21 back stuff where, you know, ['ve gone to the
22 1mean, it's -- 22 chiropractors before and then done, you know,
23 IR, DUKE: A little dot. 23 maintenance adjustments, you know. 1 was — T was
24 MR. RIBERA: Yeah, yeah. 24 currently seeing a chiropractor that [ went into,
25 Alll ean remember is | remember they -- 25 like, four limes a year every -- vou know, ever
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Page 26 Page 28 F
i three, four - three, four months, I'd go get an 1 PR. DUKE: And -- and you know therg «-
2 adjustment just to -- just kind of a maintenance 2 there was multiple other records that -- where you
3 thing, you know. 3 were seen after that where you said that the pain :
4 DR. DUKE: Yeah. 4 had started, you know, almost exactly to the same
3 MR. RIBERA: It wasn't like | was going % date that you had the incident in your house, you
& tosee him every week because | was — 1 was —-you § &  know; that basically you'd -- you'd seen several
T know, 'cause 1 was injured or whatever. Nothing 7 physiciang, and 1o none of them did you relate it to
&  like that. 1t was just more -- more maintenance & the car wreek at all. Why - why is that?
& more than anything. g MR. RIBERA: {don't know, ‘cause the
10 DR. DUKE: Has any - 10 car wreck was pretty brutal,
11 MR. RIBERA: Kind of like changing the il DR. DUKE: Uh-huh. £
12 oil 12 MR, RIBERA: 1 don't know. But building
13 DR, DUKE: Has -- has anybody told you 13 cabinets (unintelligible) - that's what T was doing
14 that any of the imaging studies shows evidence of 14 for, like, a whole month, you know. Butyouknow, §
15 imjury to - from the car wreck -- car wreck? 1% it like that's my -- you know, | had a, you know,
14 MR. RIBERA: Well, Flangas -- Flangas 16 cabinet business In the past. [ know what I'm
17 had mentioned to me that he thinks | need surgery., §17  doing. And it's like -- you know, and | know that
i DR. DUKE: But I mean has anybody said 18 was -- Fknow [ was doing that at the time of the
19 this MRI shows damage from your car wreck? 19 accident. Yes, that's what | was doing was building
20 MR, RIBERA: Youknow, | don't know if  §20  cabinets. Ialso was poing to work every day and, '
21 I'm allowed to talk about any of that. 71 you know, mowing my lawn every - once a week and §
2z DR. DUKE: Oh, yes, you are, 1 mean, 22 those standard things in fife, you know, doing -«
23 I+ youknow, basically -- 23 doing the honey-dos around the house,
24 MR. RIBERA: This is medical, That is 24 DR. DUKE: Sure,
26 anexam that youw're giving on me, | mean -- 25 MR. RIBERA: You know, :
Page 27 Page 29 ‘
1 3R, DUKE: Right, right, right, right, 1 PR. DUKE: And you realize that
2 But what | need 10 know is what your understanding 2 99 pereent of people that need back surgery aren't !
3 is of what the films showed to you, you know, 3 inear wreeks. They - they're doing the nonmal
4 what -- how it's been represented to you, you know., 4 ihings. They're - they'te mowing the grass.
5 I mean, that -- | just thought -- has it been 5 They're coughing, sncezing, sitting down. The types
&  represented to you that -- that the films showed 6 of things that people have surgery Tor are sot car
7 damage from the wreck? 7 wrecks,
8 MR, RIBERA: Mo, it -- again, ! don't g MR. RIBERA: Not even getting hit at :
8  know, vou know. U'm going to, you know, leave that 9 60 miles an howr?
18 onealone. 10 DR, DURKE: MNo. That happens - whenever i
11 DR, DUKE: Is 1t -- 11 people need surgery for that, it’s usually instantly
1z MR. RIBERA: Definiiely - definitely it 12 that they need it, like within ten minwes, They go
13 wasn't done building cabinets in my garage that I've 13 tothe hospital, They have a broken back. They
14 been doing for 23 vears, building these kind of 14 have a surgery. Almost never does it end up
15 cheapo lightweight cabinets. 1Ml tell you that 1% resulting in delaying surgery vears down the road. ;
1&  right now. That's just my opinion. Youw've been a 16  Almost never, because the - it's either going to
17 doctor for how many years? 1 mean, I've been 17 damage it, or it's not going to damage it :
18 building cabinets since 1979, you know. I'nt not no 18 And what you have -- what you have MR i
19 weekend lawyer guy that doesa't know what he's doing 1% findings of is degenerative dise discase, which is
20 inthe garage. 20 from age, genctics, building cabinets, walking,
21 DR, DUKDE: Yeah, 21 blah, blah, blah. ¥You know, it's not due t¢ acute
22 MR_RIBERA; You know, it's unfortunale 22 trauma 50 --
23 the way [ wrole up -~ 1 wrote up the thing, vou 23 MR, RIBERA: When it happened, it could
24 ktiow, but it 15 what it 15 on that -- on that 24 have begn the straw that broke the camel's back,
25 record, you know. 3“5 i:!mtigh. -
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1 DR.DUKE: Yeah, Again, ifit-jt 1 dootor. ;
2 breaks it instantly, though, you know, if it -~ if 2 MR. RIBERA: Oh, okay. g
3 it dogs. 3 DR. DUKE: I'd let him operate onme any  §
4 MR, RIBERA: Okay. 4 day.
& DR, DUKE: Twill - | will - and 5 MR. RIBERA: Would you really?
6 you're - fet's see. 1 don't think there's anything & DR. DUKE: Oh, absotutely.
7 else. You've had - you've had only two to three i MR. RIBERA: Good. i
B paininjections? g DR. DUKE: Yeah, he's got great hands.
8 MR. RIBERA: 1 think I've had mmore than 8  He's pot great hands, He really - he's onc of the :
10 that 1 think | had two or three just from Dr, Lee, 10 bestin town for sure.
11 Helefl the -« he lefl the practice years ago. 11 MR. RIBERA: Oh, good, yeah.
12 DR. DUKE: Well, have any of them helped §12 DR. DUKE: Okay.
13 you? 13 MR. RIBERA: Yeah.
14 MR. RIBERA: They seem like they have. 14 DR.DUKE: So anyway -
15 They kind of -- they kind of -- they seem hike 15 MR, RIBERA: Yeah, he mentioned that :
16  they -- they -- they lessen it some. Like, 1 16 30 - he said something about i1 bad surgery that, [
17  probably need to go back and do it again. 17 you know, thete would be, like, a 30 percent chance J
1g DR. DUKE: Briefly, they help? 18  of getting better and a 70 percent chance of staying  E
12 MR. RIBERA: Yeah, they svem like 19  the same or being worse,
20 they're good for, like, three to six monihs, 20 DR, DUKE: Yesh.
21 What's your opinion on them? AL MR. RIBERA: | mean, those aren'todds |
22 DR DUKE: It depends on why you're 27 like to hear.
23 gedting them, you know. That's what really makes §23 DR. DUKE: No, no,
24 the difference there. 24 MR, RIBERA: You know,
25 MR, RIBERA: What's the purpose of them  §43 DR. DUKE: But he's beina truthful, :
Bage 31 Page 33§

1 that it's supposed to de? 1 MR. RIBERA: Yeah. That's -~ that's why |
2 DR, DUKE: Well, in peaple that have % 1 wentto him, 'cause T heard he's a straight-up
3 perve compression and neuropathic pain, like 3 puy.

4 radisting leg pain, that's what it's for, It never -4 DR, DUKE: He's straight - straight-up, F
& works for back pain. & honest guy, yeah. I
& MR. RIBERA: So it - #t would help & MR, RIBERA: Yeah.
7 this? 7 DR, DUKE: Absolutely he ts. Well, ['ll
& DR, DUKE: Well, if - if you had it & take care -
9 more frequently, I would say possibly. But you -- 9 MR. RIBERA: Okay, sir. Thank you for  k
10 you know, you don't have it that ofien. 10 your time,
11 MR. RIBERA: 'Cause my understanding 11 DR, DUKE: You're very welcome and -- :
12 with what Dr, Weiss - Weiss did, whatever his name £12 MR, RIBERA: Qkay. All right.
13 1s, in L8T in Scottsdale, that the nerve was 13 DR, DUKE: Just go owt to the right,
14 rouching, like, the disc and -- and he would clean 14 They'll take care of all the paperwork for you.
15 up around the disc so the nerve -- or use some sort 15 MR. RIBERA: Okay.
16 ofalaser to keep the nerve from touching the disc 1g DR. DUKE: Appreciate it. Bye-bye.
17 sothat that would keep the pain from -- T mean, 17 Take care.
18 that was my kind of understanding of it. [ don't 118 {Unintelligible) Down the hall and then !;§
19 know. 19 gakealeft,
20 DR. DUKE: All right. Well, very good, 20 MR. RIBERA: All the way down?
21 MR. RIBERA: All right, sir, 21 DR. DUKE: Yeah,
22 DR, DUKE: Yeah, [ wish vou the very 22 MR. RIBERA: Okay. See you later,
23 best ofluck, 23 {End of recording.) |
24 MR RIBERA: All right. 24

25

DR, DUKE: Dr. Flangas is an excellent
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corporation; Home Depot USA, Inc, a
foreign corporation; KSUN
Manufacturing, a foreign corporation;
Does 200 through 300 inclusive;, and
11{ ROE Corporation 301 through 400;

o N+ 2~ T V. B = 1

Third-Party Defendants.

HsP LAW

13
14 Ferrellgas, Inc,, a foreign corporation;
15 Counter-Claimant,
16
V5.
17

41g| Mario 5. Gonzalez, an individual; DOES
1 through 100 inclusive; and ROE
19| Corporations 101 through 200;

Counter-Defendants

25| Carl). Kleisner, an individual;

23 Counter-Claimant,

VS,

261 Mario S. Gonzalez, an individual; DOES

1 through 100 inclusive; and ROE
Corporations 101 through 200;

_9_
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28

Caunter-Deferdants.

Plaintiff, Joshua Green, through his attorneys of record, Marjorie L. Hauf, Esq. and
Matthew G, Pfau, £sq. of H & P LAW, hereby produces the following Initial Expert
Disclosures pursuant to N.R.C.P. 26(B). Said witnesses are expected to testify in
person at the time of trial of this matter, however, Plaintiff reserves the right to use
each of the below-listed experts as well as those previously listed experts’ respective

depositions.

Retained Expert Witnesses

1. Scott G, Davis, Ph.D,, PE, CFE!
GEXCON
4833 Rughy Avenue, Suite 100
Bethesda, Maryland 20814

Scott G, Davis, Ph.D, PE, CFEl is a Principal Engineer with specialized knowledge
in combustion, therrnal, and fluid processes. Dr. Davis is expected to offer testimony
relevant ta his area of expertise, inctuding in investigation and prevention of fires,
explosions, and dispersion hazards. Dr. Davis will also rebut any opinions offered by
Defendant’s expert witness, if any.

Dr. Davis authored a report, attached hereto as Exhibit 1. The exhibits to be
used as a summary of support for Dr. Davis' opinions are all deposition testimony in
this case, all written discovery responses in this case, all exhibits produced in this
case, all expert reports, and the exhibits listed in his report.

In preparation of his report, Dr. Davis reviewed the following records:

1. FGOO001-FGOO00D1TE; Ferren%as Answer to First Amended Complaint;
2, FGDO0019-FGO00021: 6/16/17 Ferreligas Correspondence to Mario Gonzalez
and Ferrellgas Customer Agreement for Propane Sales & Equipment Rental

.
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FGOO002-FGO00023: 6/4/18 Delivery Ticket

FGO00024: 7/3/18 Ferrellgas Invoice

FGOO0025-FGO00028; Propane Safety Brochure

FGDOO030-FGO00039: 575 -7.46a System Check Form (5CF)

FGOOO040-FGOO0083: STS -5.8 Product Installation Review (PIR)

FGODD084-FGO0D096: STS -7.40 Appliance Venting - Venting and Vent

System Inspection -

. FGO0O0097~-FGOO0098: 5TS 7,36 Pilot Lighting-Inspections

10, FGOOO099-FG00M1 06: 5T6 1.71 Unsafe Condition Notice (Red Tag)

11, FGOOQ107-FGO00111; Order Details for 4/26/18, 5/9/18 and 6/4/18 Orders

12.FGO00112-FGO001 16: Customer Call Information for june 2018

13.FGO00684: Exemplar delivery ticket with customer safety information

14, FGO00685; Bulk History Report

15.FGO00686-FGO00687: Billing Statement for May 2019

16, FG000688-FGO00689: Billing Statement for june 2019

17.FGOO06J0: Invoice for Jjune 22, 2017

18.FGO0Q6S1-FGO00692: Invoice for August 14, 2017

19.FGO00693: Customer Consumption Report

20,;6003694#(&000695: Case details for M. Gonzalez june 13, 2018 call to
errellgas

21, FGO00696-FGO00E97: Detailed case list

22.FGOOD69B-FGO00699: 360 service order history for all deliveries and leak
tests

23, FGO00O777-FGO00791; Transcript of Recorded Staterment of Mario Gonzalez
taken June 26, 2018

24.£G000792: Audio Recording of Mario Gonzalez Call

25.FGO00O793-FGO00818: Delivery tickets to Mario Gonzalez

26. FGOQOB19-FGOO0820: Red Tag dated june 18, 2018

27 FGO00821-FGO00822: June 19, 2018 Ferreligas email correspondence
concerning incident

28.FGO00823! une 19, 2018 Sniff test signed by Mario Gonzalez, Jennifer
Gonzalez and Robert Vicory

29.FG000824-826: Vicory Certifications Page

30.FG000827-FGO00833: Photos fram Gonzalez Residence

31.FGO00834; Photo of jJune 18, 2018

32.FGO00835: Invoice for February 2, 2020

33.FGO0O836; Invoice for june 18, 2018

34.FGO00837: Invoice for August 14, 2017

35.FGO00838-FGO00872: Biliing Statements

36,FGO00873-FGO00881: Order Records

37.FG000882-000888: Notice of Inspection of gas hose

38.FGO00889-000891: Notice of Entry Upon Land

39,FG000891-FGO0089S5: Electrical Inspection Protocol

40.FG000896: Vicory Corrective Action Written Warning

41, FGO00897: Vicory Corrective Action Final Written Warning

42.FGOD0989-FG00092%: PERC Module 6: Leak Check

43.FGO00930-FGO00981: PERC Module 2; Vapor Distribution Systems

44, FG000982-FGO01033: PERC MODULE 6: Installing Lines

45.FG001034-FGD01040: Ferrellgas Training Requirements

46.FG001041-FGO01 306; Photographs from October 25, 2018

47. ::CE)DO‘IBO%FGOOMYS: Photographs from May 15, 2020 site inspection and
ab exam

48.FGD01479-FG001519: Blaze Grills Use & Care Guide

49, FGO01520-FGO01535; Service Center Update ~ First Quarter 2018

50.FG001536-FGO01537: Flashnote on Documentation

51.FGO01538-FGO01539: Vicory Certifications Page

_4-
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52, FGO0T1540-FGO01 541!
53.FGO01542-FG001752:
54.FGO01753-FG001755:
55,FGO01756-FGOQ1757; Fi
56.FGO01758-FGD0O1763:
57 FGO01T764-EGO0TTY 68!
58.FGO01769~-FGO0T826:
59.FGO01827-FGO01830:
60, FGRO1831-FGO01835:
61.FG001836~-FG001837:
62, FGOD1838-FGO01 842:
63.FG001843-FGON1875:
64.FGO01876-FGO01879:

2017

65.FGO01880-FG001888:

2016

66, FGO0T889-FGO01898.

2018

5TS 1.3 - Safety Communications

Safety Technical Handbook

Re%mnal Safety Manager job Description

Field Install Specialist job Description for August 2017
5T5 7.31 ~ System Test Requirements

STS 7.33 - System Leak Checking

Skills Assessment Records

Flashnote on Out of Gas Interruption

Flashnote on Customer Warnings Materials
Flashnote on Incomplete Systems

Flashnote on Placing New Systems into Operation
Excerpts from Safety Technical Handbook

Flashnote Attendance Records for Robert Vicory in

Flashnote Attendance Records for Robert Vicory in

Flashnote Attendance Records for Robert Vicory in

£7.FG00189%: Flashnote Attendance Records for Robert Vicory in 2014

68. FGOO1900-FGO01902:

2015

69, FGO0T1903-FG001904:

Flashnote Attendance Records for Rebert Vicory in

Email from M, Munger to all Ferrellgas employees

re ardin%Sewice Center Update - First Quarter 2018

70.FGO0190

ST5 7.30 Placing Systems in Operation
71.FGOO1916-FGO01921:

STS 7.34 Regulator Flow and Lockout

72,FGO01922~-GHO01925: STS 7.44 Incomplete and Disconnected Systems

73.FGO01926-FGO01931:

575 7.45 Qut of Gas System Procedures

74.FGO01932: STS 7.46 Service Work Order Entries

75.FGO01933-FG002234:
76.FGO02235-FG002602!
77.FGO02603-FG003078;
78.FGO03079-FG003482:
79, FGO03483-FGO03484;

LVICETBPP Training module
LVICDOCETPPDO Training module
LVICETPDVDS Training module
LV3CETPPDVS Training module
Manager of Operations Job Description

80.FG003485: Case Detail Report for May 29, 2016 incident
81.GREEN 9243-952; Ferrellgas, Inc.'s System Check Form (5CF)

82.GREEN 953-965: Ferreligas, Inc’s Appliance Venting and Vent System

InsEection policies and procedures

83, GREEN 966~1009: Ferreligas, Inc.'s Product installation Review (PIR), outlining

insgection olicies and procedures at installed gas systems !

84, GREEN 1010-1017: Ferreligas, Inc's Unsafe Condition Notice (Red Tag)
policies and procedures for custormer gas systems

85.GREEN 1018-1018: Ferrellgas, Inc’s Pilot Lighting Inspection policies and
procedures

86.GREEN 1020-1024: Ferreligas, Inc.'s Order details dated April 26, 2018, May
9, 2018, and June 4, 2018

87.GREEN 1025-1029; Ferreligas, Inc.'s Customer Call detalls for call made by
defendant, Mario Gonzalez dated june 13, 2018

88.Deposition transcript of Plaintiff, Joshua Green Vol |

89. Deposition transcript of Plaintiff, Joshua Green Vol |t

90.Deposition transcript of the 30(b){6) designee for Ferrellgas, Inc.

91.Deposition transcript of Defendant, Mario S. Gonzalez Vol |

92.Deposition transcript of Defendant, Mario 5. Gonzalez Vol I}

93.Deposition transcript of Defendant, Carl J. Kleisner Vol |

94.Deposition transcript of Defendant, Carl . Kleisner Vol Il

95. Deposition transcript of Robert Vicory

96, Deposition transcript of Kelly Kite

5
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97.Deposition transcript of Moanica Aragon

98. Deposition of Chad Brown

99.Surveillance footage of Subject Explosion

100. October 25, 2018 Inspection of Gonzaiez Property
101, May 14, 2020 Inspection of Subject Gas Hose

Dr. Davis is expected to offer the following opinions, as outtined in his report:

1. Inspection of the subject outdoor kitchen revealed a significant leak, eg., a
volumetric flow rate of approximately 44 SCFH (approximately 61 5CFH at 13" w.o} in
the flexible gas line to the Blaze grill, Testing confirmed that this leak was the only
viable leak source within the gas system that could have caused this incident. The
flexible gas line was also thermally damaged in the vicinity of the gas leak, further
confirming a preexisting leak prior to ignition. Testing confirmed that the propane
leak from the flexible gas line was the only possible source of propane that could
accumulate in the unventilated kitchen island cavity beneath the grill. Additionally,
the gril was improperly installed per the manufacturers manual and lacked the
required ventilation. The following sections will analyze the cause of the explosion,
the inadequate response by Ferrellgas in which it violated its own policies and
procedures, and the improper installation of the gas-fired built-In grill and griddie in
violation of the manufacturer's instatiation manual.

2. Inspection of the evidence revealed a significant leak (a volumetric flow rate of
approximately 61 SCFH at 13" w.c.) in the flexible gas line to the Blaze grill. Testing
confirmed that the propane leak from the flexible gas line was the only viable leak
source within the gas system that could have caused propane to accumulate within
the unventilated kitchen island cavity beneath the grill and subsequently ignite while
cooking on an open flame. The leaking propane could accumulate within the kitchen
cavity because the grill and griddle were improperly installed in a manner that
violated the manufacturer’s installation manual by not providing the proper
ventifation to this cavity.

3. Three hypotheses were identified as possible causes of the leak in the flexibie

gas line and include: (1) an electrical issue, resulting in fault current overheating the

-6-
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flexible gas line and damaging the flexible cuter hose seal; (2) rodents penetrating
the flexible outer hose seal; and (3) defective manufacture of the flexible outer hose
seal. Based on Mr. Ganzalez's testimony and the Ferreligas notes regarding the
reason for the call, there was a condition that resulted in significant heating of the
flexible gas line to the Blaze grill. Not only was there an “overheat” condition, but
when the flexible gas line was disconnected the exiting gas was ignited and resulted
in a flame “shooting out”. Both of these conditions are indicators that an electrical
fault condition was present at the grill and that electrical fault current was flowing
through the flexible gas line to ground via the underground service line.

4. Testing by Don Gifford alse confirmed that fault currents near 20 amps, yet
below the threshold necessary to trip the 20-amp breaker, are high enough to heat
the flexible gas line to above 300 °F. These temperatures are very hot and can also
cause the flexible outer hose seal to degrade and fail, compromising the integrity of
the gas line, Once compromised, propane will leak from such a line, similar to the
incident gas line to the Blaze grill. The extremely hot gas line and the observation of
the flames shooting out when Mr. Gonzalez disconnected the flexible gas line can
only be reconciled by an electrical condition that resulted in fault current going
through the flexible gas line to ground via the service line. This scenario is also
consistent with Mr. Gifford's finding that there was an improper ground for the grill
and outdoor kitchen electrical system.

5. The scenarios of: (1) a defectively manufactured flexible gas line and; (2)
damage to the flexible gas line by rodents are not consistent with the overheating of
the flexible gas line connection nor with ignition of the exiting gas when the gas line
was disconnected. In addition, given a complete system check was performed for
Mr. Gonzalez's system a year prior to the incident, which included a leak check and
that Mr, Gonzalez has used this systern without incident approximately 50-100 times,
the defective manufacture of the flexible outer hose seal is highiy unlikely, While

rodents were present in the kitchen cavity at the time of the inspections, such a cause
-7 -
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for the damage cannot expiain the cbservations in the days leading to the accident.
in addition, there was no observed evidence to support that rodents had chewed,
gnawed or damaged the gas line in any way. Hence both the defective manufacture
of the flexible gas line outer seal and damage to the seal due to rodents can be ruled
out, The only theory that reconciles the evidence is an electrical condition was
present days before the incident, which ultimately overheated and degraded the seal
of the flexible gas line.

6. Ferreligas violated its own policies and procedures in the response to the call
from the Gonzalez residence. Mr, Vicory found a serious issue with the system, and
since he was not an electrician and did not have experience with electrical issues, he
recommended that Mr. Gonzalez hire an electrician to inspect the issue, Mr. Vicory
responded to a questionable or unsafe condition in an area outside his area of
expertise. Per Ferrellgas's procedures, Mr, Vicory should have red tagged and
disabled the system or red tagged and disabled the appliance. Mr. Vicory contacted
Mr. Kite for advice on the situation, Mr. Kite advised him of two similar incidents
where he red tagged the system until it was fixed.

7. Ferreligas's disabling of appliances requires actions beyond simply turning the
valve to the "off" position and red tagging. Had Ferreligas disabled the appliance per
their own policies and procedures, one or more of the following actions would have
been performed: (1) Removing the handle of the manual shutoff valve; (2)
Disconnecting and capping or plugging the gas line; and (3} Disconnecting the
electrical supply to the appliance or equipment. Similarly the system could have
been disabled via: (1) Removing a valve handle, such as the service valve handle (2)
Removing a regulator; (3) Using a clamshell, lock, wire, cable tie, plastic or lead seal,
or similar device to prevent a valve from being operated without physically removing
the securing device; and/or {4) Disconnecting and plugging or capping a line, such as
a pigtall or hogtail. Mr. Vicory and Ferreligas failed to red tag and disable the system

or red tag and disable the appliance and removed it from available use, The system
—B-
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was redguired to be disabled which would have prevented the grill from being used.
Were the systemn properly disabled per Ferrellgas's procedures then this incident
would have been avoided.

8. Mr. Vicory testified that he sprayed down the lines with a leak detector,
smelled the lines, and observed no leaks. He failed to follow Ferrellgas's own policies
and procedures for leak testing and documentation of the leak test. Mr. Vicory failed
to follow any of Ferrellgas's six methods to conduct a leak check, which would have
included a pressure decay test, A pressure decay test does not rely on human factors
such as sense of smell, visual checks to identify a leak, or where the leak detection
solution is applied. Mr. Gonzalez testified that the soap and water was placed only
on the tee, which, if true, would not detect a leak in the flexible gas line. In addition,
Mr. Vicory did not document any leak testing that was performed which violates
Ferrellgas’s procedures. This conflicting testimony, along with the lack of
documentation and improper procedures, brings guestion to whether a leak was
already present during the initial inspection by Ferrellgas.

9. Whether a leak was present or not at the time of the initial Inspection by
Ferrellgas, there was a leak observed in the flexible gas line to the grill found during
post-incident testing. Mr. Vicory either failed to find a dangerous situation of a gas
teak by using an unapproved leak test or failed to red tag and disable the system for
a dangerous situation of electrical current flowing through the gas hose. After the
incident, current and former Ferrellgas employees, Mr. Vicory, Mr. Kite, and Mr.
Barrett all stated that the system should have been red tagged.

10.Mr, Gonzalez testified that sometime in july of 2017 he modified the original
installation and installed outdoor cocking equipment after purchasing new
equipment in June of 2017, According to his testimony he replaced the appliances
and hired a handyman to do some masonry work to fit the new appliances. Listing
images from 2015 (Figure 4.1), show appliances in different locations and different

countertop and stone exterior.
9.
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11.As clearly indicated in Blaze's instaltation manual, vent panels were required
for thelr gas-fired built-in outdoor cooking equipment. In their manual, Blaze
provided many warnings about proper ventilation, explanations on why proper
ventilation is important, and even provided multiple examples of vent panel
focations, Ventilation in outdoor kitchens is important to reduce the likelihood of
flammable gas buildup in the island cavity. Without ventilation, a leak can freely
bulldup inside the enclosure. Upon finding a campetent ignition source, a flame can
propagate through accumulated flammable gasses, The incident island cavity had no
place to vent the combustion products except for out the access doors.

12.Mr. Gonzalez did not follow the manufacturer's instructions of adding proper
ventilation to the enclosure. In addition, the installation was not performed or
inspected by a qualified professional instalter or service technician. If the installation
had been inspected by a qualified professional, the enclosure would not have passed
the inspection until the required vent panels were installed. in addition, Ferrellgas
faited to notice that the kitchen cavity had no openings for ventilation when taking
over the account in their initial inspection, and when they were called to the Gonzalez
residence to inspect the outdoor kitchen, which included inspecting the gas piping
in the "unventilated” kitchen cavity.

13.As discussed abave, post-incident inspections revealed a leak in the flexible
gas line supplying propane to the grill. A CFD analysis was performed to evaluate the
consequences of this leak in the outdoor kitchen istand. More specifically, CFD was
performed to determine if the leak could have created a flammable cloud of
sufficient size inside the island cavity with and without the required vents installed.

14.The CED analysis was performed in FLACS, a tool developed by Gexcon in the
1980's to simulate gas dispersion and vapor cloud explosions. FLACS can simulate
gas and aerosol releases, dispersion of vapors, ventilation in structures, and the
effects of ambient conditions such as wind. In FLACS, the compressible Reynolds-

Averaged Navier-Stokes (RANS) equations are solved on a 3D Cartesian grid using a
~ 10 -
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finite volurne method and the k-g turbulence model. incorporated in the modef are
the conservation equations for mass, impulse, enthalpy, turbulence and species,
with closure provided by the ideal gas law. The FLACS non-premixed combustion
maodel uses the Eddy Dissipation Concept56 to describe the overall rate of reactivity
of turbulent non-premixed reacting flows.

15.FLACS has been extensively validated against numerous gas dispersion, vapor
cloud explosion, and jet fire experiments, including large-scale realistic release
scenarios and full-scale experiments, Recent validation studies, including blind
validation studies (i.e., simulations were performed prior to, or without knowledge
of the experimental results), have demonstrated the ability of FLACS to accurately
predict gas dispersion and explosion scenarios. Because it has been extensively
validated, FLACS is typically required when performing fire and explosion
consequence studies for complicated oil and gas offshore platforms.

16.A geometry model was created of the outdoor kitchen island (Figure 4.2). A 61
CFH release of LP gas from the leaking hose was modeled. Figure 4.3 shows how the
flammahle cloud spreads in the incident outdoor kitchen cavity construction with
very little to no ventilation. The CFD simulations show that the leak found after the
incident was of sufficient magnitude £o not only create a flammable gas cloud in the
outdoor grill island, but also reach the grill burners. Per the Blaze installation manual,
passive vents were added to the outdoor kitchen cavity model (Figure 4.4) and the
effect of ventilation on the flammabte gas cloud buildup was evaluated. Simulations
show that by adding only 4 vents (1 low and 1 high on each side) to the sides of the
outdoor grill island, the flammable layer would be less than 4 inches (see Figure 4.5)
and would remain remote from any ignition sources. These simulations assume no
external wind and conservatively underpredict the actual ventilation on the day of
the incident, which would further dilute the propane in the cavity and reduce size of
the flammable gas doud shown in Figure 4.5,

17.A propane leak and subsequent explosion occurred at the residence of Mr,
-] -
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Mario Gonzalez on June 18, 2018 in Las Vegas, Nevada. The incident involved an
outdoor kitchen equipped with built-in propane-fired appliances.

18, An explosion occurred when Mr, Joshua Green opened the lid of a built-in grilt.
The explosion engulfed Mr. Green, shook the Gonzalez residence and was loud
encugh to alert the neighbors that an incident had occurred. Mr. Gonzalez had
stepped away and Mr, Joshua Green took over cooking duties per Mr. Gonzalez's
request.

19. Post-incident inspection of the subject kitchen island revealed a significant
leak, e.g., a volumetric flow rate of approximately 44 SCFH (corrected to 61 SCFH at
13" w.c. propane) in the flexible gas line to the Blaze grill. Testing confirmed that this
leak was the only viable leak source within the gas system that could have caused
this incident,

20.The grill and griddie in the outdoor kitchen cavity were installed improperly
and in a manner that violated the manufacturer's installation manual by not
providing the required openings and adequate ventilation to this cavity to prevent
propane accumulation in the cavity in the event of a leak.

a. The outdoor kitchen did not include any ventilation openings as
stated in several places throughout the manual, including several
pages that are dedicated to explicitly warning of the hazards of
inadequate ventilation.

b. The manual specifically states, “Failure to adequately vent your
outdoor kitchen cavity could result in an explosion or fire.”

¢. The manual specifically states, “Ensure there is adequate
ventilation for both the appliance, grill cart and/or island cavity.
This is required not only for proper combustion, but also o
prevent gas build up.”

21.Propane vapors accumulated within the unventilated outdoor kitchen cavity

beneath the grill and griddle, which subsequently ignited while cooking on an open
L b
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flame.

22.Testing and modeling confirmed that the propane leak from the flexible gas
line was the only viable leak source within the gas system that couid have caused
propane to accumulate within the unventilated outdoor kitchen cavity beneath the
grill and griddle, and subsequently ignite while cooking on an open flame.

23.An electrical fault condition was present at the grili and fault current was
flowing through the flexible gas line to ground via the underground service ling. This
electrical condition was present at least five days before the incident, which
ultimately overheated and degraded the seal of the flexible gas line causing it to leak,

a. Both the extremely hot and “overheat” condition of the flexible gas
line, and the fact when the flexible gas line was disconnected the
exiting gas was ignited and resulted in a flame “shooting out”, are
indicators that a fault condition was present at the grill and the
fault current was flowing through the flexible line

b. Testing showed that fault currents near 20 amps, yet below the
threshold necessary to trip the 20- amp breaker, are high enough
to heat the flexible gas line to above 300 °F and degrade the line.

¢. inspections revealed that the outdoor kitchen was not properly
grounded.

d. Defective manufacture of the flexible line outer seal is not
consistent with the facts of this case and can be ruled out as a
passible cause.

e, Damage due to rodents is not consistent with the facts of this case
and no evidence was found to indicate that rodents had chewed,
gnawed or otherwise affected the integrity of the gas line and can
be ruled out as a possible cause.

24.0n June 13, 2018, five days prior to the incident, Mr. Gonzalez called

Ferreligas's emergency phone number regarding a dangerous condition with the
-13 -
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flexible gas line to the built-in grill

a. When Mr. Gonzalez opened the stainless steel access door below
the Blaze Grill he felt a shock from the door,

b. Mr. Gonzalez noted the flexibie gas line to the grill was very hot
even though the gas valve that serviced the built-in appliances (grill
and griddie) was turned off.

¢. Mr. Gonzalez stated that he released the quick-connect
connections on the gas line and a small flame shot out of it

25.0n June 14, 2018, four days prior to the incident, a Ferrellgas’s service
technician, Robert Vicory responded to the Gonzalez residence. On June 15, 2018,
three days prior to the incident, Mr. Vicory came back out to check the system for a
second time and he informed Mr. Gonzalez his grill was safe to use.

26.Ferrellgas violated its own policies procedures in the response to the Gonzalez
residence.

a. Ferreligas failed to document the inspections.

b. Ferreligas failed to perform a leak check per their own policies and
procedures. Using soap solution and sense of smell is not in
accordance with Ferreligas policies and procedures.

27.Mr. Vicory and Ferrellgas recognized an unsafe and hazardous condition at
Mr. Gonzalez's residence.

a. The service call indicated a hot gas line connection and flames
shooting out when the gas line was disconnected.

b. Mr. Vicory conferred with his general manager at Ferreligas, Kelly
Kite and they determined that the issue was electrical. When Mr.
Kite had experienced similar issues previously he red tagged those
systems because he was not an electrician.

c. Mr. Vicory recommended further corrective action by an

electrician.
—14-
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26
27
28

28.Mr. Vicory and Ferreligas violated their own policies and procedures, and
failed to red tag and disable the system, or red tag and disable the appliance and
remove it from available use. Instead Mr. Vicory ailowed an unreasonably dangerous
condition to continue to exist and only recommended that the owner find an
etectrician.

a. Ferrellgas falled to red tag a questionable or unsafe condition
despite unsafe and hazardous condition being present in the gas
systerm.

b. Ferreligas did not;

i. remove the handle of the manual shutoff valve
i, disconnect and cap or plug the gas line
. disconnect the electrical energy to the appliance or
equipment.
29.0n june 15, 2018, Mr. Vicory and Ferreligas went back out to check the system
for a second time, Despite not verifying the condition of the system was repaired,
Ferrellgas service technician informed Mr. Gonzalez his grill was safe to use. Again,
Mr. Vicory and Ferrellgas falled to red tag the system, leaving an unsafe and
unreasonably dangerous condition to continue to exist.
30.+ad Ferrellgas followed their own procedures and red tagged the unsafe and
hazardous condition in either of their inspections of the gas system, this incident
would have been avoided,

a. Multiple employees of Ferrellgas, including the technician who
allowed the unsafe and unreasonably hazardous condition to
continue to exist, testified that the system should have been red
tagged and taken out of service.

31.4n fuly of 2017, after recently switching to Ferreligas as a propane supplier, Mr,
Gonzalez renovated his outdoor kitchen which included replacing gas-fired

appliances and masonry work, Mr. Gonzalez's installation was not performed or
- 15 -
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inspected by a gualified professional instatier or service technician.

32.1n violation of the manufacturer's installation manual, Mr. Gonzalez's created
an unreasonably dangerous condition by improperly installing the Blaze grill and
griddle in the outdoor kitchen, whereby he did not provide the required openings
and proper ventilation to the kitchen cavity to prevent proparne accurnulation in the
cavity in the event of a leak. In fact, the kitchen cavity had no openings for
ventilations.

33, Modeling demonstrated that had the outdoor kitchen island included
adeguate ventilation per the Blaze manual, propane vapor would have escaped
through the vents and would not have accumulated to significant quantities in the
cavity nor reached the burners and ignited. In fact, had ventilation been provided per
the Blaze manual, the gas would have remained within inches of the ground and very
remote from grill burners.

34.Ferreligas failed to notice that the kitchen cavity had no openings for
ventilation during their initial inspection when they took over the account and when
they were called to the Gonzalez residence to inspect the issue with the outdoor
kitchen,

35.Had Mr. Gonzalez properly installed ventilation in the outdoor kitchen cavity,
this incident would have been avoided.

Dr, Davis’ testimony will be consistent with GREEN 1272-1317 and the documents
provided in Drophox as Exhibits 5 and 6.

2. Don L, Gifford

GIFFORD CONSULTING GROUP, LLC

4405 East Post Road, Suite A
Las Vegas, Nevada 89120

Don L. Gifford is a licensed contractor, electrical contractor, and construction
expert, Mr, Gifford is expected to offer testimony relevant to his area of expertise,
including in construction, contracting, and design, general engineering, and forensics

in analysis of fires, explosions, fire causation and fire propagation. Mr, Gifford will
- 16 -
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also rebut any opinions offered by Defendant's expert witness, if any.

Mr. Gifford authored a report, attached hereto as Exhibit 7. The exhibits to be
used as a summary of support for Mr, Gifford's opinions are all deposition testimony
in this case, all written discovery responses in this case, all exhibits produced in this
case, all expert reports, and the exhibits listed in his report.

In preparation of his report, Mr. Gifford reviewed the following records:

FGOO00T-FGOO0018: Ferrellgas Answer to First Amended Complaint;
FGOO0019-FGO00021: 6/16/17 Ferreligas Correspondence to Mario Gonzalez
and Ferrellgas Customer Agreement for Propane Sales & Equipment Rental
FGO0002-FG000023: 6/4/18 Delivery Ticket

FGO00024: 7/3/18 Ferreligas invoice

FGOO0025-FG000028: Propane Safety Brochure

FGOOD030-FGO00039; STS -7.46a Systern Check Form (SCF)
FGOOQ040-FGOO0083: 5TS -5.8 Product Instaliation Review (PIR)
FGO00084-FGO000%6; STS -7.40 Appliance Venting - Venting and Vent
System Inspection -

. FGOO000Y7-FGDO0098: 5T 7.36 Pilot Lightingainspections
10.FGO00099~FGOO0106; STS 1.71 Unsafe Condition Notice (Red Tag)

13 11.FGO00107-FGO00111: Order Details for 4/26/18, 5/9/18 and 6/4/18 Orders
12.FGO00112-FGO001 16; Customer Call Information for jJune 2018

14 13.FGO00684: Exermnplar delivery ticket with customer safety information

14, FGO00685: Butk History Report

15 15.FGO00686~FGO00E87: Billing Statement for May 2019
16.FGO00688-FGO00689: Billing Statement for June 2019

16 17.FGO00630: Invoice for june 22, 2017

18, FGO00691-FGO00692; involce for August 14, 2017

17 19.FG000693: Customer Consumption Report

20. FGOO0E94~FGO00A95; Case details for M. Gonzalez June 13, 2018 call to
18 Ferrellgas

21.FGO00696-FGO00697: Detailed case list

19 22.FGD00698-FGO00699: 360 service order history for all deliveries and leak
tests

20 23.EGQO0777-EGO00T791: Transcript of Recorded Statement of Mario Gonzalez
taken june 26, 2018

21 24.FGO00792: Audio Recording of Mario Gonzalez Call
25.FGO00793-FGO00818; Delivery tickets to Mario Gonzalez

22 26, FGOO0819-FGO00820: Red Tag dated june 18, 2018
27.FGO008B21-FGO00822: June 19, 2018 Ferrellgas email correspondence
23 concerning incident .
28.FGD00823: June 19, 2018 Sniff test signed by Mario Gonzalez, Jennifer
4 Gonzalez and Rebert Vicory

29.FG000824-826: Vicory Certifications Page

23 30.FGO00827-FGQ00833: Photos from Gonzalez Resldence

31.FGO00834: Photo of jJune 18, 2018

26 32.FGO00835: Invoice for February 2, 2020

33, FGOG0836: Invoice for june 18, 2018

27 34.FGO00837: invoice for August 14, 2017

35.FGO00838~-FGO00872; Billing Statements

28 36.FGO00873-FG000881: Order Records

P
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37.FGO00BE2-000888: Notice of Inspection of gas hose

38.FGO00889-000891; Notice of Entry Upon Land

39, FGOO0O891-FGO0OG895: Electrical ihspection Protocol

40, FGOOO896: Vicory Corrective Action Written Warning

41.FGO00897: Vicory Corrective Action Final Written Warning

42, FGO00989-FGO00929: PERC Module 6: Leak Check

43.FGO00930~-FGO00981: PERC Module 2: Vapor Distribution Systems

44, FGOD0982-FGO01033: PERC MODLULE ©: Installing Lines

45 FGCO01034-FGR0O1040; Ferrellgas Training Requirements

46. FGO01041-FGD0O1306: Photographs from October 25, 2018

47.{5%00130%?60014?8: Photographs from May 15, 2020 site inspection and
ab exam

48.FGO01479-FGO01519: Blaze Grills Use & Care Guide

49 FGOO1520-FGQ01535: Service Center Update -~ First Quarter 2018

50.FGOO1536-FGOO1537; Flashnote on Documentation

531.FGOQ1538-FG001539: Vicory Certifications Page

52, FGO0O1540-FG001547; 5TS 1.3 - Safety Communications

53.FGO01542-FGO01752: Safety Technical Handbook

24, FGOO1753-FG001755: Regional Safety Manager job Description

55, FGO01756-FGO01757: Field Install Specialist Job Description for August 2017

56.FGO01758-FG001763: 5TS 7.31 - System Test Requirements

57.FGOO1 764-FGO01768: 5TS 7.33 - System Leak Checking

58.FGO01769-FGO01826: Skills Assessment Records

59.FG001827-FGO01830: Flashnote on Out of Gas Interruption

60. FGOO1831-FGO01835: Flashnote on Customer Warnings Materials

61.FGOQ1836-FGO01837: Flashnote on Incomplete Systems

62.FGOOT83B-FGO01842: Flashnote on Placing New Systems into Operation

63.FGO01843-FG001875: Excerpts from Safety Technical Handbook .

64.5(8??1876#6001879: Flashnote Attendance Records for Robert Vicory in

65.;3?8188045(3001388: Flashnote Attendance Records for Robert Vicory in

66,583?51889»-13(3001898: Flashnote Attendance Records for Robert Vicory in

67.FG001899: Flashnote Attendance Records for Robert Vicory in 2014

68;5300190&%001902 Flashnote Attendance Recards for Robert Vicory in

15

69, FGO01903-FGO01904; Emall from M., Munger to all Ferrellgas empioyees
regarding Service Center Update - First Quarter 2018

70.FGODT905: 575 7.30 Placing S‘gystems in Qperation

71.FGDO1916~-FGO01921: STS 7.34 Regulator Flow and Lockout

72.FGO01922-GHO01925: STS 7.44 Incomplete and Disconnected Systems

73.FGO01926-FGO01931: STS 7.45 Qut of Gas System Procedures

74.FGO01932: 5TS 7.46 Service Work Order Entries

75.FG001933-FG0O02234: LVICETBPP Training module

76.FG002235-FG002602: LVICDOCETPPDO Training module

77.FGO02603-FGO03078; LY3CETPDVDS Training module

78.FGD03079-FGO03482: LY3CETPPDVS Training moduile

79.FGO03483-FG003484: Manager of Operations Job Description

B0.FGO03485: Case Detail Report for May 29, 2016 incident

81.GREEN 943-952: Ferrellgas, Inc.'s System Check Form (SCF)

82.GREEN 953-965: Ferrellgas, Inc's Appliance Venting and Vent System
Inspection policies and procedures

83.GREEN 966-1009: Ferrellgas, Inc.'s Product Installation Review (PIR), outlining
inspection policies and procedures at installed %as systems

84,GREEN 1010-1017: Ferrefigas, Inc's Unsafe Condition Notice {Red Tag)

-18 -
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policies and procedures for customer gas systems _

85.GREEN 1018-1018: Ferrellgas, inc.'s Pilot Lighting Inspection policies and
procedures

86.GREEN 1020-1024: Ferrellgas, Inc.'s Order details dated April 26, 2018, May
8, 2018, and June 4, 2018

87.GREEN 1025-1029: Ferrellgas, Inc.'s Customer Call details for call made by
defandant, Mario Gonzaterz dated June 13, 2018

88.Deposition transcript of Plaintiff, Joshua Green Vol |

89.Deposition transcript of Plaintiff, joshua Green Vol il

90, Deposition transcript of the 30(b)(6) designee for Ferreligas, Inc.

91, Deposition transcript of Defendant, Mario S. Gonzalez Vol |

92. Deposition transcript of Defendant, Mario 5. Gonzalez Vol i

93, Depaosition transcript of Defendant, Carl ). Kleisner Vol |

94, Deposition transcript of Defendant, Carl J. Kleisner Vol |l

95, Deposition transcript of Robert Vicory

96, Deposition transcript of Kelly Kite

97.Depasition transcript of Monica Aragon

98. Deposition of Chad Brown

99, Surveiltance foota%e of Subject Explosion

100. October 25, 2018 Inspection of Gonzalez Property

101. May 14, 2020 Inspection of Subject Gas Hose

Mr. Gifford is expected to offer the following opinions, as outlined in his report;

1. GCG will show, substantively, that the circumstances and conditions which
created and/or led to the Subject Incident were a consequence of the decisions and
actions of the Defendants referenced within this report.

2. We have seen no evidence to support any theory purporting Mr. Green's prior
knowledge of dangerous or non-code compliant conditions, either related to the
electrical system or gas supply systern pertaining to the barbeque island and its
appurtenances, ar that he had any control over the events that resulted in the
Subject Incident and resulting injury.

3. We will provide substance in support of our determination that Ferrellgas and
Mr. Gonzales each bore principal duties respective to their various roles with regard
to the events and conditions which allowed for the Subject incident, and that each
of them failed to execute those duties so as to provide for the safety, well-baing, and
welfare of Mr. Green and others, as mandated by the Clark County Building and
Administrative Codes, the County adopted technical codes, and the standard of care,

4, Itis our opinion that the Subject Incident was the consequence of overheating,

melting, and failure of a Ksun flexible gas hose (“Subject Hose") feeding the island

- 19 -
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barbeque appliance, in that the hose was subjected to current flow due to an
electrical fault at the barbeque island.

5. The Subject Incident, in all probability, was preventable but for the
actions/inactions on the part of Defendants Ferreligas and Mr. Gonzales, in that (a)
Ferrellgas failed to Red Tag the primary gas delivery valve to the home or, at least,
the gas supply line to the barbeque and (b) the failure on the part of Mr. Gonzales to
{i} comply with the barbeque appliance manufacturer's (Blaze) instructions for
installation and use, (i) adhere to the terms of his agreement with Ferrellgas, (iii)
obtain the services of a properly qualified service company and/or licensed electrical
contractor to troubleshoot and correct electrical anomalies manifest at the
barbegue area.

6. Mr, Kleisner, an electrician whe provided unlicensed services and
recommended the implementation of non-code complaint electrical scopes, was
also contributory to the incident.

7. The gas appliance which is a seminal point of discussion in this report is a
stainless steel barbegue unit marketed by Blaze, who provides, by virtue of their
distribution of the manufacturer's installation, use, and maintenance instructions.
The unit is 40" wide, designed for an application, such as that utilized by Mr.
Gonzales' barbeque island, and appears to be (or similar to) a Summerset Sizzler Pro,
40", 5 burper unit,

8. The deposition of Mr. Gonzales provides insights with regard to his (a)
purchasing and installing the grill, (b} connecting the unit to the gas tee/valve
assembly by Ksun flex hoses which he also purchased, (¢) maintaining and using the
appliance, e.g., his habit of turning the gas off at the valve below the barbeque
appliance during the majority of those times when he was done using it - and turning
it back on at the valve at each time of use.

9. Hence, based on evidence and testimony, Mr. Gonzales turned on the gas

valve, lit the barbeque grill, placed the steaks on the grill, after which time Mr. Green
w 20 -
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showed up.

10.The photo insertions below show the disposition of the Blaze grill in relation
to the barbeque island as well as the location of the riser and tee/valve assembly
below the grill.

11.The under-counter space of the barbeque island was observed to have been
without proper venting, and thus, is not in compliance with Blaze's instructions. The
interior space beneath the grill is continuously open from east to west and from
north to south, thus allowing for the accumulation of leaking gas not only under the
barbeque grill, but under the griddle and other areas as well. Thus, when Mr, Green
opened the barbegue lid, he was unwittingly subjected to a gas explosion as the
result of a good volume of propane gas that appears to have suddenly ignited once
the grill cover was lifted, providing ventilation.

12.Based on my examination of the property and artifacts, the explosion showed
fire scorch on the Subject Hose and, of course, to the clothing of Mr. Green, The
explosion also moved the griddle directly out from it's snug resting position, resulting
in a significant gap (askew) between the back of the griddle and the counter
backsplash area,

13.The Subject Incident was, in my opinion, dependent upon and the result of
various critical factors, including, without limitation: (1) the pressurized gas supply
line which runs underground from the 2nd stage at the south side of the house to
the gas tee under the barbeque appliance; (2) the damaged and leaking coiled Ksun
gas hose extending to the barbeque appliance from the tee; (3) a known electrical
issue of unknown character prior to the Incident; (4) failure on the part of Ferrellgas,
at same point prior to the Subject Incident, to (a) Red Tag the system or the barbeque
gas valve and (b} perform the additional steps as prescribed by Ferreligas, such as
removing the handle from the gas valve and/or disconnecting the electrical power
source; {5) failure of Mr. Gonzales to hire the services of an electrical contractor to

troubleshoot and resolve the electrical issue, including the deteriorated and unsafe
-7 -
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glactrical conditions at the barbeque; (6) failure on the part of Mr. Kleisner, who
prescribed non-code complaint and unsafe electrical procedures.

14.As noted in the inspection notes further above, the electrical fault may have
been intermittent at times both prior to and after the Subject Incident. This is a
plausible explanation with regard to inability of the experts to re-establish the pre-
existing continuity between the electrical grounding conductor of the barbeque
island branch circuit and the gas riser/tee assembly. This would also explain the lack
of measurable fault current (and implicitly the pathway for the same) to the gas
riser/tee assembily.

15,1 have seen no statement or testimony by anyone, wherein it was reported or
where there was evidence showing that the overheated gas riser and gas hose under
the barbeque appliance (a principal point of discussion with regard to this matter)
was a function of some other heat generating mechanism prior to or at the time of
the Subject Incident, By way of Hlustration and not of limitation, Mr, Gonzales
testified with regard to the overheated gas line: "Q.../[t}hat was even though it was
turned off.’ A. Yes, which was really freaking me out...so it didn't have huge a gas leak
as far as you could teli? A. No. Q. But you had a very hot line?...A. Yes” (Gonzales, p.
129).

16.Inasmuch as the barbeque appliance is efectrically powered, the housing of
the appliance was, and is, per the NEC, required to be grounded. Morgover, the
manufacturer’s instruction also calls for grounding of the appliance,
Notwithstanding that grounding of an appliance is often achieved by means of a
pigtail 120-volt power cord connection: (a) Blaze's instructions point to a more robust
electrical bond and (b) the NEC, by virtue of Article 110.3, inherently requires
conformity with the manufacturer’s instructions,

17.1n the event the barbeque had been properly grounded, it is possible that the
flexible gas hoses, notwithstanding their introduction of a certain level of electrical

resistance to electrical current, would have allowed for sufficient current to flow back
- 22 a
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to the grounded neutral source at the panel, thus tripping the overcurrent device
{(20-amp circuit breaker) and defeating the catalyst to the overheated flex line and
rise/tee assembly. Conversely, the lack of proper grounding of the appliance, in
conjunction with the electrical issues noted at the barbegue island, allowed for the
very conditions that resulted in the Subject Incident.

18.1 see no evidence that the electrical wiring and any electronic controls within
the barbeqgue appliance itself were capable of sustaining the level of fault current so
as to allow the overheating of the riser/tee assembly and melting of the gas hose (as
a function of time) feeding the appliance.

19.0ur testing of the exemplar Ksun gas hoses (results are provided in Table 1
and narrative following Table 1) provide evidence or show, as follows:

1} The PVC covering of the Ksun gas hose distorts, melts, and opens at
temperatures that are not greater than 30010F, allowing for the emission
of gaseous vapor from a pressurized gas line into the surrounding
atmosphere.

2) inthe absence of other identifiable potential contributors to the Subject
incident, based provisions expressed within NFPA 921, Section 18, (a) the
electrical phenomena reported by Mr. Brown and Mr. Gonzales
(acknowledged by both Ferreligas and Mr. Kleisner) and (b} the
conditions found during site investigations, testing, and examination of
evidence, combined to provide for the accumulation of gasses at the
undercabinet area of the barbeque island.

3) The failure temperature of the Ksun hose is easily achieved within
relatively brief periods of time when the hose is subjected to fault-
currents easily derived from household 20-amp branch circuitry.

20.Mr. Gonzales testified that he observed a flame appear and extinguish as he
removed the quick connect coupling between the riser tee and the appliance gas

hose. As | discussed in Note (d) of Table 1, this ignition would have been, in all
“ 3.
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probability, attributable to an electrical are, resulting from the electrical anomaly
described by the deponents.

21.Based on evidence and beilief, the Subject Hose, to a reasonable degree of
probability, was damaged by virtue of electrical current flow (over time) passing
through its metallic jacketing, which occurred prior to the brief timeframe during
which the appliance was put into use on the evening of the Incident. 1t is implausible
that the Subject Hose jacketing melted and emitted gaseous vapor all within the brief
segment of time beginning at the point in time where Mr, Gonzales lit the barbeque
gritl, and ending with the point in time at which the explosion and resulting injury of
Mr. Green occurred.

22.0ur testing confirms the propensity of a 3/8” Ksun gas hose to heat up due to
the flow of electrical current through the length of the hose, and that the resistance
is sufficient (as a function of current and time) to bring the flex hose to faillure, thus
releasing nominally pressurized gas Into the surrounding atmosphere. Moreover,
our testing shows that electrical fault currents from 20-amp household dircuitry are
capable, when passing through the length of hose, of compromising the integrity of
a 3/8" Ksun flexible gas hose.

23, Ferrellgas was in violation of company policy and County codes, principally as
the result of the actions and non-actions taken by Mr. Vicory prior to the incident.
Most notably, based on several substantive evidences, Mr. Vicory did not carry out
the company required red tag procedure. Among other things, Ferreligas failed to
ascertain the credentials of Mr. Kleisner and/or Mr. Gonzales with regard to the
electrical steps that were taken in efforts to resolve the catalyst to acknowledged
overheating and shocking events. Rather, he simply relied on notice from Mr.
Kleisher or Mr. Gonzales or both that the electrical anornaly had been resolved,

24.Ferrellgas failed to take seriously two known electrical phenomena, whether
understood by Ferrellgas or not, e.g., overheating of the flexible gas hose,

overheating of the gas supply tee assembly, electrical shocks experienced and
— 24 -
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expressed by more than one person, and an open flame generated by the incidence
of an electrical arc, which, under the circumstances, based an the laws of physics,
was an expected phenomenon.

25.Based on testimony, Mr, Gonzales relied on the work of an unlicensed and (by
Mr. Kleisner's admission) unqualified individual to perform the work which he, Mr.
Gonzales, had expressed as a life-safety concern. Mr. Kleisner made it clear, several
times, that Mr. Gonzales should contact a qualified electrician/company to
investigate and resolve the electrical phenomena manifest prior to the incident.
Based on evidence and belief, this was never done,

26.Mr. Gonzales failed to comply with each of the following obligations which
rested with him as both the owner of the property and the installer/user of the
subject barbeque appliance: (i} he failed to comply with the County Building Code
and applicable County technical codes, which could have been achieved by obtaining
the services of a licensed contractar or service company (whom, by virtue of their
licensing, would have been duty bound to understand and comply with applicable
electrical codes); (i} he failed to adhere to NRS requirements with regard to the use
of unlicensed persons; {iii) he was wisely advised by others to obtain the services of
such an authorized contractor in the interest of resolving unknown electrical
anomalies {discussed at length within this report), and failed to do so; (iv) he failed
to conform to the agreement he made with Ferreligas with regard to the safe use of
his gas appliance; (v} he failed to comply with the instructions and/or provisions set
forth by Blaze.

27.1tis my opinion that the actions of both Ferrellgas and Mr. Gonzales, and to a
lesser degree the actions of Mr. Kleisner, are directly contributory to, and a
proximate cause of, the Subject Incident. Accordingly, but for the actions and
inactions of the Defendants, the Subject Incident would have been prevented.

Mr. Gifford's testimony will be consistent with GREEN 1318-1396,

- 35
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3. Ruth Brubaker Rimmer, Ph.D, CLCP
CARE PLANS FOR LIFE
2145 East Glencove Street
Mesa, Arizona 85213

Ruth Brubaker Rimmer, Ph.D, CLP is a psychologist and certified life care

—

planner. Dr. Rimmer will provide testimony regarding the past medical treatment
provided for Joshua Green, the future medical treatment needed, the amount,
necessity, and reasonableness of the charges for past and future treatment, and that
the charges for the past and future medical treatment are within the usual and
customary charges in the community. Dr. Rimmer will also rebut any opinions

offered by Defendant's expert witness, if any.
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Dr, Rimmer authored a report, attached hereto as Exhibit 11. The exhibits to be
11| used as a summary of support for Dr. Rimmer's opinions are joshua Green's medical
records, billing, radiographic studies, films, and reports, deposition testimany, her
13| individual interview with Joshua Green, and the exhibits listed in her report.

14 in preparation of her report, Dr. Rimmer reviewed the following records:

HsP LAW

15 1. GREEN 01-85: Medica and billing records from Spring Valley Hospital
2. GREEN 86~97: Medical and billing records from UNLY Medicine
16 3. GREEN 98-186; Medical and billing records from Enrico Fazzini, Ph.D
4, GREEN 187: Billing records from Shadow Emergency Physicians
17 5. GREEN 251-273; Medical and billing records from interventional Pain &
Spine Institute ‘
18 6. GREEN 188 Medical and billing records from American Medical
Response
19 7. GREEN 370-73: Co-Pay Receipts to University Medical Center .
8. GREEN 345-346: Medical records from las Vegas Neurosurgical
20 institute
9. GREEN 374-845: 9. Medical and billing records from University
21 Medical Center
10.GREEN 846: Photograph of Josh Green's palms from burns
22 11.GREEN 847-48: Medical and billing records from Henderson
Dermatology -
23 12.GREEN 84§~888; Color photographs of josh Green's burns taken at
University Medical Center . ‘
24 13.GREEN 1075-1094: Medical and billing records from Michael Elliott and
Associates
25 14.GREEN 1239-1248: Supplemental medical and billing records from
Michael Elliott and Associates
26 15.GREEN 1249-1271: Photos that depict scars an jJosh's arms, abdomen,
and hands
27 16.D?ositi0n transcript of Plaintiff, Joshua Green
)8 17.individualized interview with Joshua Green

- 256 -
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Dr. Rimmer is expected to offer the following opinions, as outlined in her report:

1. The physical complications of burn injuries are significant. Serious burn
injuries are complex and place a major stress on alt the body’s major organs in the
acute care phase. The skin is the largest organ of the body, and when it has been
damaged by deep 2nd degree burn injuries like Joshua's, it can cause serious
physiologic and metabolic disruption to the entire systerm. Burn injuries have been
noted to be the most injurious insult the human body can sustain. Burns are always
unexpected, and therefore when they occur, a crisis is created, This unanticipated
crisis causes the burn victim and their family to experience significant physical,
emotional and psychological distress.

2. Theskinisthe largest organ of the body and provides several critical functions;
protection, sensation, thermoregulation, excretion, absorption, metabolism, and
non-verbal communication. Any compromise of the skin integrity can lead to the
interruption of these vital functions and results in pain, discomfort, and possible
infection,

3. Allostasis is the term used to define the adaptation that the body makes in
response to stressful events. “The process involves activation of several physiologic
systemns, including the immune system, and is essentially the body's ability to
maintain “stability through change.” The body is able to cope effectively with these
stressors when adaptations are activated infrequently;, however, there is the
potential for the system to become overloaded.” (Askay & Patterson, 2008).

4, Joshua suffered severe pain from his burn injuries. With second degree burns,
there is damage to the dermis, but the nerve endings are still intact. This makes them
very painful. There appears to be a relationship between poor acute pain
management such as Joshua's and later distress that might be manifested by issues
such as depression and/or PTSD (post-traumatic stress systemy), He has worked as a
chef for many years and shared that the burns to his hands has made his job guite

difficult. He can no longer tolerate the long hours he put in pre-injury and finds that
-9
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the pain in his hands compromises his ability to do his job.

5. Life expectancy according to the Vital Statistics of the United States 2017 Life
Tables indicated that a 39-vear-old American male would live, on average, to the age
of 78.7 years.

6. Dr. Kevin N, Foster conducted a Zoom evaluation with joshua Green on
November 25, 2020, He had reviewed his medical records and after the evaluation
he then discussed Joshua's future care needs with this life care planner,

7. Joshua shared that he had followed up at the Las Vegas Burn Center and then
was sent to another physician and dermatologist for his ongoing issues, which
include chronic pain and skin sensitivity that is triggered with changes in
temperature, such as stepping out of the shower into a cool bathroom. He stated
that his hands become so painful when there are fluctuations in temperature that
he must wrap them in blankets to warm them in order to relieve the stinging and
painful sensation. He also reported ongeing itching on both arms and hands.

8. Joshua has a fear of grilling post-injury with flashbacks that occur when he
tries to use a grilt with a flame. He stated " don't work as much as | used to and had
to cut my hours drastically. | get really tired when using my hands as a chef.” Chronic
neuropathic pain and itch are commaonly reported following burn injury. In one
sample of burn survivors, over half of them reported having continuous pain despite
heing, on average, 10 years post-injury (Dauber, et al, 2002). Laser surgery can help
to alleviate these issues. Additional treatment involves massage therapy as well as
the use of moisturizers and lotions (Anthonissen, et. al., 2016).

9. Dr. Foster opined that joshua will benefit from laser surgery for improved skin
tone, pain and itching reduction, and improved cosmesis, The integrity of his burn-
injured skin will never be the same as it was pre-injury. Dr, Foster also recommends
pain management, medication, massage and psychological interventions which has
been endorsed by his treating psychologist, Michael Elliott, PhDD. The cost of future

care is outlined in the life care plan tables.
_78-

JOSHUA GREEN'S INITIAL EXPERT DISCLOSURES APP.1493



2
5
£

—

QO 0w e ~ o n Bk oW R

e T O - S - N0 S N S N T N N S L e T e ]
e o 1 L e ¥ F L= I v B -+ L I = ) BN ¥ s S = NS ¥ 7 H 3%

28

10.A visit should take place, annually, over the next 5 years until such time as
Joshua's burn-related issues will likely be resolved.

11.A visit every year should occur every 2 years through age 55 and then,
annually, through life expectancy due to his heightened potential far skin cancer and
other dermal problems. All burned areas and donor sites are more prone to sunburn
and skin cancer and must be protected by sunscreen daily. Sun protective cothing is
also recommended.

12.Joshua will benefit from monthly massage for the next 2 years for scar
management, relaxation, and anxiety reduction,

13.Pain and itch are inevitable after laser procedures. joshua will be prescribed
tbuprofen 800mg post-taser surgery and will be able to take over the counter
medications such as Tylenol and lbuprofen for his chronic pain. At age 50 he will
likely have increased pain issues in his hands, 50 Naproxen has been recommended.

14.Joshua will need to keep his skin hydrated and protected from the sun through
life expectancy. The recommended supplies are sunscreen and moisturizers. He
should also always wear sun protective clothing when he is outdoors,

15.Dr. Foster has recommended six - CO2 and six - Pulse Dye laser sessions for
Joshua, These surgical interventions will address the itching, pain and skin integrity
on his bilateral arms and hands, The closest burn center that performs surgical laser
procedures is the Arizona Burn Center in Phoenix, Arizona. Included in the cost
projection are round trip flights from Las Vegas to Phoenix with an overnight stay in
a hotel each time because Joshua will receive general anesthesia for the procedure
and will need to remain close to physician access in case of complications.

16.0r. Michael Elliott is Joshua's current, injury-refated, mental health provider,
Dr. Elfiott has provided recommendations for necessary psychological treatment
associated with the burn event and his subsequent burn injuries, He opined that
joshua's symptoms will likely worsen unless his physical, cognitive, and psychological

problems are treated aggressively. joshua's post-injury memory deficits, sleep
~ 20w
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troubles, high levels of stress, and overall quality of life put him at significant risk. His
stress coping skills are challenged, and he needs several strategies for stress
management. As such, a normal course of recovery is threatened without treatment
for his physical and mental conditions. The longer he suffers with his current levels
of stress, anxiety, and depression, the more likely his mood and cagnitive deficits will
worsen,

17.Dr. Elliott recommends 6 months of weekly Cognitive Behavioral Therapy (24
sessions) with an additional 6 months of weekly Biofeedback and Mindfulness
Training. Cognitive Behavioral Therapy will help to nurture joshua 's awareness of
and responsiveness to his emotional struggles with anxiety, whereby he can more
effactively manage his emotions, so they do not negatively impact his planning and
follow through. This includes an 8-week course of graduated cognitive therapy that
requires a weekly session with specific homework assignments for completion
between sessions. An additional six months of biofeedback and mindfulness training
are nacessary to manage anxiety. This will include a Biofeedback/Heartmath Heart
Rate Varjability (MRV) program. This program offers highly effective and practical
solutions for reducing stress, anxiety, depression, and sleeplessness,

18.Due to his symptoms associated with PTSD, Joshua should also participate in
Eye Movernent Desensitization & Reprocessing (EMDR) therapy, EMDR is a treatment
designed to allaviate distress associated with traumatic memories. Data from meta-
analyses and Randomized-Controlled Trials included in this review evidence the
efficacy of EMDR therapy as a treatment for PTSD. Specifically, EMDR therapy
improved PTSD diagnosis, reduced PTSD symptoms, and reduced other trauma-
related symptoms. EMDR therapy was evidenced as being more effective than other
trauma treatments and was shown to be an effective therapy when dellvered with
different cultures (Shalev AY., 2009).

19.Careful consideration has been given to Joshua's future medical and

psychological needs which have resulted from his burn injuries. He has survived
-3 -
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deep 2nd degree burns to both arms, hands, and his abdominal area as the result of
the accident, with the most significant damage occurring to his hands. Pain is one of
the biggest problems that burn victims experience. The recovery phase of a burn
primarily involves tissue growth which causes pain, itchiness, numbness and tingling.
Some burn patients experience nerve damage which results in longer lasting chronic
pain. In addition, being on fire is a very traumatic event and the psychological
damage can be as significant as the physical injury. Studies have found that survivors
of fire related injury can experience symptems of major depression and anxiety, as
well as an uptick in symptoms associated with Post Traumatic Stress Disorder.,

20.The goal of this Life Care Plan is to provide reasonable and medically
necessary care that will maintain/increase Joshua Green's medical stability and
quality of life, and to anticipate and prevent potential complications. The plan
provides for medical and surgical care, evaluations, therapies, medications, supplies,
transportation needs, in order to promote and maintain his independence and
prevent complications, This plan should be re-evaluated/modified if complications
develop and/or as progressive aging alters joshua's medical condition and functional
status. The recommendations are outlined in specifics within the Life Care Plan
Tables, which are attached as Appendix A,

Dr. Rimmer's testimony will be consistent with GREEN 1397-1474,

4. Kevin N. Foster, MD, MBA, FACS
The Arizona Burn Center, Valleywise Health
Phoenix, Arizona 85008

Kevin N. Foster, MD, MBA, FACS is a burn surgeon and medical provider. Dr.
Foster will provide testimony regarding the past medical treatment provided for
joshua Green, the future medical treatment needed, the amount, necessity, and
reasonableness of the charges for past and future treatment, and that the charges
for the past and future medical treatment are within the usual and customary
charges in the community. Dr. Foster will also rebut any opinions offered by

Defendant’s expert witness, if any.
-3 -
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Dr. Foster authored a report, attached hereto as Exhibit 1474, The exhibits to
be used as a summary of support for Dr. Foster's opinions are Joshua Green's
medical records, billing, radiographic studies, filrns, and reports, deposition
testimony, Dr. Rimmer's lifecare plan, and the exhibits listed in his report.

In preparation of his report, Dr, Foster reviewed the following records:

GREEN 01-85: Medica and billing records from Spring Valley Hospital

GREEN 86-97: Medical and billing records from UNLY Medicine

GREEN 98-186: Medical and billing records from Enrico Fazzini, Fh.D

GREEN 187; Billing records from Shadow Emergency Physicians

GREEN 251-273: Medical and billing records from Interventional Pain &

Spine Institute

GREEN 188: Medical and billing records from American Medical

Response

GREEN 370-73: Co-Pay Receipts to University Medical Center

iGIF-‘.EE[\! 345-346; Medical records from Las Vegas Neurosurgical

nstitute

GREEN 374-845: 9, Medical and billing records from University

Medical Center

10.GREEN 846 Photograph of josh Green's palms from burns

11.GREEN 847-48; Medical and billing records from Henderson
Dermatology

12.GREEN 849-888: Color photographs of Josh Green's burns taken at
University Medical Center

13.GREEN 1075-1094: Medical and billing records from Michael Elliott and
Associates

14.GREEN 1239-1248: Supplemental medical and billing records from
Michael Elliott and Associates

15.GREEN 1248-1271: Photos that depict scars on Josh's arms, abdomen,
and hands

16.Deposition transcript of Plaintiff, Joshua Green

17.Inadividualized interview with Joshua Green

woeN o b

Dr. Foster is expected to offer the following opinions, as outlined in his report:

1. Joshua green suffered an 8% total body surface area thermal burn injury on
June 18t, 2018 as the result of a propane grill explosion. He was 36 years old at the
time of his injury. He was cared for in the Las Vegas burn center for seven days. He
received daily dressing changes, pain control, nutritional support, physical and
occupational therapy, and all of the other resources of this tertiary care burn center,
He was discharged home in good condition and has been followed by the burn
center as an outpatient since that time.

2. | have reviewed the medical records for Mr. Green, the photographs of his
37 -
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injuries and subsequent scars, the life care plan prepared for him by Dr. Rimmer and
ryself, and various other documentation related to his injury and hospitalizations, |
have also interviewed and examined Mr, Green via telemedicine. | agree with the
future needs and care projected and outlined in Mr. Green's life care plan. | consider
these projections and needs to be medically likely, fair and reasonable. Thank you.

3. Dr. Foster has recommended six - CO2 and six - Pulse Dye laser sessions for
Joshua. These surgical interventions will address the itching, pain and skin integrity
on his bilateral arms and hands. The closest burn center that performs surgical laser
procedures is the Arizona Burn Center in Phoenix, Arizona. Included in the cost
projection are round trip flights from Las Vegas to Phoenix with an overnight stay in
a hotel each time because joshua will receive general anesthesia for the procedure
and will need to remain close to physician access in case of complications.

Dr. Foster's testimony will be consistent with GREEN 1397-1474 and GREEN 1475~
1518.

it
Treating Physicians

The following non-retained physicians and witnesses are expected to give
opinions regarding the treatment of joshua Green at their respective facilities, the
authenticity of the records for said treatment, the necessity of treatment rendered,
the causation of the necessity for the medical treatment rendered and any treatment
they have recommended. Their opinions shall include the cost of past medicai care,
diagnostic testing, surgery and medication; the cost of future medical care medical
care, diagnostic testing, surgery and medication; and whether those past and future
medical costs fall within the ordinary and customary charges in the community for
sirnilar medical care and treatment. They are expected to also review documents

outside their report(s) for the purpose of providing and defending those opinions;
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1. Elad Bicer, MD
Spring Valley Hospital Medical Center
5400 South Rainbow Boulevard
Las Vegas, Nevada 89118
T: 702-853-3000

2. Elizabeth Sadomin, MD
UNLV Medicine
2040 West Charleston Boulevard, 3™ Floor
Las Vegas, Nevada 89102
T, 702-895.4928

3. Jon Petrick, DC
Las Vegas Pain Relief Center
2779 West Horizon Rid%e Parkway, Suite 210
Henderson, Nevada 89052
T: 702-948-2520

Elizabeth Sodomin, MD

Paul J. Chestovich, MD

Amy Urban, MD

H University Medical Center -
5400 South Rainbow Boulevard
Las Vegas, Nevada 892118

T: 702-853-3000
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7. Cyril Joseph, PA-C
14 MHenderson Dermatology and Skin Center
2960 Saint Rose Parkway, Suite 120
15 Henderson, Nevada 89052
16 T 702-558-5100
8. Michael Elliott, Ph.D
17 Michael Elliott and Associates
1661 West Horizon Rid%a Parkway, Suite 280
18 Henderson, Nevada 89012
T, 702-307-0133
19
20
21 1A
22 Documents

23 1. Scott G. Davis, Ph.D, PE., CFEl's Expert Report and Opinions (GREEN 1272-
24| 1299), as Exhibit 1.

25 2, Scott G. Davis, Ph.D, P.E., CFEl's Curriculum Vitae (GREEN 1300-1314), as
26 | Exhibit 2,

27 3. Scott G. Davis, Ph.D, P.E., CFEl's expert fee schedule (GREEN 1315), as Exhibit 3.

28 4. Scott G. Davis, Ph.D, P.E., testimony history (GREEN 1316-1317), as txhibit 4,
Y -
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5. GEXCON Green v. Gonzalez Simulations Presentation (provided in Dropbox),
as Exhibit 5.

6. GEXCON Simulation of explosion (provided in Dropbox), as Exhibit 6.

7. Don L. Gifford's Expert Report of Findings (GREEN 1318-1349), as Exhibit 7.

8. Daon. L Gifford’s Curriculum Vitae, testimony history and expert fee schedule
(GREEN 1350-1374), as Exhibit 8.

9. Reference Material for Don L. Gifford's Expert Report of Findings {GREEN
1375-1395), as Exhibit 9.

10.GCG Gas Hose Testing (GREEN 1396 and provided in Drophox), as
Exhibit 10.

11.Ruth B, Rimmer, Ph,D, CLCP's Life Care Plan {GREEN 1397-1474), as Exhibit 11.

t2.Ruth B. Rimmer, Ph.D, CLCP's Curriculum Vitae (GREEN 1455-1474), as
Exhibit 12.

13.Ruth B. Rimmer, Ph.D, CLCPs expert fee schedule (GREEN 1473), as Exhibit 13,

14.Kevin N. Foster, MD, MBA, FACS's Letter Regarding Record Review and Life Care
Plan (GREEN 1474), as Exhibit 14,

15.Kevin N. Foster, MD, MBA, FACS's Curriculum Vitae (GREEN 1475-1513), as
Exhibit 15.

16.Kevin N, Foster, MD, MBA FACS expert fee schedule {(GREEN 1514), as
Exhibit 16.

17.Kevint N. Foster, MD, MBA, FACS's testimony history (GREEN 1515-1518), as
Exhibit 17,

18, Michael A, Elliott, Ph.D’s Curriculum Vitae (GREEN 1519-1523), as Exhibit 18.

19.Michaet A. Elliott's expert fee schedule (GREEN 1524), as Exhibit 19.

20.Jon &, Petrick, DC's Curriculum Vitae (GREEN 1525-1526), as Exhibit 20.

21.Paul J. Chestovich, MD, FACS's Curriculum Vitae (GREEN 1527-1543), as
Exhibit 21.
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2 | hereby certify that on the 29th day of fanuary 2021, service of the foregoing
3| Plaintiff, joshua Green's Initial Designation of Expert Witnesses and Reports
4| was made by required electronic service to the following individuals:
5| Felicia Galati, Esq, James P.C. Silvestri, Fsq.
Nevada Bar No.: 007341 Nevada Bar No.: 3603
6| OLSON, CANNON, GORMLEY, Steven M. Goldstein, Esq.
ANGULOC & STROBERSK! Nevada Bar No.: 006318
71 9950 West Cheyenne Avenue PYATT SILVERSTRI
L as Vegas, Nevada 88129 700 Bridger Avenue, Suite 600
8| T:702-384-4012; and Las Vegas, Nevada 89101
Michael McMullen, Esq. Tel: 702-477-0088
9| BAKER STERCH| COWDEN & RICE
2400 Pershing Road, Suite 500 Attorneys for Defendant,
101 Kansas City, Missouri 64108 Mario S, Gonzalez

T: 816-474-2121
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Attorneys for Defendant,
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Joshua Green, Volume [1

June 29, 2020

Pages 279..282

Tage 279

Fage 281

1 Whersupan, 1 o any learning disability problemns?
2 JOSHUA GREEM, 2z A Mo,
3 having besn sworn to testify to the truth, the whele | 3 Q. You testified that tha first six months
4 truth, and nothing but the truth, was examined and 4 safter the accident that your mother helped with you
S testified under path as follows: 5 with daily activities such as esting, bathing, and
G € deiving whila your hands and avins weca healing, is
7 ERXAMINATION 7 that true?
3 RY MR, McMOLLEN: a A. ¥es,
g Q. Good morming, 9 Q. You testified by Octohber '18 -~ morry, by
10 A, Good merning. 10 Cotchar of 2018, that by then you were able to
11 Q. How are you, Josh? i1 return o work full tims as a chef cosking in the
12 A, Good. 12 kitchen; is that right?
13 Q. How are you Fesaling today? 13 Ao Yas,
14 A, Gogd.  Itehy hands, but good, 34 Q.  And @id that inglude uwsing gas grills in
i5 Q. Do you feel like you can complete your 15 the kitchen?
16 deposition today? And by that I inean, is there 16 A, I hgven't used a gas grill or a propane
17 anything that might interfere with your ability to VToarill sinee the agcident,
18 do =mg? 18 Q. ¥ou'vwe not wged any gas grill at ail
1% A, Ho, {19 since the time of the accident?
20 Q. 8o you do fael like you can continue? §20 A,  Noo
21 Ao Yes., I gan conhinee, 521 Q. And that gets inte paychologieal issues
22 @. Al right. Thanks, {22 whewe you are fearful of using a gas grill; iz that
23 1 just have & faw things and than I'm 523 righe?
24 going to pass the witness to other counsel. !24 A. Yos. It happeted opce, It can happen
25 Last time we talked about your work 125 again,
1 imsues, and you testified that leny befors this 1 . Other than the psychologigal issue which
2 grill accident, you had epileptic seizures, T 1 2 I'll get into in a mement, acscording to your priox
3 think you said those begen when you were working at | 3 testimony, the only remaining preblem that yeu're
4  EkionyPATE; is chat right? i 4 faging that you relate to the accident is
) LW It began before that, but yea, 5 5 tamparature extremes on your hands; is that trus?
6 Q. And you testified at least injtdally that | 6 A, Yes,
7?7 the seizures reduced your work hours, correct? 7 Q. So let's talk asbout the psychologiocal
g A, Yes, 8 issue briefly.
9 Q. And then if I undarstend, once you a You teatified last time that -- that was
10 treated those seisures with medical marijuana, it 10 Mmy 18, I believe, that the Friday before we
11 has been zeveral years since you've had any 11 started your daposition, which would be May 15,
12 seirures; is that txuas? 12 that you saw a —- is it paycholegist or
13 A, Mes, 13 paychiatrist?
14 Q. 50 am I correct that you no longer have l 14 A, Paychologist.
15 any redugtion in vour work hours due to seizures? 15 ¢. Is that Michael Elliothb?
16 A, Yes, 14 A, Y,
17 Q. You also testified sbout at a very young |17 @, You saw paychologiast Michael Elliett for
1B age, st least at that times, a learning disability; 518 an evaluation on May 157
14 is that right? 119 A, Yes,
20 A.  Yes, 20 Q. Hava you hasrd from him on the results of
2L Q. Are thera any current continuing issues 21 his sraluation?
22 that you relate to that leazning disability that 2z A, Yes, [ have another agpointwent with him
23 Ainterfera with your work? 23 on July lst,
24 Ao Mo 24 Q.  Can vou tell us what results he reported
25 Q. 9o there's no reduction in work hours dua |25 to you from his evaluation?
Envision Legal Solutions 702-805-4800 schedulingenvision.legal
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Joshua Green, Volume 11

June 29, 2020

Pages 283..286

Page 283

Fape 183

1 A, ¥We didn't really go into too much of it. | 1 A, Bo,
2 Thay said we were going to go over stuff on the : z Q. Do you know what future tests he has in
3 Ist. Just told me that I had -- from his findings, | 3 mind?
4 that I —- that T have FTSD on the situation, and i 4 A, Mo,
5 thal, you know, me working on grills or anything E 5 Q. But pome kind of testing you undarstand
% that has to do with potential Ffire, it definitely i 6 iz slated for the next visit?
7 has a play on it. P A, Yes,
¥ Angd, 1 omean, his whole thing is vhab he | 8 . And that's on July 1%
9 definitely thinks that there's trauma due to the E ] A, Tes.
10 incident. [0 Q. Did you get any paperwork fram him, any
11 Q. Did he spesifically diagnose you with 111 kind of report or test results from when yoo s
12 PTSD as a result of this grill accident? 112 hin on May 157
13 A. 7 mean, he told me that be fasls that it |13 A. T believe everything waz given to my
14 can and then that's why they're doling wore tests 14 lawyer.
b and they're doing move —- that's why we're having P15 Q. Okay. HRave you gean it?
16 more meetings and wore segsions. 15 A.  Ho.
17 [+R 8¢ if I understand, igs hiz evaluation 17 Q. Fergiva ma if I covered this hefore,
18 continuing or has he completed his -~ 18 Had you ever heen diagnosed with PPED
13 A, No. It's continuing, 1% bafone this aceident?
20 Q. 8¢ at thig point he said it's a 20 A. N
21 posaikility that you have PTSL from this acoidant 21 Q.  Hava you evar had any traumatic svent
22 but that more evaluation is needed; is that trua®? |22 bafore this accident that required any kind of
23 A, Yes, and going more inte a detailed P23 profeszsional cara?
24 poycholegical session, snd that's what we're going |24 A, Mo, I mean, I had a bad car accident,
25 on duly ist, 25 but I never had -- you know, 1 never had anything
i Q. Did you do any testing on May 15 with 1 from it,
2 Michael Elliatt? be . You were seeiny lauren Unger, a shaman in
3 A.  Yes. E 3 Miami?
4§ @,  what kind of testing? E 4 A, Mo-hnom.
5 A, T went in front of & computer and b5 Q. And whet sperifically were you seeing her
& answered a banch of questions, E § fapv
7 9. Do you happon to know the name of that > T A. I was seeing her for -~ T'we had & Jot of
8 taszt, what it's called? ‘r 8 businesses and I was, you know, faken advantage of
2 Ao HWo.o I othink it was like & Pearson's test | % in & couple ways. And T osaw her because [ wag
W or some stralghhtorwasd test, 10 zuper negative in my life and saw o lot of things
13 0. Po you racall how many questiong were 11 golng in a negative spiral. 8o T wenb to her to
12 invelved? 13 fiw - to fix things and golng into a better
13 B, Like 200. 1 don't eves -- it was & lot., 13 direchtion, positive and -- you know, kind of fix my
14 0 How long did it take? 14 life in differvent ways.
15 A, Like two and a Dalf hours, two hous, 15 Q. And that had to do in part, I think, from
le Q. Waz it a multiple choice or an essay 186 what you testified before, with what happened with
17 typa? 17 Green Gourmet and SkinryFATS?
18 A, Multiple cholce. i N Yssz,
19 Q. S0 you've given a question and then yeu 1% Q. 'That wes a pegetive impact?
20 have, what, three or four possible angwers and you |20 A, Yes,
21 pick one of those? 21 Q. Pseychologioally?
22 A, Yoz, 27 A, Yes. 1 mean, everything.
23 Q. Do you recall any other type of testing |22 Q.  FRight.
24 that you took on May 15 when you saw Michael |24 Do you feel that you had recovered fxom
2% Elliott for psychelogical evaluation? ;25 that negative psychological impact, what happaned
I
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1 with those businessas, before this acecident boorelevant. It ls relevant. Iv's privileged because
2 heppened? 2 it is a treating person, a person providing medical
3 A, Yes., Begause I - I mean, after going to | 3 treatment or psychological treatment. S for that
4 her, T felt thot I waz a different —— ! was a 4 reasen, it is subject to the patient privilege.
5 different person, and I just felt in a more 5 MR, MeMOLLEN: In Nevada is the privilege
B positive attitude vowards things and nat as 6 not waived once the plaintiff pots the condition in
T negative. 7 oissue? Thal's been my experience.
8 Q. By the way, I'm sure I'm mistaken, but g MR, PFAU: Mo, it's nob waived. Lo's not
% Lauren Ungar is not now your wifa? Is it a 9 eaived as it relates to communications.
10 diffarent lLauren? 19 MR, MeMULLEN: 8o if I had medical
iy A, Yes, 11 records or some notes that she made when she
1z Q tavren Ungar is still in Miami semevhere? | 17 provides therapy to him, clearly thase would be
13 A. Yea, @ arill talk ro her. 13 discoverable and I could ask him about those,
14 2 How often do you talk to her? 14 ME. PFAD:  Cervainly.
15 A, Whenever T need bo, bub usually liks 15 MR, MCMULLEN: And that's along the lines
1& once - I touch base once every two weeks. 16 what 1'm ssking now, whether she's provided him any
17 Q. What do you talk about generally? 17 waaistance or help, advice, with his psyshological
18 A, Just whab's going on, my well-being, how 18 issues.
19 1'm doing, how, you know, my path is going. 14 M, PEAU:  Ckay. Thal's fine,
20 Q. e you talk to Lauren Unger specifically ;20 BY MR, McMULLEN:
21 about your psychoelogical issues frem this accident? ; 21 Q. Has Lauren Unger provided you with amy
22 A, Iomgan, wa've had dissussions about i, 22 eare, theesapy-type oare, in relation to thia
23 ves. 23 acoident?
24 Q. I she eomecne that provides therapy foxr M4 A, Just like I sald before, just normal -
25 you on that? 5 just conversations and we talk abont -- we do talk
Paje 288 i T P 3T
1 A, I mean, she gives me the advics from Pl gheowt the incident. We talk about what heppensd,
2 her == from her side, and, you know, it's not i 7 how I'm doing, and vou koow, the situation -- how
3 really —- 1 wouldn't say “therapy, " but it's more i 3 I'm handling it, how I'm going throtgh it And
4 of talks and conversations of making myself betrver, | 4 that's really the basis of it
5 Q. Is that the main reasen you still hawve E 5 Q. In the course of the carse or therapy that
6 contact with her, or are you mainly trRlking about E ¢ Lavren Unger has provided you, has ghe given you
7 othar things? | 7 any specific advice to help with your psychologicel
4 A, I mean, we talk aboubt sverything, I E 8 inmues?
9 mean, we have conwersations about this accident, P A. Np. She jost said to go to a more
10 ahout everything., 10 detailed psychological Lreatment and that's why I
i1 Q.  You talk to har aboub your ganecal P11 went to Michael Elliott,
12 well-being? 12 Q. I sea,
13 A, Yes, 13 A.  The conversations thal we have age mooe
L4 Q. Has ghe givan yvou any advice regarding 4 of a -— abour my attitode, my ways of how I'm
18 your peychological issues from this accldent? 1% dealing with all the situations thav come into my
16 MR. PFAU:  I'm going to ebviect to the 16 life, and how I'm making my Life better.
17T question as it calls for privileged commnications, {17 Q. How is your attitude snd cutiook new?
18 He can answer as long as it's not related to 18 How would you degoribe your psycholegicsl state?
19 anything she may have said to him, 19 A, T mean, everything -- it's been goud,
20 MR, MoMULLEN: L't not sure ! understand {20 but, T mean, @ lob of -- like I said before, a lot
21 the nature of the privilege. He's pub his 21 of this incident just made me —- hindersd a lot of
28 psvehological condition at issue, so if he's 22 things that I would have done before.
23 getting any kind of professional care, that's now 23 I was -- 1 never was ever in fear of
24 become relevant, 24 sguipment. BNow I have fear of equipment, I have
25 MR, PEAD:  It's not that it's net gﬁ fear of grills. I meon, I -- you know, I do cook
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1 on a noemal basis, but i4's alwavs like -+ T used 1 A, 1 mean, svery dogtor I have been to just
£ to work 16—, 17-hour days. T don't do that 2 says put cream and kind of walt it out and see if
3 anymore, 3 it's going to get berter. They all tell me it's
g 1 propably work —- I mean, right now I 4 going to gel hetter and it's just a waiting
% work at a pizze place. It's cplled Fries N' Ples, S process.
6 I wozk therg four or five hours a day and that's & Q. T3 it getting any better?
7 it, And then T go do @ personal chef thing for a 7 A, I mean, like T didn't have jtehing issues
8 couple hours. Itfs very minimsl work in the 8 until, vou know, the past two months. And that's
9 kitchen. % dust -- maybe that -- Like I said, maybe that's the
G When I usad to work ab SkinnyFATS, 1 10 healing process or maybe it's just a sensitivity
11 worked 16 bours a day. %S¢ it's a totally different ;11 issue, but that's...
1% situvation. ; 1z Q. Have vou talked Lo any medical parson
13 Q. Are you saying you work fewer hours 113 abeut these issuss?
14 becsuss you're afraid of being in a cooking 14 Ao T did go to a skin, and they tell me the
15  envirocnment? i 1% game - you know, they tell me the same things, put
16 A. Yeah. Thab and -- T mean, I've got real il(i letion, keep sn eye on it, make sure, you knaow, if
17 bad sensitivity on my hands, My hands have heen 17 you have any other issues, oome back and see os,
18 ibohing in the past owo »- two months, monch, 7 E 1B And that's really Lt
1% mean, I ger out of the shower and if it's cold 118 @. ‘Waz this a dermatolegist in Henderson you
20 outaide, like, ! have o be extremaly dry in the 520 told me about last time?
21 shower, because Lf I go oub and it's cold, my hands |21 A, It wam that one and then thers was
28 aeb extremgly sensiitive. 522 anather one,
23 I have been having issves of itching on §23 Q. When wes the last tims you talked te any
24 ry hands., Maybe that's the healing process or iza profassional about thig?
2% whatever. But my hands are saxtremely Light. The ;25 A, ! den't really have exact memory, bub 1
PngtEQZi T
1 skin iz extzemely tight. @ get cuts all the time, | 1 could say March or April, in those months,
2 You can see hlisters from oubs., 1 mean, it's 2 G, Whe was that, if you remember?
4 blisters. 1 3 A, Idon't. 1 don't remember the namg. I
i T mean, it's crazy. Amd it's on & g 4 know wherae 10 was, but [ don't remember the name,
% pontinueuns basis, ; 5 Q.  And you got the advicoe about using
& MR, MeMULLEN:  Would you be okay if he i 6 lotion?
7 helds his hends up for the video so we gan ses his 7 A Yes,
B hands? 8 {. Do you use lotion?
4 M, PFAL: Sure, 4 A, Yes.
10 BY MR, MeMULLEN: 10 Q. What kind of lotion is ie?
11 Q. &how us, if you weuld, whers the blisters |11 h, It's & - @ derpa —- 4 derma -- 1 don't
12 and the itching ococur, 12 know exgctly what it's called.
13 A, Blister here, blister here (irdicating). |33 ¢, Is it over the countex oF preseription?
14 Q. Go like thig so thay can see. 14 A, Prescription.
15 Thank you, 15 . ¥Who prescribed it?
16 i, Blister here. Scar here. Or like my 16 K. Byery dermatologist that I went to
17 palms get scraped very easily. I got a blister 17 prescribed the same thing, and it's §75 nottle of
18 hers. And it's just a continoeal basis of. .. 18 crean that --
18 Q. %o specifically regarding your hands, I'm |19 L. Does it help?
20 understanding that you have itching, you hava 20 Ao Ne,
21 blisters, mnd you have sorapoes? 21 Q. Have you bold your health care peopls
28 A, Yeah, and sensitiviry issues. 22 this lotion isn't helping?
23 Q. And semsitivity, 23 A, Yes.
24 What are you deing to treat those 24 Q. Do they have any advica?
25 problemsz, if anything? 525 A, Same thing when I wanl to the person [
!
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bosald, 1 uwse this alrveady, and they said just keep 1 1 think yvou told ma bafore ==

2 wsing it, That's really it. i 2 A, Yeah, Tylenol, like I sald, and CBD and
3 And then they say that it's going to —- 3 marijuana,

4 you know, the sensitivity issues should go away and | 4 Q. Anything else?

5 it hagn't. BApd to be honest with you, I den't 5 A, No, mot right now.

b think it will because iU just gets worse. Me 3 . Have you spoken to any haealtheare

7 grabbing something from the freezer, me grabbing o 7 professional and gaid, Hey, I need to do sotething
8 hot cup of coffes —- you know, like T said last 8 more, or are these things working?

9 time, if T grab & bet cup of coffes without a % A, They work. I mean, it hasn't gob Lo &
10 jacket on L, you know, it hurns, 10 point where it's not working, so I just keep on ——

i1 Q. 8o I mppeaciate your patiescs with my 11 on Chalt system.

12 detailad questions. I'm trying to get a very 12 Q. A litele bit more about the PTSD. The
13 thoremgh wderstanding of the issues vou still have ElE symptoms of yvour ETED you've told me are fear of
14 from this aggident. {14 wuging grills, fear of other equipment,

15 T understand physically, with regard to 18 What other ecguipment besides grills are
16 your hateds, you told me about sensitivity to ]15 you fearful of using because you ralats that te
17 temperature, itching, bhiisters, sorapes, and then 117 thie agcident?

18 you've told me psychologically you have a fear of ila A, Ay -- vou know, like I told vem last

19 using grills. 119 vime, I do catering, 8o wich catering, you hook up
&0 A M-, !RD ovens,. Yo hook up differant things that have
21 Q. Is there anything else that’s gontinuwing 221 propang, 5o I don't really use -- I haven't used
22 from thigz acpident that you claim teday? §22 any propane since this aocident and 1 don't think 1
23 A I mean, I have headaches on a canbinoal |23 ever wWill,
¥4 basiz. I mean, that is -- ¥ belleve ic's from the E?A I mean, that's the thing of it. The

it's never stopped singe E?ﬁ propane, the explosion was so braumatic to the

25 blow and like iv just

Fipe 206 T Hage IR

1 that accident. I've always had continnens 1 point where ift's like, you know, 1t blow me back
£ headachas, That's one of the reasons why I simoke 4 and I oo you know, ii T dddn't jump {n the

3 weed, is pecause of that. 3 sprinkier, I might have had & lot more, yoo know,
4 And the headaches get so painful, 4 damages.  But because of my, vou know, apility of
% sometimes I -- you know, if pou do look at wy S reagting, I pot myself in water, you know, in &

£ medical record, I had a problem with headaches and | 6 sprinkler, and put out the fire.

T then it kind of got resclved, and then after this § ¥ And then as somm as I -- as soon a5 the
§  aceident T've had messive headaches all the time. { & fire went ocut, 1 looked at my handg and T gald "I'm
9 Q. I msked you last time -- snd maybae I 9 never going to be abkle to cook sgain.” S0 —-

10 misunderatood or maybe the answer has changed —— Af | 10 Q. Do oyou have sy PTSD aymptoms, An your
11 any healthears professional has tpld you that your |11 opindon, other than whabk you've told me? Arxe you

3a
n

12 headaches today are likely the result of this fearful of using propane?

13 gepident. And I thought you zaid no one hes, but 13 A, Yep., T ouean, T'm fearful of using

14 is that mistaken? 14 preopane,  1'm fearful of using grills. I'm afraid
15 A, No. Like 7 said, 7 said that I gst 19 of fire, I mesn, I went to O, a show at the

16 headaches anc T believe that it's from that., I 18 Bellegio, with my boss, and T wag sivting there and
17 haven't been to & -- I mean, I went to, you lnow, 17 there wazs a guy on fire and T wag like, "Oh, look.
18 the specific individwals that [ went to, but ne one 18 It's me." You know, anything that I see that has
19 has sald enactly from the acoident, 19 to do with & guy on fire or, yow know, any of that,
20 But T -- you know, like T said before, T 120 1t bripgs back the nemories.

21 Anad that's the biggest thing, is that
27 it's always -~ I'm always heing =~ you know, I'm

3 slways remembering the situation because it was sp
dramatic and the fact where I was in the hospital &
I was in a lot of troatment with them

21 went through tieatment for the headaches,

37 evervihing was good, and then after this accident i

73 had numerous amounts of more headaches. S
!
E.
L

o

a4 Q. Are you getbing any treatmant today for 2
25 your headaches other than ovaer-the-counter Tylengl

v

25 while.
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1 ripping off my bandages and just like the whole i A, T mean, 1 think we've covered most of i4.
7 process was extromely emotional and devastating o 2 I just, you know -= yeah,
3 everything chat I've done afrer the accident. 3 2. Al)l xight. 2o T wented to ask you
4 Q. Bo if you sea fire, that brings hagk 4 hriefly shout Green's Gourmet and SkinoyFATS, You
5 these bad memories? % testified before that Green's Gourmet -~ which, iy
& A, Yes. & the wey, i3 that greens like we sab greans or is
7 Q. Anythireg elss regarding PTSD? T that you, Sreen?
B A. 1 omean, the biggest thing is bhat, like I | § A, Me.
9 gaid before =~ and T don't peally -~ you know, L1f 4 @, Bo it's Josh Green's Gourmet?
il this does pertain to ETSD, it's just the fact where |10 M. Yes,
11 before T wss able to do a lot more things in the 11 . ‘That was & personal chef cmtering
12 kitchen, & lot more things ab work, a lot more 12 business that you with started with scmeons named
13 things in wy life, and now it°s hindersd a lot of 13 Demetri and an irvestor, cortect?
14 things, to make me think about doing things either |14 A, Yes.
15 differsntly or things that I, you know, react, 15 Q. What'z Pemstri's last name?
1 I oreact kind of just — I think about 14 A, Townsend.
17 things before T do it, whers befors I would just, 17 Q. 1w sorey?
18 oh, turn on & grill and I wouldn't even think ahout |18 A, Townsend.  T-o-w-n-s-e-n-d, I teliave,
19 i, or I would -- you know. 8o a lot of that stuft |19 @, And who was the investoo?
20 has to do with the posttraumabic syndroms of having 20 A, Tony Clark.
A1 to deal with »- you know, of what happened, 21 @. Is Gresn's Gouemet still in buginess?
2R Q. 5o you told me before that you're less s A, Mo
23 social, you're more withdrawn? 23 @, Where is Dematri Townsend todsy, if you
24 A, Yeal, 24  know?
258 Q. With regaxd to working in the kitchan, 25 A, L don't know.
1 you do stdll cock in the kitchen, true? 1 ©.  The last time you knew where he was,
) A, Yes, but very little, 2 whare was he?
3 Q. 8o what squipment do you use now that you | I A, Lag Veges, But I haven't talked to him
4 dich't usze bafora? A mime,
5 A, D omean, I use a flat top grill, which is 5 ¢, How about Tony Clark?
& a8 controlled gas grill, you know, that —— you know, b A, HNo,
7 oyes, anything can bagpen, but it's pretiy ki Q.  You dd vestify -- the words you used
g controlled. %o, you know, if there's —- if there's | B were that they sideswiped you, that they, guote,
9 & gas problem, IT'wm going to smell 1t or I'm going 9 ‘'"pughed you out of the company. "
10 o know about it before it goes into the grill. 10 What happened?
11 And then I uge fryars on a dally basis. 11 Ao I went to work for & big fighver in Miani
1z §). 5o the gas equipment that you use would 12 and LA, amd while 1| was doing that, they wersg doing
13 be a flat top or a fryer, bubt am I correct that 13 things bekind my back in the business,
14 it's not propane that yea're paing? 14 And when T came back, we were —— we weye
1% A, Wo. 15 having & talk, and they said that because I was
16 Q. It's natuwral gas? 16 doing personzl chef stuff snd obther things, that
17 A, Yes, I will never use propane again. T 17 they dido't think ! was, you know, putiing all
18 mean, that's just -- and that's, you know, part of |18 the »- and T sharted the business, So they wers --
1% the PTED. That's part of a lot of, you know, the 19 I waan't putting as maeh effort or they were
20 rthinking process of using propane after this 20 runing the business while I was doing this other
21 incident -- accident. 21 =ruff, And it just led to problems.
22 Q. Anything else vou can think of that you 22 And then they tried to start the aviation
23 ecan't do or you don't do like you did before or 23 company without me and they went «- and they were
24 other symptoms yeu relate te PTSD, or have we 124 done in those monkhs.
2% covered it? 25 Q. Weve you an investor yourself? Did you
" A
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1 have an ownership intersst in Gresn's Gourmet? 1 Q.  And that wag back in 2013 or 20147
2 Ao 1 was the owner. T wes the $ole owner. | 2 A, ROLD.
3 I've, you know, dealt with a lot of issues behind | 3 Q.  Bo you testified hefore that you had a
4 ir. T was very young and I learned a lot of 4 falling out with Mr., $lobusky, that you had
5 lesgons from it, That's really what it comes down 8 disagreamants and you parted ways.
& to. ] What was the disagresment --
7 Q. 8o legally, if you were the sole owner of | 7 A T had & seizvre, actually. I had a
8 Green's Gowmet, how ware they sble to push you 8 seirure on the line and 1 was in the hospital for a
5 ogut? 9 month after that, The doctor told him that T could
10 A, Because —— mo —— 1 mean, I was Che ownar 10 nobt work on the lipe doe to that.
11 and T gave Demetri -~ I gave him ownership. And 11 He said thet I didn't —- 7 wasn't
12 then wien I brought in the other inwestor, he 12 following my contractual obligations., And that's
13 brought in the accountants, he brought in 13 whers He said he dopsn't need we anymore, and it 1
14 everyrhing, brought in the business aspects of it, |14 wanted bo take 10 up with anybody, that I could
15 and they used that talent to -« you Know, in his 1% take it up with a lawyer,
16 business ways, to take control and force me out. I 16 I aspoke to a lawyer and, you know, we had
1 mean, that's really what it comes down to. 17 a conversation, and he aaid that 1 could do it, bot
1g @, Was there a lawsuit over this? 18 dt's going ta -- you know, tt's the same thing I
19 A.  Ho, 19 dust told you, He would have satoen me alive.
20 Q. hid they threaten to gue you? 20 Q. Did you have sn ownership interest in
21 h.  No. I mean, hob to sue me, ho. 21 SkinnyEaLE?
22 . Did you think about hiring a lawyer 22 A.  Phat's part of the issue. I was supposed
23 and - I?J to, T owas supposed Go have 2 percent. 1 was
24 B. I didn't have the money to fight it if«id supposed -- and then I had a contract for
2% That's the same reascn why SkinayFATs -- I didn't !2‘_‘1 10 percent, =zigned it, and he never gave it to the
T Page 3004 E
1 have money to fioht it., I mesn, that quy from Pl lawyer,
¢ SkinnyFATS would have eaten me alive because he E z Ang that's the whole thing., He was
3 would have spenlt as mich money as possiple,  And E 3 suppozed to be my tusiness advogate, He was
4 thal's exactly what happened, E ¢ supposed to be my confidant, And he got greedy and
5 Q. 8¢ vhen wa talk shout SkinnyFATS, is that [ 5o ostarted doing things to get me ot of it
& Reed Slobusky? { & Q. Bo orignally you werae supposed to have
7 A, Yep. ? 7 25 parcent, but somehow that got negotiated down to
8 Q. ¥ou sa8id he was your best friend at gne | B a centract for 10 parcent?
g tima? ! A, Well, it wag -- it was 10 percent and
10 A, He was. 10 then it waz, you know, afier a certaln time it
11 Q. And he was your financing partner for 11 would evolve into more, and --
12 SkinnyFATS? 12 §. 5o like Grean's Gowrmet, you felt like
13 A, He wag, i3 you had besn weonged but you didn't have the
14 . SkinnyFaS is still in oparation? 14 legal - vou didn't have the resources te fight it?
i5 A, Yes, 15 A, Yep,
16 Q. Do they hawe more than one location? i6 f. Did you talk to any imwyer about this?
17 A, Yep. 17 B, ¥ mean, ! spoke to friends that ape
18 Q.  Whare do those -- 1H lawyers, but, you know, Just to get advice.
19 A, Eight locations, 19 Q.  Did you talk to a lawyer sbout taking
20 Q. Where was the original location? 20 this on on a contingency so the expenses woeuld be
21 A, Daan Martin. 21 fronted by them end you can go forward?
22 Q. Is that Dean Martin Drive or Avanue? 22 A, I mean, nobody that I talked on nobody
23 A, Dean Martin Drive, I believe, 2% that 1 -- you know, was willing te do it
24 2. Here in Les Vegas? 24 Q. Bo you did talk to some lawyers, but they
25 A, Yep. 75 weren't willing to take it?
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1 A, Yeah, 1 A, Sgolt Sibley.
2 Q. 30 today -~ 2 Q. Who ig ha?
i A. Because he had the paperwork. 3 A.  He's a prominent man in Las Vegas. I
4 Q. I'm sorey? 4 mean, he has a bunch of businesses. And he got my
5 A, Because he had the paperwork.  He knew 5 pame throngh someone that — he was trying Lo lose
6 what he was doing, & welght, and he zaid, "I need the best perschal chef
ki Q. "He" being Slohusky? Toin town, Y oand somebody that I oknow referred him.
8 A, Yas, 8 And that's how it happened.
] Q. So today you're working at Fries ¥' Ples? g [+8 How long have you besen doing that?
10 A, Yas, 10 A, About five months.
1% Q. And Bz & personal chef for someona? 1 0, What kind of hours do you work as a
1z A, Yes. 12 parsonai chef for Mr. Sibley?
13 Q. What are your hours at Fries ¥' Pies? 13 A, Rbout 4300 to 8:00 every doy.
14 A, 10:00 to 3:00, 14 Q. Saeven days a week?
15 0.  And I know you told me this. 15 A, Yem,
i6 Is thers more than one location? 15 Q. Sounds like you'ze cocking all of his
17 A, Mo 17 evening meals, amywmy.
18 Q. Whera is ¥Fries N' Pies located? 18 A, Yep., I do hiz dinner.
14 A, 4503 Paradise Road. 19 Q. Do yau do other meals ton?
20 Q. Some of your tims vhen you'rze working 20 A, T leave a lunch for him in like a
21l thare fram 10:00 to 3:00 is cocking? 21 container.
22 A, Yes. 22 £, I know you're skilled at cooking a wide
23 ¢, Is that peisarily vhat you do? 7?3 variety of things, but ¢ive me an idea. What do
24 A, 1wean, I'moa manager, I'm an operating |24 you cook for him?
2% menager. Sco 1 operate the stora and make sure the |25 A, T mean, evarything., 1 mean, it's -- it
T B ] TR
1 store's opened and following the proper code of p1 can be tacos to pasta to -- T omean, anything and
¢ setting up the restaurent, 2 sverything,
3 Q. And you cook ag wall? 3 0. Do you uze any gag-fueled equipment to
4 A, Yes. i 4 woook for Mr. Sibley?
5 §. How muaeh time do you spend oooking at ; 3 A, T use -~ I mean, I use a stove and an
% Frias N' Fieg? 3 6 oven, and that's reslly ii.
1 A, 1 mean, actual cookiny, probably twe to |7 Q. Those are indeor appiiances?
8 three -- twe hours a day, two Lo thres hours a day. f B A, Yep., I mean, we have -~ he's asked me to
4 Q.  What do you cook? j 9 qrill a bunch of times and I tell himno and 1 tell
i A. T just cook on a flot top and wake french |10 him T can't. And then sbout thres sonths age, he
11 fries, 111 asked me to grill and thers was anpther person
12 Q. Well, that's what it is, zight, it's 12 there, ono of hiz Friends, who said that he would
1% pizza and french fries? 13 grill instead, so ¥ dide't have to.
14 A, Yeah. 14 Q. What kind of income are yvou making
i5 . How is thet businesz going? 15 working for Mr, Siblay?
L6 B it's good. I mean, it's getting hetter i6 A, T omake $4,000 awenth, And that's what
17 pow. We it the menv down, so... 17 heeps me afiost. So that's why 1 had to take thal
18 Q. How many employeas de you have? L18  jeb. Because I do not get pajd at Fries N' Pies
19 k. Beven. 119 because T own 45 percent of it.
20 Q.  Full time? 20 Q. That's a long-temn business venture?
21 A,  Yes. 21 A, Yes,
22 Q. Making a profit? 22 . Who owng the rest of Fries N' Pies today?
3 A, Starting vo, yes. 23 A.  Ahdam Sadie.
24 Q.  Your othsr job iy a pergonal chef to 24 Q.  ‘The twe of you are the owners; N0 one
25 somecne, and I forgot who somecne is, 25 elae?
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1 AL Yes —— oh, no. Thers is one 10 peroent 1 U CT N
4 investor, one of -- g friend of his. 2 Q. Do you have a timatable for that?
3 Q. Who is that? 3 A.  In the next yesy or Uwp, open another
4 A, Sherman -- 1 forget his last name.  Yu, 4 store, and then keep growing it after that.
5 actugally, Y-u. Sherman Yo. 5 Q. Opan another store in Lags Vegas?
] Q. Az manager of Fries N' Fieg, which T [ A, Yes,
7 understand has been in cperation since July of P Q. How many atores ultimately do you think
a 20187 2 vyou might open with Fries N' Piea?
4 A Yes, 4 A, 1 wean, the goal is 100-~plus,
1Q Q. Continvonsly? 10 Q.  ©One hundrad plus?
i1 A.  Yes. Besides the past ~- we clossd in 11 B, Yes.
12 March and recpened two weeks ago. 12 Q. Do you have ary axdpactation as to how
13 Q. Bacause of COVID-197 13 long that will tzke?
14 L. Yes, 1.4 h. 1 mean, ¥ think I could staerv selling
15 Q. Bui now you'‘re back open? 15 franchises in the next two to three years, and
L6 A, Yes, 16 history will be then,
17 . Including dine-in? 17 Q. Perhaps outside Las Vegas or no?
18 A, Yes, 18 A, Yeah., [ mear, that's my gozl, My goal
18 &, hs wmanager of Friea H' Pies, do you have 19 is te get it nationwide. Because it is easy o
20 & projaction or expactation as to how that business |20 duplicate. Mo peed be —— 1 don't need a big
21 may grow or how it will werk out in the futinre? 21 storefront. 1 don't need a big area. S0 iv's
22 A, Tomean —- mayvbe T odon't understand your 27 pretty easy to plug and play.
23 guestion. 23 Q. Do you have sume ldea whab the gross
24 Q. Sure, 24 sales or incoma currently iz for Fries N' Pies?
25 Do you have a business plan for Fries N' 25 A, The first year we were open, we made
1 Pies? Py TED, 000,
2 Ao T mean, we -- I mean, we developed it L2 Q. When you say you "made," is that net or
3 based on e I was actually uoing to put ina ] 3 aooss?
4 healthy concept. The guy wanted a plyza concept; ; 4 A, That was gross.
5 then Adam and 1 developed it. J 5 Q.  Tatal?
g L. Cap you do healthy pizza? 3 & B.o Tes.
7 B, We do, Itts cauliflower crust and { 7 Q. 760,0007
8 mroccoll crust. B A, Yes,
8 Q. S0 that concapt does survive in some way? g Q.  And that was July of '18 to July of 'l87
10 A Yes. 19 A, Yes,
11 Q. I'm not —— do you have a written business | 11 Q. How about July 19 to the present; do you
12 plan? 12 know?
13 A.  Por Fries N' Pies, no. !13 A, Right now T don'ty, but, [ medan, you know,
14 Q. Do you have a business plan in your head, |14 dus to COVID -- you know, now we -- L0 make a
1% g8 it were, as to what you want to —- {15 profif, we need to make 3100 an hour and we're
14 A, Agtually, Adam might have one, He might 1€ doing that, so...
17 have something then, 17 ®. S0 you're in the hlagk?
18 Well, our whole goal of it iz to =« 1 518 A Yuah, now we are,
19 mean, the reason T opensd Lt was becavse T had the 519 Q. Even with COVID?
20 experience -— our whole reason of opening it was to ) A, Well, T mean, we're starting to, yes.
21 franchise it. 5o that's where I'm goino wikh it. 2t Q. Ckay. Have you worked out or do you have
22 I'm trying to cake 1t to the next level and 22 some idesa of vhat yvour financizl benefit would ba
23 franchise it. 23 am you grow? With each franchise locatien that
24 Q. 5S¢ that's the main goal of the business 24 opens, how doss that bmpact you perzonally,
2% plan, is o grow and have other locations? 25 financinily? Do you have an idea?
Envision Legal Solutions 102-805-4300 scheduling@envision. legal

APP-1515



Joshua Green, Volume 11

June 29, 2020

Pages 315..318

Fage 375

Page 317

1 A. T mean, once we start, you know, making | 1 Aud that's how I've done this whole
2 Profit, vou know, we break it up into 45 percent ‘ P ingident., 1 haven't really comminicated with a lot
3 hdam, 45 percent me, 10 percent te the other quy. | 3 of different psople about i, bat I speak to a
4 And then the same with the Franohize —-— 3 4 certain group of pecple, you know,
5 the building of the franchise would be the Same 5 L Q. Do you feal thet your businesses ave
& way. ! 6 going well?
7 Q. For each franchise losation, the same 7 A Yeah,
B percentages? 8 0. You got married middie of May?
g A, Yes. G A, Yeah.
10 . Mr. Grean, you'va been very courteous and | 10 Q. Are you happlly mexried?
11 patient. Thanlk yo. 11 A, T am,
1z Is there anything about your testimeny as | 12 MR, MCMULLEN: Those are all my
1% wa git here that you think you need to change or 13 guestions. Thank you.
14 madr 14
15 h,  Ho. I mean, I just «- I just want you to |13 EXAMINATION
e kngw that, you know, afver the —— after the fire, 16 BY MS. WINSPRAR:
17 yet koow, like T sadd, you know, like I've been 17 Q. T think I'm probably next in order, My
18 stating, it's changed my life in many ways. I8 name is Gina Winspear and I represent Defendant
19 Angd now I'm just handling 1t in the fact | 1% Carl Kledsner,
A0 with -- like T wes never a practicing Jew before, 20 Have yvou ever met Mr. Kledisner?
21 and now, because of the accident, like T said, llke 121 A, T haven't,
22 1 stated last time, the rabbl came and sab with me 22 Q. Did you have any lmowledge of
23 for two hours and opened my world to religion. 23 Mr. Kisismar or had you ever heerd his nams prior
24 And, you know, now Iotalk tooa rabbl every single 24 to the incident back in June of 20187
25 day. 25 Ao No.
T g ST i """""" “Page 3TE
1 Sa, you koow, there's a lor of things 1 [+8 Sines the incident in June of 2018, have
2 that have changed, vou know, liks I said, with my 2 you had any conversabtions with Mario Gonzales about
3 thinking, my way of 1ife, because of the accident. 3 Mr. Hleisner?
4 That's really what it comes down to, 1 A, No.
L Q. When you talk to the zakbi, are you L Q. Havae wou obtained a digability rating
6 talking specifically mbout this accident or about 6 from any governwantal body or disshility insutes?
T oyour path forward? 1 A, No.
b2 A, We talk about everything. EBEverything, & . Have you applied for any dissbility
g Q. Tt's been a positive thing? 9 insuranes sines this incident in June of 20187
10 A Yezh, ] mean, you know, it's helped me 10 R 1 haven't,
11 get through -~ I mean, the biggest thing with this |11 0. Prier to the incident in June of 2018,
17 is having —- is being able to turn to pecple and 12 cid you have any knowledge that Mario was having
13 having people that, you know, understand, 13 ealasctricel prohlems with his kei pond?
14 You know, I speak to a very, very small !M A, Nor,
15 group of this incident. T don't talk to my friends 315 g, In yeur lawswit you allege that
16 aboul it. ! don't talk to anyone sbout it. I talk {16 Carl Kleisnsr owed a duty te Mavie Gonzalez and all
V! o my parents, I palk vo my rabbi. 1 talk to %1'? of his quests to ensure that all electwical lines
18 Lauren., T talk to my wife, And that's it, j 18 to the home were in working order.
19 It's very =~ I don't talk be -— you know, |19 Wara you awvare that's one of ywur
20 Maric is good friend of mine. T don't talk to him |20 atlegations in this lawsuit?
21 aboubt this incident at all. We don't have a 21 A, Yes,
27 conversabion abeul Lt becsuse 1 know he's emational !22 $. What information or knowledge do you have
23 ahout the situabion, and I don't -- you know, ma ;23 that the electrical lines in the homa were not in
24 and him have a friendship, and I don't want to ruin |24 working ordec?
25 the friendship, so T separats it 523‘7 B, 1 mean, I believe they were. That's the
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1 whole thing, 1 his backyard?
2 Q.  You believe they were or thoy ware not? 2 A. I don't know,
3 A, I didn't knew anything about the 3 . Yoo don't parsenally have amy of that
4 electrical problems. 4 information, fair?
3 Q. Bo as you ait here todmy, is that still 5 A, Yep,
& your position, you don't know one way ox another ] Q. Do you pergonally have any informstien
T ahout any electrical problems? 7 that Carl Kleisner naintained or repaired ammy
B MR, COLDSTEIN: I wanbk to raise an £ electeiesl lines inside Maric Songales's homa or in
5 objection.  Vegus, % his backyard in the barbacue area?
10 Go ahead, 10 A, No, T dan't.
11 BY ME. WINSPERR: 11 Q. and I believe -« and I just want to
12 Q. Do you understand my question? et me 12 dlarify from your earlier testimony. what T wrote
13 restate it Ao I make sure our record is really {13 down that you said weeks age whan we wera in your
14 clear. 14 criginal depesition ia that you didn't know
15 A, Yeah. i 16 anything sbout an electwician until after the
16 Q. In your lawsuit you allege that {16 ineidant,
17 Carl Kleisner owsd a duty to Mario Gonzaler and ail {17 Is that a fair statement?
18 hig guests on Mario's premizes to ensure that all 3 i3 B, Yes,
19 electrical lines to the home ware in working order. |10 Q.  You now know the name of an alectrician
20 As you slt here today, ds you have any '20 to be Carl Kleisnar, kut thatfs ~— ig that from
21 knowledga or information that the electrical linss {21  infermation Maric provided to you o information
22 were not in working ovdex? 22 vyou learned in the course of this lawsuit?
23 Mk, BRAD:  Objection that this calls for |23 A, 1 mean, both, Bubt T Jjust heard the name
24 an edpert opinion and callz for a legal concluaion, |24 from Marie, bub that was —— bhab was 1L
5 /A7 28 £,  Okay. You didn't ~ other than hearing a
1 BY M3, WINSPEAR: 1 pame, what other information did Mario give you
2 Q, You can gtill answar, 2 about Carl Kleiznex?
3 A, Sode I know -+ maybe say it again. 3 B, Nothing.
1 Q. Do you have any khowiedge or information ! M. WINSPERR: Okay. That's all the
5 that the electrical lines at Mario Gonzalez's hone B questions thab T nave., Thank you very much.
§ wera not in working ordsz? B MR, WALKER: T have ne quéshions.
ki A, No. 7 MR, GOLDETEIN: I'm Steve Goldstein, T
i wi, PFAD:  Sane obrjections, § represent Mario., 1 won't have too nany gquestions
9 THE WITHESS: © thought they werce. 4 becavse everyining's been thoroogh thes far. I
10 8Y M5, WINEPRAR: 10 juat have a few follow-up questions,
1 Q. S0 nething has been commndpated to yeu 11
12 by Mario irdicating that the electrical lines were 14 EXAMINATION
13 not in working order. 13 BY MR, GOLDSTEIN:
14 Ia that a fair statement? 14 Q. ‘The cream that you uwae — I don't know.
15 A, Yes, 15 Do wou still use it today?
16 Q.  And you never independently did any 16 ME. PFAL:  Asked and answered.
17 inspection or investigation of the electrical lines |17 BY MR, GOLDSTEIN:
18 ab Mario's heme elther insids or in the barbwoue 18 o, Forgive ma. I'm just laying a foundation
1% area., Is that also a fair statement? 19 here.
a0 A Yes, 20 A, Yes., T have a cream anmd I do uge it
2l Q.  In your == wall, let ma ask this 21 Q. How long doas it take you to go through a
22 cuestion. 22 bottle of craam of a tibe of cream?
23 Do you have any -- do you personally have |23 A, I mean, L['ve had the same bottle for a
24  any knowledse or inforswtion that Carl Kledsner 24 while, Bo --
25 installed electrical lines in Marie's hote or in 25 Q. A month, two montha?
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A, Couple monbhs. 1 A, I mean, be iz one of my hest friends at

Q. Okay. Do you apply it every day? 2 this time.

A. 1 apply it when needed or when I -~ but, 3 Q. Okay,

I mean, I have a Iotion that I use every day, yes. 4 A, And thet's why we don't talk about this

. Okay., Is the lotion over the countery? 5 rase. We don't commpnicate abowt it. We don't say

A, Yes. 6 nothing.

Q. What kind of lotion ig iy? i Q. When was the last time yvou commnicabed

A, T mean, it's nonemedicated. [ 8 about this casa?

Q. Brand? E 9 A, We don't —- I mean, honestly, we don't

A, Yes., It's like Aveono, Bub I alge use {10 have a -- we don't,

Lhe other lotion that 1 was given by the dochors. 11 Q. Wall, I imagrine dusing your healing

9.,  And I don't balisve you ramenbar thah 12 period you guys talked asbout things, zight?
fuitin? [13 A, Yeah. But I don't —-- T don't have an

A, ¥, I don't, 14 esact date,

Q. et me ask you aboubt your relationship 15 Q. I'm not asking for an exact date, But
with Marie a little bit. 16 was the last time you talked to him about thig

Ao Mes, 17 incident bafore you filed a lawmuit against him?

2. And forgive ma if we go over a little bit ;16 A, Yeah. 1 mean ~-
of what was discussed last time. 18 Q.  Have you been over to his house since the

¥ou -~ how long have you known Mario? 20 last time -— since yeu filed a lawsuit ageinst him?

A. I know Mario probably for five years. 21 A, Yes,

Q, Okay, Befora this incident, have you 22 . Approximately how many times have you
aver besn a business partmer with him at all? 23 haen ovar?

A, Ko, 4 A, 1 mean, I honestly can't tell you. T

Q. At the time of this incddent, were you 2h  don't know, Four or five, six, 1 don't know, We

Pape 334 é ‘ Page 376
all discussing husiness options and things to make } 1 hang oot. I mean, like 1 said, be's one of my bast
ity bogethar? Co2 o frienmds. Thiz didn't hinder anvthing because wa

A, T mean, we always talk about busipess, ! 1 don't talk about it
but nething to the Fach -- no, we weren’t doing |4 @.  But you do realize you are suing him,
anything. P B right?

. Thersa wesn't a gurmy basy CED -~ l fi A, Yes. DBut, I mean, my whole thing was --

Ao Oh, we were balking about thar, but that E T oyes, I'm suing him, bat, you know, the inserance
wasn't = he was just trving to ses if he could buy E 8 company, and at the end of the day, you know, my
a preduct for me because I have a white label 9 friendship -- that's the whole reason ve don't -
company for my ediblas. 10 wa don't talk about it, Yoo Know, we don't hava a

Q. Vhat dops that mean? 11 cohversation about 1t Decause we don’t w- you know,

A&, 1 have an edible company that I'm a 12 it keeps our friendship the way il should be.
partner with in San Diego that T Loy to ges 513 . Do you know why you're suing him?
cotttacts {or, and because he's in the CBD business, i 14 I I mean, vesh, hecauge he was negligent
T told him about that @ had this connection and we 1% and he hed Lhe — you know, it wes his grildd, It
were talking about it, but nothing came frem i, 16 was his place.  And, you know, 1f that incident

¢,  Would you classify your friendship with 17 didn't happen, then my life wonld be different
Marie to be good? 18 right now.

A.  Yesh, very good, 19 Q. So if I understand you corvectly, the

Q.  Today aven? 20 reason why yen'ze sulng him is becpuse he owned the

A, Yes, 21 geill and ha had the house?

Q. I know you mentioned one othar fallow 2z A, Yeah, I -- begause I was at his house
that vou worked with that started SkinnyFATS as 23 working on something that should have been handled
yemir bast friend., Where does Mario rate in the 24 and fixed and -- you know.
whola panthesn of Efriends that you have? 125 Q. But he wasg -- if ¥ understand sorrectly,

t
1
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1 he was told by Ferrellyas that the grill was Y 0. And that wes to go for your haalth
7 inspectad and fixed and everything was fine? ; 2 axpensoes?
3 A, And thab's how he toldd me, and then E 3 A. VYes, which is not even one peroent of it
4 thav's why we used it. And look what happened. iq Q. Understood. Undarstoed., It was 8 drop
§ Q. Okay. Bo with thet being said, then, yvou | 5§ in the bucket, lat’s say.
6 5till think that he's negligent when Parrellgss is 3 A, Pmehomn.
7 tha one that told him? ! T . But what did you think of that -~ him
] A, T think everyone in ths situation is i B patting up that GoFundMa page for you?
4 negligent to the fact where -- they ail had a place z 9 A, T meah, it was very -- it was nice and
10 in this incident, and if everyone handled it to the | 10 gensrous and. .,
11 way that they should have, it weuldn't have 11 Q. ALl might. You had mentioned that -
12 happened, [12 Mario gets - you hadn't talked to him because he
13 ©. Okay. Do you believe it is reasonable |13 gats emotional.
14 for Mario te trust what the representative for 14 What do you mean by that?
15 Yerrellgas told him? £1% A. 1 mean, just in the sivuation - T wean,
16 A, Yes. P16 when you talk about this incident -— and this is
17 And that's the thing. Wnen I ashked Mario i” Tike o lonyg, long time ago. When you talk about
18 LIF LU was Tixed, he said that he had the ckay from 1B the incident, he hust gels -- he gets choked up.
19 Ferrallgas and obvicusly it wasn't, 13 %o I leave it alone.
20 Q. Tha grill, vou maan? ] Q. 50 ha gets choked up in & way that is
21 A. Yes, What did I say? 21 sorrowful or somber?
22 Q.  Well -- ) A.  Yeah, I mean, I think that -- you knhow,
a3 A, Yeah, the grill. 23 he's --
24 Q. T just wanted to clarify what the okay 24 §. He's not angry about it is what I'm
23 was that was okay. 25 trying --
Bage 328 T R 3307
1 A. The grill was okay ho uvse, : 1 A, Mo, T den't think he's angry. 1 just
2 Q. That's what was told to Mario? b 2 vhink he's frustrated that it happened, He rrusted
3 A, Yes. 4 sompone —- you know, he brusted someone from & gas
4 G, We all know that yeu used the grill P4 company and now we're dealing with this issue,
5 before, i Q. Undarstood.
g A, Yes., ['we used numerous griils before. ; 6 Has any doctor told you that yop can't
7 ! never had an issue, {7 wark to your full potential?
8 Q.  And you've used that particuler grill : 8 A. T mean, directly, no, bt indirectly,
9 hefore witheut any isgue? ; b yes.
10 A, Yes. 10 0.,  What do you mean?
11 . After the incident, mnd I'm talking i1l B, 1 mean, every doctor that I've spoken to
12 dirvectly after the incident, when you were teken te {12 that T've had & conversation about, ty work, they
13 the hospital, Maric took you, right? : 13 tel) me Lo not work as much and they tell me to
14 A, Yes. P14 limit what I do in certaln areas, you know.
15 Q. Do you know that Mario set up 8 GoPundda | 15 And like T sajd before, [ used to work
16 page for you? 16 A6-, i7-hour days.  There would be no way I could
17 A, T do. 17 do that right now.
18 Q. And do you remember how much money Mario | 18 . But formatly, there has been nothing o
1% raised for you? 18 paper or anything saying you can't de what it is
2 A. T don't remember exactly. I think it was |20 yeu do, which iz be a chef?
21 like anywhere from $1,700 te 52,300, scwething in 21 A, 1 omean, you could take that two different
#2 that range. P22 ways: Me belng a chef and being able Vo use avery
23 0. #nd he gave you all that money; ls that ta3 piece of eguipment chat l'w able Lo use? L am not
24 pight? j24 able to use sverybhing, so yes, it hinders me,
25 A, Yeah, 25 And the ability of grabbing hot stuff, I
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1 mean, like before, T used to grab ~- I mean, I used | 3 Q. Did you see any kind of certifications
2 to work at a restaurant which had a thousand 2 hanging on the wall in har -- in her heuse at all?
3 covers. I used to grab steaks off the grill, like, 3 A, T mean, no, but T, vou know, I know she
& with my hands. Aog now T gan't even touch 4 went through a lot of training and, yow know, T

5 something hot, 5 definitely -- hefore it wssn't just the hlind

3 Q. T think that iz, you know, an incredible & thing., Like T knew that she's worked with people
7 fmat. I just want to put that on the record., Ha 7 and helped people,

B eould tske something hot before and £lip 1t? B Q. Does she have an office or doss she work
G £. 1 mesan, yeah., As 3 chef, snd every chef % out of her house?

10 will tell you, that when you build = you huild 10 B.  She works oot of her house.

11 your tolerance. It 0. DBoes she see other — doas she have other
12 Q. Right. 12 oliente that you know of?
13 In your business, in your line of work, 13 A, Yes.
34 do you ever use oven mitts? 14 Q. I dusk want to follow up on your itchy
1% A, I use towels, which i1s like an oven mitt, {15 hands,
i6 [+3 Kind of iike that, yeah. 16 You said that they have been itchy for
17 How - 17 approsimacely ebout two months?

18 A,  But now, anything that I grab ~- like 18 A, Yap.

158 befors, 7 used to grab stuefl with either a danp 19 0. Doas that mean they were not itchy before
20 Lowel or whatever, just grab it, And now it's like |20 this incident?
21 1 have toc make sure everything's dry, or like 161 |21 A, They wore. Not §o the point where 1 got
22 grab something -- the other day I grabbed something |22 to scratch them every couple hours on whaltever.

23 aub of the oven that wes sitting oot for probably {23 They just itoh more than frequently, more than they
240 25, 30 minutses, out of the oven, I grabbed the pan §241 did,

75 and [ dropped it right away because it was hotter | 28 4. Do you beve any allergias?

1 than T can handle. ! A, T o,

2 Q. You woxk for this Scott Siblay person. ! 2 Q. What?

3 How long have you worked for him now? 3 A, Demercl, codeine, atwl shellfish,

4 A, Five months. 4 Q, Have yeu hed in the last two months any
5 Q.  Five months, 5 of thoge?

& and did you know him before? E A, HNo.

T A. Before the incident? 7 Q Or before that?

B Q. Mo. Bafure working for him. 8 b Nes,

4 A.  No, 9 Q. All types of shellfish or just --

10 Q. And you work about four hours a day for 14 A.  Red shellfish, crap, lobster, shrimp.

11 ‘Thim? 11 Q All the good stuff,

1z A, Yep. iz A Yes,
13 Q. Do you have any assistants help you? 13 Q That us nice Jewish boys should be

14 AL Ho. 14 eating

15 Q. Now, Lanren Unger, do you know if sha has i 15 go with the payehologist,
16 any kind of certificatisns, profassional ;lﬁ Michael Elliott, you've seen him one time, right?
17 eoertifications? ; 1 B, Yes,

18 A, T believe so, yeah. 18 Q. How many minutes or hours did you spend
19 @ Have you sean them or -- do yow know? 1% with him on that first visit?

20 A, No. I helieve so, I said -~ that's all. |20 A, 1 mean, I dust did a testing visit with
21 &he's -~ from my understanding, ste's a certified 21 him. It was Iike two and ¢ half hours,

22 healer and shemen, whatewer you want to call it. 22 Q. And it was you filling out forme?

23 ©. ALl might. You have lives with her for a |23 A, Me going through questions and -- yeah.
28 little bit of tima, right? 24 0, Did he tall you the questions and you
25 A, Yes. 25

provided answera ot did you £ill out ~-
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Puge 3335 Page 337
i A.  No. T sat a computer and filled it out. 1 deal with grills,
2 2. 8o he wasn't Like providing yvou with any 2 0. Anything about grills you den't do?
3 guidance at that time? 3 A, No. It's like an ex-girlfriend, 0Otay
4 A, Not yst, ne. That's why we'ne having 4 away from it,
5 another meeting on the lst. ] . So how often do vou get hlisters on yeur
6 . I'm just going through my notes from the & hand?
7 Jast time, 7 Ao T mean, not —- b can bhappen -- 1 omean,
8 A, Angd the biggest thing is @ hat no fear of | 8 1t happens on 3 continuous basis. T don't know
¢ using anything before. Tdke never had a fear of 9 exactly.
W odrills, equipment. And now, you know, I have a 10 ¢, Well —
11 fear, a fear of a let of different things. 11 B T omean, T ohad this blister -- 1 had this
1z Q. In your mind, do you know if there's a 12 blister the other day. I have —- you know, L have
13 difference betwesn patural gus and propane? 13 blisters that come and go all the time.
14 . Yeah, rthere's a difference, he a. Ir that bacause you're dealing with heat?
15 ¢. Bacause vou mentioned earlier that you 15 A, Yeab. Heat., Yeah,
16 wort't uze propane, but the other geills at yeur 18 Q. B0 it comes on when porhaps maybe you're
17 work are matural gas, 17 taking a ~~ something you're cooking and you're
14 A.  Yma, But they'rs not open flame -- I 18 flipping ie?
12 won't use an open flame grill at all, ever. Even 14 A, MWell, I den't uzge wy kare hends anymore.
20 i ir's & gas yrill, I won't vpse it. I'm afraid of |20 Ib's just anything. T wean, 1 can touch something
21 ftames. I'm afraid of vhe idea of (ire. 21 that iz like & little hot and it will create a
22 Like -- 1 mean, like I sald to -- 2 blister.
23 My, MeMullen, ls L7 73 Q. Let ma ask you about the FIED you
24 MR, MCMOLLEN:  Ves, 24 mentioned earlier. If you're not thinking abwout or
25 THE WITNRESS: Like T said fo him, it %25 not having something like an open flame that you
1 was -- I mean, I saw the shew, and when I saw the | 1 see or sorebody on fire, do you think abaut, you
4 show, when 1 see anything on fire, it brings me i 2 know, the ingident?
3 back to that day and it's - you know, 1b's 2 3 A. 1 think about the incident all the time.
4 trawmatic. j 4 yash. It changed my life, drastically, in
5 OBY MR, GULDSTEIN: I'% averything that 1 do and everything that I -- 1
[ Q. So your grills at work aren't -~ den't 3 & mean...
7 have opan flame? 7 0. Bub up until May —
1! A, No. i A, I used to be a very active peraon and
$ Q. The grills at — &z the estove at i 9 always outside and always doing things, end like
1 Scott Sibley's, does it have opan £lame? {10 this hindered me -- I mean, for the whole month
11 A. It dees, but dt's —- you know, it's on —- | 11 that I wag, you knew —— or, I mean, from the time
12 it's controlled by a burner, so the Fleme is 12 since the accident, in the [lrst year ! didn't go
13 eoentrolled, Ir's not super high. And there's 13 in the sun at all., You know, there's a lot of
14 always something covering it.,  You know, I always i 14 things that I didn’t do because of the accident.
1% have a pan covering it oo, ., 15 Q. I balieve Marie told us about you plaviog
i6 2.  And do you ever use charcoal or 16 Thockey.
17 wood-pellaet grills? 17 A, PFlaying houkey?
18 B, No, 1B Q. Yaush, or being 2 good ice skater, ice
18 2.  Why net? i8 hockey?
20 A, T won't use -- T will not uvse a grill 20 A, Ohay, Yeah.
21l ewver since this accident. Like, T don't care what |23 Q. Can you tell us how long you have been ——
2% it ls. My father vses charcoal grills., T went tp 122 A. I played hockey for 22 yeara. 1 was
2% his house, He -- and I stayed inside when he, you 133 supposed to -- I chose to go to & cooking school o
24 know, dealt with the gqrill. 24 UNLY rather than going to & school for hockey., I
25 Like T don't go near grills. I don't i,’b ended up playing at UNLV after four op five yedrs,
- | -
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— Tage 359 YRER
1 when they started opening a team, Bug, I megan, T 1 ¢. finpe our last meeting, have you sean any
2 have skabted my whole life, { 2 medicml professicnals reganding thiz incident?
3 Q,  Okay. E k] A, Ho.
4 A, Mis son was skating, s¢ @ stavted 4 Q. 50 just Michmel Eiliott?
% teaching him how to skate, bob | never —- it was 5 A, Mm-hen,
& always -- I never used & stick or, you kpow, used é Q.  And then you're waiting until July lst
T anything., I would just skate with him. t 7 to have a follow-up wigit?
# . With Marie's son? ] A, Yea., And that wag because T had -- you
9 A, Yes. % know, after talking to my rabbi and Lauren Unger
il Q. Chkay, But you used -- you played I and specific paepls, I falt that it was time to get
11 hockey -~ wag this on a formal UMLY toam - i1 some more doctor help.
12 h. Yoz, 12 Q. And the rabbi you talked to, he's
13 Q. -- when yvou were a student thera? 13 amsooiated with Chabad, rzight?
14 A, Yes., T actually haven't played -~ T used |14 A, Yes.
1% to play roller hockey &1l the time. 1 haven't i5 Q.  Which Chabad?
16 played hockey since this accident. Lé A,  The ong on Arville,
17 Q. You said roller hockey? i Q. What waz his name again?
16 A, Yeah. T used Lo play on Sabhava and 18 A, Rabbl Motbi Hariig. M-o-t-U-i,
1% Maryland at a fecility, and I haven't playved since | 1% Heaer-ie-i-g.
20 this accident. 23 Q. ‘*he grills at Fries N' Fies, thera's no
2% Q2.  Has arvbody sadd that you can't play or 21 opan flame, right?
22 is it just that you don't want to play? 22 A, Moo
23 A.  No. I just haven't, 23 Q. 8¢ it doesn't have the same look as like
24 Q.  Ang the ice skating, when did vou tutor 24 Scott Sikley's that has, you kmow, a flame that
25 Mario's son? 25 vomas up from the stove?
.......... R T R TR
1 A. I mean, in the pasi .- it was only & 1 A, Well, it's a stove that I use at Scott's,
2 vouple -- LU was only like four or Five times. 2 and this one is a flat top grill that It's under
3 Q. Was it befora the incident or after? 3 the --
q A, I'm onot sure exactly. T think ih was & 4 Q. Understood.
§ little pefore, a little afrer. ['m not sure. & 9o there‘s a flame under the grill.
& Q. Have you been on the ice since tutoring & A, Yeah. The grill's a wetal or ateel
" Mario's son? T plate, and then the heat rises and you cook on i
] A, o, 5 Q. The pigzas that you-all make there, isz it
4 Q. Is it bocauvss you don't want to or you 4 an pven that'as ——
10 just hawven't had the opportunity? if Ao Mo flape.  Gas.
11 A, I st haven't, 11 Q. It's a gag oven?
12 ¢. Ckay. When you get 2 hlister, how long 12 A, Brick gas oven.
13 does it take for them to heal? 13 Q. 5S¢ there's na -« it's like not onas that's
14 A, Four or five days. i4 coal-fired?
15 ¢, Do you put anything en the blisters? 15 A, No.
1€ A, Just cream, 16 Q. I eall those the new fanay -- naw way of
17 Q. Jdust cream. 17 doing things because they heat wp te like BOO o so
18 You don't put & Hand-Aid on? 1B degrees.
i A, Mo, I mean, unless 1t needs & Rand-hid, 15 A, Mm-hom,
20 Lf St's open, 20 ¢.  What doss your pizza ovan heat up to?
2 ¢. Do they ever bleed? 21 A, We keep it at 550,
2e A, T mean, it depands. Tt depends on the a2z Q.  BBEO?
23 blister, vou know. If you pick a hlister sconer 23 Ao Or 555,
24 than normal, then it's going to «-- I don't wsually |24 MR, GOLDSTEIN: M1 right. 1 don't have
25 pick them either., 2% any further guestions for you,
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TR i Fage 395
1 Thank you very wach. 1

o MR. PFAU: I don't have any gquest Long & IROWITHESS CTHEREOF, I hawve Renesntn et my hasd

3 Arg we all done? 300boomy office o Uhe Codanty of Qlark, Htate of tewveda,

MR. MCMULLEN: I think sa. 4 thia p3ek day ol July, 202

MR. PEAL}:  Okay. .
MCMULLEN; Do we have the gsual " 6\/\_,/’%“...‘%

P,

& M. .

T oatipulations?  What do you want to do? r RV K‘dmp““ I ia
& MR, PFAU: To read and sign, you mean? : o T
g MR, McMULLEN: IRight. 3 i

10 MR, PFAU:  Yeah., We can waive the read ; 1;}

11 and =sige for Josh, v

12 Mr, MoMUILLEN: Very good,  Thank you. -

13 MR, PFAU: Thanks. o

14 THE VIDEQCRAPHER: This concludes today’s |,

15 deposition of Joshua Green. The time {s 13

16 approximately 9:54 a.m. We're off the record. 16

17 (Whereupeon, the deposition was concluded I

1B at 9:54 a.m, this dube ) g

19 ook k I

2( R

21 1

2a 1

23

24 2

Pipe 34477

i CERTIFIOATE OF rREPORTER

BOOETATE OF NREVADRA )

A COUNTY OF CLARK )

& Y, Mondes H, Coppbell, ox odaly

ToowommiasioneT ang Lio pUbonauEr yeposrber, Dlachk

@ oof Nay .0 nereby certifys That

B reporbted the Laklng of Che depogstian of i

T mibnoens, JOSHUR

commpnaing on HONDAY, JUNY

POORE RUBG, &t B3 oaamy !
1z ;
13 That prior re pDeing examived, Ehe witnnss i
Y was, by ome, duly sworn b Tescify bp the bruvh, i
Mhoowhat q o sheresfoer nraksorined my said shorchand

T moles lone Dypewsiting and that the nypeweittnen

i7 rrangeript of zaid depostiron 8 i ocotplele, Loue, ]
W oand agourats transcvietion of sadd shosthand notes, !
0 ]
0 T Porrher oerclly that T am net & relative or

e erployea O it ALtorney GF counsel on oany af the

s parties, nor a velaTivi Sr efplayes of an attorney or
23 vounsel invelved Lo sald action, nor a peoson
A fimanginily intprested in Lhe action: that a4 reguadst

N Pi%] mas notl oeen made e vevigw the troansorioet.
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Michae! Elliott and Associates

Patient: Joshua Green DOB; 02/1211982 Sex: M

Provider; Dr. Michae! Efiiott Visit: 12/16/2020 10:30AM Chart; GRJO00002

Office: Henderson Address: 1661 W Horizon Ridge Parkway Suite 280,
Henderson, NV, 88012

Primary Payer ID: Secondary Payer ID:

Chief Complaint: Personal injury

Subjective;

Client cetebrated progress and news in his work §ife including a new oppartunity with a company that he has
wanted to wark for. He reflected on how his mood was more distress at previous session, and how this
axnerience reaffirmad his faith in the process of life. Client explored holiday season and noted that he'd been
intentional in getling Hanukkah gifts for his wife this vear,

Obhjective:

Client prasants with casual dress, and normal grooming. His attitude was cooperative throughout session. His
speach was rapid but WNL. His affect was mood congruent, although typicaity flat. His mood was excited and
anxious al pointa. His thought process was goal directed. His concentration wad distractible at points,, No
perceptual disturbances observed. He appeared oriented x4. Insight was fair.

Assessment:

Chent presents with moderate anxiety, demonstrating increased ability to prioritize his health and wellbeing
compared with previous sessions.

Type o Code ] Desoription

1CD-10-C0 Condition FO&.4 Anxiety diztorder due to known physielogical condition
HG0-10-CM Condition F41.1 Generatized anxlely disorder

ICR10-.CM Gondition £13.850 Encounter for sgreening for traumztic brain injury
ICD-10-CM Candition F43.9 Reaclion to severe strass, unspecified

1G5310-CM Condition F41.8 Anyiely disorder, unspecified

Problems:

" Deséription Lo o o iSnomed | Status | Diegnosed -
Anxiety disarder dus o known physiclogicat condition 10 Ftg.4 Btlive Oct, 7, 2020, 10 a.m.
Ganetalized anxiely disorder 10 Fal.t active Oct. 7, 2020, 10 a.rc.
Encountar for sgreening for raumatic brain injury 10 £13.660 actve Det 7, 2020, 10 am.
Anxisty disorder, ungpacified 10 Fa1.0 activa Sept. 1, 2020, noon
Unspecifiad symptoms and signs involving cognitive 10 Ra4t.0 active Sapt, 1, 2020, noon
funcliong and awareness
Reaction to severe stress, unapesifivd ] Fd3.8 active July 1, 2020 §am.

Pian:

Continue with therapeutic coaching sessions to help meet recovery goals. Digscussed decreasing frequency of
session to see how client maintains weltheing and copes independently between sessions.

E-signed by Jacqueling Robinson on 12/16/2020 T1:54AM PST

[Page 1] This pege was gonerated at 12/16/2020 11:54AM FET
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Michae! Elliott and Associates
Patient: Joshua Grean

Provider: Dr. Michael Eltictt
Office: Henderson

Primary Payer tD:;

DORB; 0211211982 Sex: M

Visit: 12/16/2020 10:30AM Chart: GRJO000DO0Z
Address; 16687 W Horizon Ridge Parkway Suite 280,
Henderson, NV, 88012

Secondary Payer {D:

Type' - Gode.w - Modifiers ) Quantity 72| Déseription R e
CUSTOM 00004 10O UN Coaching
[Page 2] E-signed by Jacgueline Robinson on 12/16/2020 11:54AM PST

This page was generated at 12/16/2020 11:54AM PST

GRIMEPP LS




Michael Elliott and Associates

Patient: Joshua Green DOB: v212/1982 Sex: M

Provider: Dr. Michael Elliott Visit: 04132021 3:30PM Chart: GRJOC0000Z

Office: Henderson Address: 1681 W Hotizon Ridge Parkway Suite 280,
Henderson, NV, 88012

Primary Payer ID: Secondary Payer |D:

Chief Complaint: Personal Injury

Subjective:

Client explored disappointment about lack of follow through from his peers on offers for new business. Explored
goatls of racovery including increased self-awaranass and coping skills.

Objective;

Clignt presents with casual dress, and normat greoming. His atlifude was cooperative throughout session, His
speech was rapic but WNL, His affect was mood congruen, although typically fiat. His mood was euthymic. His
thought process was goal directed. His concentration wad distractible at points.. No perceptual disturbances
observed. Me appeared oriented x4, Insight was fair.

Assessment:

Client presents with moderate anxiety, deronstrating increased ability to prioritize his health and wellbeing
compared with previous sessions.

Typel 1 Deserption .. S

1GD-10-CM Condition Anxiety disprder due io known physiotogical condition

IGD-10-0M Condition Fa1.4 Genaralized anxioly disorder

1IGD-10-CM Gonditien £13.850 Encgunter for soreaning for iraumatic brakn injury

1GD-10-CM Conditian Fad.a Reaction to sevire siress, unapecifieg

1CD-10-CM Gondition F41.9 Anxiety disarder, unspecified

Problems:

e | icoyer | AEBDX Y snomea | " stats | - Diagnosed
Anxiety disorder due to known physiclogical condition 10 F08.4 active Oct. 7, 2020, 30 am.
Generalized anxiety disordec 10 Fa4.% active Qct. 7, 2020, 10a.m.
Encounter far scregning far raumatic brain injury 10 Z13.850 active Qot. 7, 2020, 10 a.m.
Anxlety discrder, unspecified 10 Fa1.8 attive Sept. 1, 2020, noan
Unspecified symptams ang signa invalving toghilive 10 ka1 8 active Sept, 1, 2020, noon
functions and awgrenass
Reactlon to severe siress, unspecifled 10 F43.9 attive July 1, 030, Sam.

Plan:

Continue with therapautic coaching sessions to help mest recovery goals.

Typ tity' ] D
CUSTOM Coaching
[Page 1] E-signed by Jecqueline Robinsan on 01/13/2024 4:09PM PST

This page was generated at 01/13/2021 4:05FM £5T
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Piuteantinnd Pryehuology: Revonrch amd Praclice

214 Amwrican Pryeliokigieca Associstion
2006, Vel 47, Ky, 1, 66 -Th

&
U735 U LR LRIKD hanpe il ol sy 10003 arkR00s

Patient Comfort With Audio or Video Recording of Their Psychotherapy
Sessions: Relation to Symptomatology, Treatment Refusal, Duration,
and Qutcome

Alexis M, Briggie. Mark 1. Hilsenroth, Francine Conway, 1. Christopher Muran, and Jonathan M. lackson
Demner Institute of Advanced Psychological Studies, Adelphi University

Despate the widesyread vse of sudio or video recotding in piychothesspy ivaining and rexearch, thene has
been sorprisingly fittde exploration of pattent reacnons 10 the use of recordings in psychotherapy, and
there is even less written about patient frctors that influence their willingness o vonsent 1o recording
practices or the mpuet of sueh o reguest on iresment, The present study examined the relutionship
betwesn pretreatment padient symptomatology and patient sititudes wward the auddio or video reeording
af psychutherapy sessions, Trearment refiesal, duration, and outcome were slso examined as they related
1 patkest comfors with recording, A waf of 390 participants somphesed oo initinl intzke in & university-
based community outpatient elinic. Pretreatment patient symptormatelogy wis wsvred at the fnilial
ineake evaluation wsing the Briel Symptom [nvemory (Derogatis, 1993), md patient artitodes toward
audio or video recording were measured using an audio/videatape cosnfart form. The majority of patents
axprogsed 1o or slight concems (52%), amd almost Jiree quarters (719:) were willing w consider awdhe o
video recording. Tt was Tounsd it higher Jevels of preveartoe intznersonal senstlivity and parsnois have a
significant negative refationship to recording comfont {Le., proster patholugy melated w lower comfort),
Huowever, trewtment sefugal, duvation, wsd oweome were o sigrificantly welated © patien] comlont with
recording. Signiticant inizke clinician effeots wene ehserved tn repard to patientaated comfon regarding audic
or vidao reeordings, indicating g relationsip Belween patients’ intuke clinician and theit level of comfon,
Therapist effects were examingd with regard 1w weatmem refusal, duration, and outcome, and all resshs
remeined nonsignificont. This tesearch has implicotions for and supgerts dw implementation of audio- or
videanrecording practices in chnicnl draining, research, and practice.

Keywrrrgds! tratning, audiotape, videotape, patienl factors, therepist {uctons

Those interested v psychotherapy have long stiempted to une
derstand the complexities and nuances of that process. Different
methodologies have been employed over time in ap effost to

objuctively capture the content and process of psychotherapy ses-
siong, Barty methods included the use of one-way mirrors and live
supervision; more recemly sudie or video recordings have been

Atexis M. BricGie received ber PhE in chinical psychology from the
Demer Institete of Advenced Psycholopical Stadies ot Adelphi Unstversity,
She is currently an attending psychotogist in the Addiction Psychiawy
Consult Service at Momefiore Medical Center, Brunx, New York. Her
greas of professional interest include piychosomatic medicing, substance
s, myindiulress-bysed poyehoiberapics, and peychotherapy process and
OsIECmG PRBEATeR.

Mank 1, HiLseseorH reeeived his FhB in clinical psychofogy from the
University of Tentessee and eompleted bis clinical internship at The
Cambricdpe Flospind/Marvard Medica) School. He s a professar of psy-
chelopy ul twe Demer Dnstitute of Advanced Psychaiogical Stodics at
Adeiphi University and the piitary investigator of the Adetphi University
Pyyehotherapy Praject, {n addition, he is currently editor of the American
Psychodogical Association Eivislon 29 journnl Psychorherapy. His arcas
of professional interest inehade peesonality wigessment, fraining/superyi-
gien, paychotherapy process and treatmnent aucomes.

FrapCINE Conway teeived her PhD in clinicsl paychology from Adel-
pht Usiiversity’s Diepner Iostituie of Advanced Psychological Studies,
whest st is covrently professor and chaie of psychology. Her clinical
frychelopy practice intersects with her research interests largely focusing
an pavehodynemic prychotherapy of children, os well a5 socivemotiona

Gh

factors contibuting 10 physical and prychologics] health amang edulbts and
childran,

1 Chrisiortee MURAN s dssuciate dean and professor at the Demer
Tnstitute of Advanced Psychological Stedies, Adelphi Usiversity. He also
serves us direcior of the Paychotherapy Research Program at Moune i
Beth Isrsel. He received bis dociorn) degres from a combined professional-
seienrific program at Hofstra University and compleed a postdectoral
feltowship in coaitive-bebavioral therapy at the Clarke Inatine of Psy-
chialry, University of Toronte, Foroato, Ontane, Canads, wnd psychonn-
alytic training in e Mew York University Postdorctoral Prograts, His arens
of interest include the therapoutic relationghip and alfiunce, therapist g
sitfon and gaperience, and treatment impasse und fidlerve,

JOmMATHAR M, JACKSON recebved his PhD in clintcal psychology from
New York University. Me s curmemly direcior of the Pyychological Ser-
viges Centey and training director of the affibated intemshig o the Derner
tstituie of Advanced Psychological Stdies, Adelpht Universy. His
professional interests inchude wnining clinical psyehologists, suicide pre-
voition, and othical proclices.

CUORRERPONDENCE CONCERNING THIE ARTICLE should he addressed o
Murk 1. Hilscaroth, Depurtment of Peychatogy, 302 Weinberg Huilding,
Dovney Institule of Advanced Psychological Studies. Adelphi University,
Carden City, NY 11530, B-mail: hilsenroth adelph.edy
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PATIENT COMEGRT WITH RECORDING SESSHONS 67

used, Audio and video recording have provided a puartial solution
to the desive for an objective record of the psychotherapy process
1 that they provide permanent, undistorted, unbiased accounts of
therapy sessions, Recording allows therapists (o fooes entirely on
the patient and remaie fully present i e room without baving to
worry about taking notes or mementzing the intersction. It also
eliminates corcerns about the unreliability of memory, pereeption,
and thought (Schacter, 1999) that are inevitghle when obtmning
datn frotm human memory,

In addizion to audiotaplng, videotaping opened up the capacity
1o study nonverbal behavior, such as gestures, body lenguage, aml
postural configurations in the therapy moons Nenverbal behavior
his long been meoognized 85 a source of valuable information and
c#n serve mapy imporiaat Tunctions, incleding expressing emo-
tions, communicating interpersonal attitudes, s well as secompe-
nying as well sy supporting speech (Argyle, 2003} Video record-
ing enables the documentation of p moee complete communication,
that is, both verbal and nonverbal. On the other hand, despite is
many advantages, video recording introduced o new dimension to
the potential anxieties of therapists and patients surrounding eval-
uation and performance. Some of the first ancedotal repotys of
recording sessions stated that therapists were self-conscions about
their voices and physical image being recorded (Redlich, Dollard,
& Newman, 1950), Concerns about privacy and ethics were also a
faeror in some therapists™ hesitancy to ose the new technology.
Schneigder (1977) wrgued thar observation constitutes sn attack on
privacy, and some early opponents of the technology sugpgested
that the throat o privacy might even alter the psychotherapy
process itsell,

The majority of the early literature on recording of sessions was
based on clinicat ancedotes and opinion, Therefore, the conclu-
stons drawn are open 4o the Gritiqee that they may be bissed or
subiective, Audio or video recording was first decumented in the
pychiatric tersture in 1942 by Covner, who fourut thit therapists
with more experience were Jess distarbed by recording when
compared with therapists with less experience (Covner, 1942).
Harper aud Hudson (1952} found that negative effects on patients
were undetectable, and Lamb and Mahl (1936) found that thera-
pists who were more disturbed by recording felt it affected them
and their patients mose. Roberrs and Rengaglio (1965 found dut
patients made more positive self-references in the recording con-
dition and more negative self-references in the no-recording con-
dition, Qverall, the anecdotal studies drew lurgely positive vonehy-
siong regarding the effects of recording on patients snd therapists.

The empirical findings on the effects of audio or video recording
on therapists have heen mixed and often contradictory, Although
nuch of the ressarch on this subject is outdated or wsed a less-
sophisticated methodology than would be employed in the prescnt
day, it does provide foundational knowledge that can inform
current research ard provide direction for fulore investigation.
Some enily empirical research on recording that bas found nega-
tive effects on therapists included increased anxiety (¥ enawine &
Arbuckle, 1971), increased negative fechings (Poling, 1968a;
Friedman, Yamamots, Wolkon, & David, 14783, increased nega-
tive self-ratings of performanee and decreased positive self-ratings
of performance (Miland, Duling, Allen, & Pumber, 1971}, and
increased hewrt rate (Roulx, 1969), Alernately, other early empir-
ical studics found either newtral or positive effects of reeording on
therapists. Ellis, Krengel, and Beek (2002) reparted ihar recording

wits not significantly associated with either anxiery or perfor-
mance, and other rescarchers found that secording improvesd per-
ception of self and others, with move positive ratings reported in
the video-recording condition (Stwr, 1977). One smdy glso re-
ported greater perception cangruence between therapists and their
supervisors, meaning thar therapist selforatings were more similar
to their supervisor's ratings of their parformance after reviewing
their recordings {Poling, 1968h). Different therapist variables have
been found to medime the effects of recording on therapises,
Therapists who were below proup mean on level of seff-
acceptunce or acceptance of others used more negative terms to
describe the recording experience (Walz & Johnston, 1963), and
less-axperienced therapists had more negative repctions {Covier,
1942), Therefore, an examination of therapist effects on patest
attitudes reparding sudio or video recording seems warranted,

In terms of emphical research regarding the effects of recurding
on patients, resulis were also found 1o be mixed and contradictory,
including negative, neurnl, nad positive sffects. Some tescurch has
found that recording increased inhibition (Gelro, 1973 Tanney &
Cielso, 19720 Van Atta, 1969) and decreased satisfoction (Gelse,
[973) with therapy. On the other hand, other research has found
that recording had o effect on anxiety (Bush, Bitner, & Brooks,
172, Wiemann, 1981) and that pntients reporied positive reactions
10 the experience (Barnes & Pilowsky. 1969} It was also Tound
that patients rared the impact of research everall to be positive and
higher than did iherapists (Marshalb et al, 2008). Variables that
were foupd to mediate the effects of recording on patients includs
(it} the nature of the presenting problem (patients anticipated that
personal problems would be mare inhibiting thun would work or
sthoo] problems, whereas the opposite pattetn was actusdly found;
Van Atta, 1969, (b) gender (females anticipated being moye
inhibited than id mules: ef. Gelso, 1974), end (¢) personality
variables (more inhibited patients had higher levels of self-control,
endurpnce, order, abasement, deferenes, and counseling reacdiness;
Glso & Tanney, 1972).

Although there has been some prior empirical research related to
the effecrs of tecording on therapists and patients, there is even less
contermporary literature thut addresses the factors thal impact con-
sent to audio- of video-recording mental healths sessions. In a
comprehensive review of the Hieraters regarding factors influgne-
ing consent to having videotuped mental or medical health ses-
gions, Ko and Goebert (201 1) found only four suudies that exam-
ined consent Tor videotaping within the field of mental health, and
they elected to expand their review to include medical sudies for
this reason. In their review, two of the wayy in which they
classified study ouecomes were by vonsent rate and consent fac-
tors. They found that none of the mental health studies exunned
conzent Tactors, and only one study qualitatively Jooked ot consent
rate. hr terms of patient feelings and hebaviors, they reported that
“most patients repotrted feeling comfortabie being taped™ (p. 200),
They concluded (mainly on the basis of medical research) tha the
data are mixed shoat whether videotaping is inhibiting for psychi-
atric patients but were waable 10 draw any conclusions abioul any
of the factors that influenced consent and indicated that further
research is necessary to empirically determine the effects of re-
conting on treatrent, outcome, and factors impacting patients’
willingness to consent to recording, The current swudy seeks to il
the gop in empitical findings related to consem to audio- or
video-recording mental heolth sessions and the associated out-
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come. This i§ the first study that guantitatively examines these
factors in the mental heolth field, and i 1§ our bope that it will
provide the groundwork for further empirical exploration into a
topic that hps wide-renching implications for psychotherapy train-
ing, research, srd proctice,

In the current study, we evaluated patient aititudes toward the audio
o viden recording of psychotherapy sessions and sought to invest
pate these in refation 10 seversl different research questions, Fiegt, ane
there different levely of patient comfort with audic- or video-
recording sessions? Do all patients feel the same way about having
their psychotherpy audie- o videotsped, or is there seine vanation in
their attitudes? Second, does pretreatinent sytnptomatology have a
relationship to patient comfmt with audio- or video-recording ses-
sions? Are there certain symptom clusters or characteristics that ane
associated with attedes about reatrment betng meorded? Third, do
different levels of patient comfort with audio- or video-recording
sessions have a relationship to entering into eatment and its dusa-
tion? Wonld patients who are highly opposed to the ides of sudio- or
videotaping paychotherapy sessions be repelled by even the guiry,
and might this impact whethey or not they return for treatment?
Fourth, do differsar levels of pattent comfort with audio- or video-
recording sesstons have u relationship 1o treatment outeormes? Related
to our third guestion, if patdents who are highly opposed 1o the idea of
sudio- or videotaping psychotherapy sesstons did enter treatment,
wiuldt acking them about thedr comfort around this issue impact (beir
subsequent therapy outeomses negatively? Fifth, is parient comfort
with sudio- or video-recording sessions effected by the clinician they
are: working with? That is, does a particelur clinician’y style, taining,
experience, sbility, or skill in discussiog the igsoes related with audio-
of video-recording sessions have an impact on patiert-reported com-
fort level? On the basis of the prior research reviewed, we hypotbe-
sizedd thu that panents who have stronger congerns ghout beiag audio-
or video-recorded would exbibit higher levels of pretreattnent global
pathotogy, We also hypothesized that patients with stronger concems
aboul audio or video recording would exhibit higher levels of treat-
ment refusal, shorter duration, and less-effective reatment OUICOE
compared with patients who are less concemaed with audio or video
recording, Finally, given the leratire on therepist effects (Adelson &
Owen, 2012 Baldwin & lmel, 2003; Owen, Dranane, Idigo, & Vak
enting, 2015), we expected that thers would be significant clinician
effects present in tegard 10 patient-rated comfort reparding audico or
video recorcings.

Method

Participants

Participants were 390 individuals who received services from s
university-based Center for Pyycholomicsl Services (CPS) between
June 2000 and fuse 2011, CPS iy a upiversity-baged, eommunity
mental health clinic that serves as 1 raining site for the doctoral
program in ¢linics] psychology st Adelphi University, The elinie iy
staffed by doctoral students supervised by the program’s faculty,
as well as adjunct PhD-level clinical psychologists, All patient duaty
way deidentified prior o grchival dam collection. Stady methods
were approved by the university's Institutional Review Board,

Demographics were consistent with populations typicully seen
at unjversity-based outparient clinics and are displayed in Table |,
Seventy-nine percent of patients were fernale, and the average age

Table 1
Demographic Information of the Patien Sample (N = 390)

Variphbe Y% n M S

Gender

Mabe 1 #2

Female 7o MM
Maritnl s1awus

Single 74 0

Married 1 40

Cohabitating & 23

Divorced/widowed 7 26

Separated 3 11
Primury Axls 1 diagnosis

Adjusiment disorder 7 7

Anxiety disorder 23 9]

Eunting disurder 4 is

Muonod disorder a5 137

Substance-related disorder 2 E

Other 28 70

None 1 4f)
Axis 1I diagnosis

Present 23 8k

Absent FE 1 )
Age 600 1073
Yeara of adueation $5.54 246
Number of sessiany 25.64 2931
Psychiatric severity B3G5 (ut intake) 1.08 (.63

Note,  BSEI-GS] = plobal severily index of the Brief Symptom Inventory.

of patients 8t Intake in the center was 29.02 yeary (80 = 10,73
The averapge numnber of sessions in the clinic per patient was 23.64.
Of the paticnrs included in the dambase, 72% were Cancasin,
1% were Africun American, 8% were Hispanic, 3% were Asion
patients, and 4% of puticnts identified as “other.” The majority of
patients in the sample (74%) were single, 10% were married, 7%
weres divorced or widowed, 6% were Hving with a partaer, and 3%
werg separated. Fifty-seven percent of participants were current
undergraduate or praduate students, The average munber of years'
education completed was 1554 (3D = 2.06). The most cammaon
primary diggnoses included mood disorder (35%) sod anxiety
disorder (23%), and Axis H disorders acoording o the Diognostic
and Statistical Manua! of Mertal Disorders (th ed; American
Psychiniric Assoctaion, 1994F were present in 23% of patients in
the surnple, Diagnoses were dewermined by the elindcin conduet-
inp the intake interview and were based on a semistructured
intervicw, In the sample, there were 168 intake clinicians and 132
reating therapists. Qut of the totals, 103 intake cliniciang and 100
treating therapists congucted one or more sessions with more than
One palient,

Measures

Briel Sympitom Inveatory {(B515 Derogatis, 1993, The BSI
was used to assess pretreatiment putient symplomatelogy at incake
session and ireatment Guteome mesdured at ermination. The REL
is 1 53-item self-report measare that reflects psychological symp-
tom patterng, and it consists of nine primary sympiomn dimensions
{somutization, obsessive-compulsive, inerpersonal sensigvity, de-
pression, anxiety, hostility, phobic anxiety, paraneid ideation, and
psychoticism) and three global indices of distress (glebal severiy
index, posiive symiptom distess index, snd positive symptom
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total}). The BST hax been shown to huve high test-reiest weliability
and internal consistency peliability (e = 71-.85; Derogatis, 19971
as well as convergent, discriminant, and consoroct validity. [n the
present stady, treatment severity was measured using the plobal
severity index (GS1). The mean nonclinical 631 score as provided
by Perogatis (1993 is 30 (5D = A1), and test-retest reiiabilicy
utilizing dan outpatient sample was 90, The mean pretreatment GSI
for the curreat sarnple was 1,08 (S0 = .63),

Auctto/vidostape comfort form.  Patient attitedes toward au-
disdvideotaping were reasured using the audiofvideotope comfort
form, developed specitically for this perpose at the raining cline
deseribed ealier (see Appendix for full text of the forr). The
questionnaire provides an explanation of potentinl audio or video
recording, including how it will be used, who will have access to
it, and how it will be stored. The form inciuded the open-ended
statement “In considaring how 1 might respond to being ssked for
permission ko make andio and/or video recordings of the services
I receive for training/educational purposes only - . " for which
there were five resporse options. The five options rated partici.
pants” degree of comfort with videotape on a S-point scale ranging
from 3 (ne serious objections) to 1 (vehement ofjections; o = 70,
N = 39,

Procedure

Participants voluntarily sought and were accepted for individual
piychatherspy ar the clinic. Certzin exclusion criteria were ap-
plied, including acute suicidality, psychosis, or other severe menial
Hiness requiring significant psychopharmacology (in which case
an autside referral was made),

Inrake inserviews wore conducied by doctoral-level graduate
students unider the supervision of licensed clinteal psyehologists,
At the Begtning of the intake interview, sl patients received
written infornation regarding privacy policies sed a clinic fact
sheer that included derails shout statfing, fees, psychotherapy
research, diggnostic testing, and confidentiality, At the conelusion
of the intake interview, patients were asked to complete twa forms:
{11 an initisl Brief Symptom Inventory (B31) and (2) the audio/
videotape comfort forrn. When patients were given these forms,
they were verbally informed by the intake therapis that sedio or
video recording of sessiops 15 pot g requirement for gearment at
this clinic, It should be noted that patients who compieted the
sudiofvideotape comfort form did not pecessarily underpo record.
ing procedures. That is, not all patients who expressed comfort
with audio or video recordings were asked o do so by their
therapist. Thus, the curent study assessed patient comfort with
recorting, which was rreasured {8) prior (o beginning any treat-
ment sid () with the knowledge that recording was not a reguire-
ment of the clinic. Therefore, tdis study offers a better assessment
of patient attitudes toward this procedure than does ane at a olinie
where treatment s predicated on informed consent for actust
recordings that are required in order [0 receive services (e,
patential bias or coercion that may increase acguiescence), After
the intake procedure, it pattents did not meet the previously men-
tobed exclusion criteria for treatment at the clinic, (hey were
assigned a therapist on the basis of schedule and availability.
Treatmoent provided was onder the supervision of licensed psy.
chologists and was primarily psychidynamic in orientation.

Treatment refussl and duretion.  Treatment refusal and de-
ration data were collected from the number of atended sessions
recorded in the patient chart, The date way examined in two ways.
First, treatment refusers attended only the initisl intake intervisw
but did not attend any psychotherapy sessions (le, number of
sessions attended = ). Treatment duration was defined as the
mimmber of psychotherspy sessions attended beyond the ipitial
ineake inretview,

Coliection of archival data,  This study snalyzed archival
datn cotlected between Jung 2000 and June 2011, Al 390 patients
included in the analysis completed an iotake evalustion st the
clinte, audiorvideotape comfort form, and Boef Symptom Inven-
ey (B51) ax part of the intake process. The forms were returned
to the praduate cliniciany conducting the intake inlerview. Re-
sponses on both forms were then enlered into the clinic database
by an advanced doctors) student who was neither the treating
therapist nor the intake interviewer. Information peraining (o
session nupber wag olnained by a retrospective chan review of
sttendance and bitling records,

Data Analyses

Bivariale Pearson r correlations were used o determing whether
pretreatiment symptom dimensions of the BSE were significantly
related (p < 05 two-tgiled) o comfort with sudio or vides
recording, According to Cohen (T9HE), effect sizes for Pearson
correlations are categorized as small f r > 10, medium if r = 30,
and large i r = 50, In adidition, for within-group pre-post con-
parisons, effect size (d) using pooled standurd deviation weighted
for n was caleulated for esch comparisen, According o (Cohen,
1988), effect sizes for d we cotegorized as smatl if o = (24,
moderate if d = (.30, and large it d = 0,80, Effect size and clinical
significance were obtained and arc displayed in terms of overall
sample and according o comfors with audio or video recording,

I refation to the culewlstion of clinical significance, the reliable

method outlined in Jagobson apd Troax (1995 and in Jacobson,
Raberts, Berns, and MoeGlinchey (1999):

. .

RCE= o
whete X = pretest seore; X, = postiest score; Sdiff =
'\/2{.5 T 8E = 51 A/ - rax) st = the standard devintion of

control proup, normal population, or pretrestment group; and
rax = the test-retest refiability, 1f ROl = 1496, then it is likely that
the chunge was relishic {p < 03), RCI was employed for the
BSI-GS1 and adjusted in order to contrel for regression 1o mean
and measurement error (Speer, 19923, We favored this approach
becauvse this parameter is a mare-conservative value of change
than is simply comparing pre- and posttreatment scores, Reliable
change (RC) and clinically significant change (C5C) was deter-
mined using methodology by Jacobson and Truax (1991) by
twoestage process in which (o) the change must be proven o be
sraristically reliable (RCI; see earlier formuta} and (b) the individ-
ual must pass tromm the dysfunctional to the funcional disinbution.

Becwuse multiple participants were administered the audiofvid-
eotape comfort form and prevreatmunt BS1 forms by the same
clintcian, and beeawse multple participants were treatedd by the
sarne therapist, we atitized muttiievel models for several different
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analyses. Thal is, we examinad the variation in the effectiveness of
cliniciuns and the nonindependence of patients scen by the same
clinicion (f.e., patients nested within climician), The varlanee ex-
plained due to ench clinivian’s coses within the entire sample was
controtled for. This approach addresses the hierarchical structure
of peychotherapy dats by accounting for the fack of independence
in patients’ seores (Adelson & Owen, 20012 Rawlenbush & Bryk,
2002). All statistical anatyses were conducted using Hierarchical
Linear amd Nonlinear Modeling, Version 6 (HLM) (Raudenbush,
Bryk, Cheong, & Cangdon, 2005),

To test for therapist effects (1.e., to examine variance accouned
for by intake clinicians of therapists in videotape comfurt and
outcome ratings), we constructed seven baseline models (eg., »
model where the criterion vavialile was entered with no predictor
variables), These modets quantify the varability due o intake
clinieizns or therapists in terms of audio- or videg-recording cotn-
fort, treatiment refusal, number of sesstony attended, RC of the
BE1-G81, and CSC, These bageline models altowed for the calou-
lation of the residwal iniractass correlation (HCC), which deter-
mined whether intake clinicians or therapists differed an dweir
patients' average ratings of sudio- or video-recording comfart, (51
seores, and withdrawa) rates,

To eximine gur analyses in a moltivariate context, we con-
ducted six fixed effects multitevel models where sudio- or video-
recording comfort was the prediclor variable at Leavel 1 (grand-
menn-centared  and  BS1-GBL weatrnent  refusaf,  treatinent
duration, RC, CSC, and number of sessions were the respective
cTHeron variables,

Results

Are There Different Levels of Patient Comfort With
Recording Sessions?

1n the overall sample (N = 380), 55% (p = |30) of participants
reported having ne objections 10 audio or video recording on the
audio/videatape combor form, 19% (now 73) had slight concerns,
9% (n = 75) had moderate cotcerny, 13% (r = 51) had strong
concerns, and 16% {r = 61) had vehement objections. Therefore,
a range of differemt patient comfour levels with audio or video
recording of sessions was observed. In sum, the majority of pu-
tients expressed no or slight concerns (3%}, and almost three
quartees {71%) were willing to consider audio or video recording
after discussion with their therapist.

Dues Pretreatment Symptomatology Have a
Relationship 1o Patient Comfort With
Recording Sessions?

Pretrestment symptom dimensions of the B8] were examined
redation (o patient ratings of comfort with audio or video recording
{see Table 2). Twe of the symptom dimensions, interpersonal
sensitivity and paranedd ideation, were found to be significantly
negatively correlated with comfort with andio of videa recording
(p = 002 p = 033, respectively), meaning that higher levels of
interpersonal sensitivity snd higher levels of pamnoid ideation
were agsociated with lower fevels of comfort with audio or video
recorcding. However, the cffects of these relationships were rola-
tively small (Le, r= — 15 and ¢ &~ 11, respectively), sod their

Table 2
Relationship Rotween Pretreatment Patient Sympromatology ard
Audio/Videotape Comfort (N = 390)

Audiedvideatape
Protreatment vonfort

Pretreammany symplomatalogy M b r P
Soimnatteation 0.630 0643 -~ 00 076
Obmegsive compuisive 1.500 0943 - (48 345
Imerpersonal sensizivity 1416 1.052 158 062
Dhepression 1.380 093 44 3N
Anxiely 1.3 0gm - o0 i1
Huostility .97 0830 «041 418
Phobic anxiety 0.544 0708 97 096
Tractioid idearion 1.025 0826 - 108 By
Py ychoticism L) 0983 - 0BF 063
Pogttive syraptom total M35 1LY -0 203
Positive sympom distress index 1.871 n536  -068 179
Cilobal severity ndex 1.077 G637 000 176
Note.  Nepalive corrglation represents premter psychopathelegy with
lower audiofvideotage comfort scores,
Speoen 15

clinfont wility seems quite limited. None of the other symptorn
dimensions  (sommtization, obsessive- compulsive,  depression,
anxiety, hostility, phobic anxiety, psychoticismey were significanty
correfated with sudio- or video-recording comfort and ail showed
neglipible sffects,

Do Different Levels of Patient Combort With
Recording Sessions Have a Relationship to Entering
Into Treatment and Its Duration?

Rutes were determined for treatment refusers {Le., individunls
who comnpleted the initial intake session only and did rot return for
pyychotherapy treatment; # = &1, 16%) and compared with treat-
ment aceeptors (e, those who started treatment and attencded at
Jenst one sesxian: o ow 329, 845%) n the overall sample (& = 390),
Rates were then compared for trestment refusers and drestrnent
acceptors accarding to audio- or videe-recording comfort endorse-
ment pating. OFf the 61 trewtment refusers, 33% (n = 20) reported
no objections to sudio or video recording, 13% (n = 8) reported
slight concerns, 18% (n % 117 reported moderate concems, F3%
(n = B} reporied strong concerns, and 23% (n = 1) reporied
vehement objections. For the 329 treatment sceeptors, 339% (n =
110} reported no objections, 20% (n = 65) repored slight con-
corng, 19% {n = 64) reported moderate concerns, 13% (n = 43)
reportid strong conceens, and 149% (n = 47) reponed vehement
objections. A 5 ¥ 2 chissguare comparing treatment refusers
versug trepbment acceptors across the five levels of audio- or
videa-recarding comfort was ot significant, x'(4) = 374, p =
A4 N = 300: & s 0,10, reflesting very similar rates of trestmant
refusal across the five levels of audio- or video-recording comfart
for both groups. In addition, nurmber of sessions attended wag Bt
significantly correlated with audio- or video-regording comfort
{r= 06 p = 23) indicating po mesningful relationship hetween
audio- or video-recurding coralort teported Dy patients and the
eventual number of sessions they aitended in creatment,
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Do Different Levels of Patient Comfort With
Recording Sessions Have 3 Relationship to
Treatment Qutcomes?

Meaun intake and posttrestment GS1 clinteal scores were comr
pared for the paricipants who completed both the intke and finy
BEL (Le.. the treatment sample) for each of the five andio- or
viden-recording comfort endorsernent groups and corresponding
effect sives (see Tahle 3% In order to be most conservative with
regard 0 owtgotme, we included tast obseevation carted foeward of
any follow-up patient BSE in our putcome aalyses, Patients in all
groups showed gignificant change, with the overall treatment sam»
ple impraving significantly between pre- and posttreabment scores
averall, with 4 moderate effect sive sugpesting tneaningful pay-
chotherapeutic benetit. Paired ¢ tests for each of the levels of
andiofvideowrecording comfont confirmed significant differences
hetween all of the pre- 1o postireatment mean GS1 scores, and
moderate effect sizes were observed for all groops (range: d =
0.43- 0.63; r s 21305,

A one-wiay analysis of vardanes (ANOVA) comparing the prafreat-
Ment ineAns aeross thee Gve groups was not significent, F{4, 238) =
Q84 p o= 473 indicating that all groups began treatment with
equivalent levels of disturbance (ie., level of pretrentment patholegy
did not vary according to level of comfort with audio or video
regording), The posttreatment mean G seores poross the fve groups
were afso compared using 3 one-way ANOVA, and no statisticaily
significant differences were found, F(4, 238) = O7H, p = 543,
between the groups of varying sudio- or video-recording comfont
endarsement, indicating thet level of pathology posttreatrnent also dicd
not differ aceording to avdio- or video-recording comfort,

Tuble 4 shows the number and percentage of patients both
overatl and at each of the five Jevels of patient audio- o1 video-
recording sornfort exdorsement who (8) achieved reliable change
{RC; amount of reliable chanpe accounting for measurament error
and repression to the mean), (b} returned to the pormal distribu-
tion, (¢} achicved clincally significant change (CSC; positive for
both prior eopditions ¢ and &), and (d) showed deterioration
{RCY = ~1.96). In the overall samwple, 30% achieved reliable
change, $%% returned to the normal diseribution, 23% achieved
clinically sigmificant change, and 5% showed deterioration, A 5 X
4 chi-square was performed, comparing clinieal significance
across the five levels of sudio- or video-recording comfort. Dif-
ferences in RO, retwrn 0 noemal distribution, CSC, and deterions-

Table 3

tion seross levels of comfon were found to be not significant,
¥M123 = 293 p o= 9496, » = 243; G = 0.06, reflecting simikr
rates of elinjesl significance aeross levels of audio- or video-
recosding comibort.

Number of sessions attended by patients wus found to have a
nonsignificant relationship with the BS1-GSI reliable change in-
dex (RCEL = .12, p = .07), aibel o srmoll effect relation between
length of atiendanee in psychothesapy and benefit from reatrment,
In addition, the dimensionad relationship between sudio- or video-
recording comfort with BEL-GET RCI was also nonsignificant {r =
02, p o= 77}, ndicating no meaningful relationship between
audio- or video-recording comfort reporied by patients and the
eventuat pains they achicved in beatment.

Is Patients” Comfort With Recording Sessions Alfected
by the Clinician They Are Working With?

"To test for clinician effects (Le., 0 examine viglance accutnted tor
by clinicians in avdio/video-recording comforl and outcome ratngs),
seven baseline madels (¢, o model where the eriterion variable wis
entered with no predictor vanables) were constructed (seo Talde 5).
‘These models quantify the varinbility due to clinicians in 1enng of
audios or video-recording comfort, treatment refusal (caleulased tor
intake cliniciung), westrent duration {caleulated for weating theras
pists), BE-GSI-RCE scores (the amount of reliable chunge ehserved
aver the eourse of testrnent on the global severity index of the Brief
Symptean Inventory accomiting for measurement error and regression
to the menn), patient achievement of relinble change (BC), and elin-
ically significant change (C50). These baseline models allowed for
the calculation of the residual intraclass correlagion (WCO), which
determined whether cliniciang differed in their patients’ average rat-
ings on each of the seven criterion varisbles: audio- or video-
recording comfort, treatment refusal, reatmen withdrawal, number of
wessions attended, BEI-GS1-RCH scores, patient achievement of RC,
and C8C. The 1CC,,, e for these seven models were audio- or
videg-tecording comfort (0146, p = 002}, weatment refisal (.06,
p & A2, sumber of sessions (RO03, p = 373, BSLGSI-RCE
0017, p = 50, RC ({O.80E p = 503 and CSC (0002, p = 50),
“These Andings suggest that intake clinicians accounted for » signifi-
cant proportion of the variance (15%) in relation 1o patient ratings of
sudio- of video-recording comfort, However, subsequently the intake
clinicians and thernpists did not aceount for a significans portion of the

Treatment Chteome for Sample and Effect Size by Patient Audio/Videotape Comfort Endorserment

Pre-
posttreatioent paired )
I test i 10 posttreatment effect sive
Fretreatment GS1L: Posttroument GS1; e
Virinhle M (3L i (S0 t b o {Ci} r|2]
Overslt p o+ 243 107 (0.65) 0.76 (0.59) =, 0001 52 §00.46, 0.57] 2310.20, 030}

Audiofvideatape ramflon

Mo objection w = B0 103 (.50 .75 ¢0.59) - 4,948 = POt AR D39, 0.57] 231014, 0.3
Slight conerns n = 46 .56 (1).54) .67 {1.64) -3 AR A7 [0.35,0.60] 23 (110, 0.35]
Mudernte conegrms = 36 108 (0.59) [1.74 {154} - U8 < 003 63 [0.52, 0.74] A0 [U.l‘). 0.41)
Strang concerns g = 32 [NER UGN [3.8R {().4a7 -3, A& A3 10,29, 0.57] 21 {006, 0,35
Vehement abjections n = 335 1,19 (0.68) 0.84 (0,63} Kiliv] 54 {60.39, {),ﬁgjl 26011, 043)

Mot 381 = global sevority index; @« stndardized mean difference wsing pooled studaed deviation (Cohen, 1988) €1« confidence Interval.
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Tahle 4

FTreamment Chutcome for Sample in Terms of Clinical Signiticanee and by Patient

Aundio/Videotape Comfort Endorsement

Relurn o Chinicatly
Reliable nornkal sighificant
Varighle chanpe distribuiion change Detentoration
Queral]l o = 243 3 (7) 6% (168} G 5¢12)
Audiofvideotige combon
Mo objestion oo« B 30 (34) 66 (33) 21 {17} 6 (5}
SHEht concerns now 46 Hr(143 80 (37) 2R{13) 4(2)
Muoderite coneerns 1o 50 KEN W] 72 (36) 28 (1) 2(1)
Snong concerms n w32 23 (8) Gy (21) 19 (&) 6 (2}
Veherment ohiections r + 35 n 6021 20(7) 6 (2)

Note. Date dre glven ay percentapes, with a values in patenthases.

vardatiee inrekation oorsatment refusal, treatment duration, oz aut-
comes detarmoinad by B51-GSE-RCL RC, or O5C.

To extend ovr findings in a multivarate contexy, we conducted six
fixed effects multthevel models where audio/videa-recording comfont
was the predictor variable af Level T {grand-mean-centered) and
BIL-GEL-RCI, eatment refusat, treatment duration, RC, wnd C8C
were the respective oriterion vartables, "The results wers congistent
with our previous analyses and showed thot niome of the variables
related to outcorne wese significantly assoeiated with audio- or video.
recording comfor even after controlling for clinician vananece (sce
Tahle ),

Discussion

The current findings are clearly important to the Geld and have
implications for clinjeal teining, research, and practice. Our e
sults suppest that most patients report fesling relatively comfon-
able with audio or video recording when it is diseussed in relation
to training and in the context of appropriske safeguards to confi-
denriality. This information i helptul in that #t may alleviae
therapists’ and trainees” anxiety shout introducing sudic or video
recording to patients, Furthermore, findings that patients who
expressed discomfors with sudie or video recording were not
significantly more Hkely 1o refuse tresiment, attend fewer sessions,
ot have nepative treatment outcome could also reassore olinie
administrators, therapists, and trainces that it is unlikely negative

Table 5

vuteemes will result from asking patients if they would consider
audio or video recording. Finally, understanding patient and ther-
apist facrtovs that may fmpact atitudes wward audio of video
recording may help inforn choices about how 1o intreduce this
subject,

Sinee the sarkest vesearch invelving audio or video recording, it has
been reputted tit some therapists have been reluctant to use record
ing technigues, citing patient resistance as the primary reason, How-
ever, ancedotal research has repeatedly suggested that therapists may
acrually be more refuctant than patients to being sudic- oy video-
recorded {e.q., Alpert, 1996; Chodofl, 1972, Zabarenko, Mugery, &
Eabarenke, 19773, There bas not been sufficient empirical research
conducted in the tmental health field to either support or refute these
claims. Therefore, we wanted 1o directly examite patient astitudes
toward awdio or video reeorling in a mentad health clinic,

Are There Different Levels of Patient Comfort With
Recording Sessions?

We found that the majority of patients reponed no objections o
audiodvideo reeording (339), and almost three quarters of patients
(T1%) were willing to consider audio or video recording after con-
sultmion and discussion with their efinician, more than half of whom
(526%) expressed no or slight concerns, and less than one third of
patients {29963 expressed high Tevels of discomfort with audio or
video recording, This suggests that for the most part, patients are

Percentage of Varipnee in Audio/Videotape Comfort, Treatment Refusal, Length, and Qurcome

Airributable to Thevapist Effects

Intereept x* for therapist
Variable coelficient (S£) Lo S random effucls 2
Audiofvideotape comfor 2.41 (0.08) RE 24708 0z
Treatnent sefusal’ L6 (D 15) Ryl 170.05 eyl
Number of sesslons atiendod” 26.72{1.55) 003 1251 372
Amount of reliable ehange in R51-GSE = (RO02 (L 1) 7 103.02 = 50
Achieving reliable chango - L83 (L H) A0 10884 == 56}
Achievirg clinically significont change - L8 (0.15) A002 PRy =30

Nuote,  Patiest n = 243; intake clinician 1 = 168; therapist o o |52, ICC = intraclags comelations; B8).051 =
elobal severity index of the Brief Symptom Inventory (BSIY Therapist velere Woinlake clinician for the
sudio/videoupe comfors and wentment refusal vartables and w weating therapist for number of sessions, glabal
seventy index, achieving reliable chenpe, and achievirg chinically stgnibesns change.

* Bessions anended beyond the intake = (.

" Sexgions = 6,
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Table &
Testing Auwdie/Videorape Comfort and Ouilcome Currelationy fn
u Mudtivarinte Context

Fixed effgety Coefiicient (5F) I

Treatment refusal

Intercept {,,) 085 (0.02) D0G

Audinfvideolype comfont (y,,) .00 €0.01) A32
MNumber of sesgions

Imieroept (v, 71155 £00

Audio/videatape comiorn {y,,) 07 0.0 330
Amount of relighle chanpe tn BS1--GS1

Intereept () =002 (Th33Y REH

Andinfvideotape comforn (v} - 002 (108} B3
Achieving reliable change

Tntereept {yant 0.30: ¢0.03) L0

Andicvideotaps comfort (v, (LOOO8 10.02) 9T
Achieving clinically sipnilcant change

Eercept {v,,) 0.23 (0.02) L)

Audiofvideotape comfart (y,,) 0003 (0.02) 51

Mot futent n = 23 intake clinictan o = 16K therapist 0 = 152
BE-GEL = global severity index of the Brel Symptom Inventory.

cotfortatite with the ides of audio- or video-recording psychothernpy
sessions when properly informed aboot its use and protections of
privacy or confidentiatity according w the standards of the Americsn
Payeholopioal Assuamation (2011} and the Heahth nsursnce Porabil-
ity and Accounability Aet {1996), This informaoson 15 valuable for
academic programs and clintes because it opens up the possibility of
using these tools more widely for taining and research purposes,

The curvent findipgs are highly consigtent with research con-
ducted by Bain and Mackay (19937 in a general medieal practice,
which reported that 34% of patients agreed to having videotaped
tedical visits. Although Ban and Mackay's study 15 in the med-
ical rather than menml bealih field, iy alivost ideniicat w the
present stody in that they examined potient attitudes, with 52%
having no ar shight coneerns, The present study is also consigtent
with the findings of Muarshall and colleagues {2001, who found
that 4% of the participants approached were willing to putticipate
in research that involved the audiotping of psychotherepy ses-
siemg. This prior work 15 complementary 0 the present study in
that it invobved paricipanty’ agreeing o the gotupl recording cather
than eliciting patient attiludes toward recording.

Proes Pretreatment Symptomatofogy Have o
Relationship to Patient Comfort With
Recording Sesstons?

Given the sparse prior esearch on pretreatment symptomatol
ogy und patient sitides woward audio- or video-recording psy-
chotherapy sessions, we soughl to test these associptions. Wa
found that patients who have less comfort about being audio- or
video-recorded {.e., greater avdio- or video-recarding discomfon)
were maote Hkely to exhibit signiticantly higher levels of paranoid
ideation and Interpersons! sensitivity. These symptom dimensions
suseciated with higher levels of audio- or video-recording diseotn-
fort do not seem to be surprising and are fairly consistent with
prior anecdotaf research that hay sugpested awdio or video record-
ing may oot be glowed by patients who are patanaid, psychotic, or
personality divordered (Falzone, Hall, & Beresin, 2005) and that

paticnts who refused 1o be videotaped “tended 10 be grandiose o
parangid” (Kornfeld & Kolb, 1964, p. 458), Although, again, #
must he stressed that these were small effects (¢ < J16), and
therefore their chimen] wility may be limited.

Do Dilferent Levels of Patient Comflort Wilh
Recording Sessions Have o Relationship to Entering
Foto Treatment and Tts Daration?

The rates of treatment refusal (16%; session = 0) and aceep-
tance (84%; session 5= ) in the present study are consistent with
ar shightly below those of past stedies that have examined this
congtracy and defined it in the same way {i.e., failure W return R
the firgt psychotherapy session following the initial intake ineer-
view).r Refusal rakes of 24% (Betr & Shullmgn, 1979), 19%
(Rrouskopf, Baumgardnes, & Mandraechia, 1981), and 22%
(Kokotovie & Traeey, 1987} have been observed in upiversity
coanseling center seftings. In comparing the mtes of testtnant
refusal and treatment aceeplunse across tie five levels of audio- or
video-recording comforn, ne significant differences were Found
between geoups. This contradicts our hypothesis that participants
with hipher tevels of andio- or video-recording discomfort would
have higher rates of wemment refusal, This finding supgests that
even patients who are highly opposed to the idea of audio- or
video-recording psychatherapy sessions are nob repelled by the
inguiry, and it does not impaeet whether they retuen for freatment,
Like the fndings for teatment refusal, number of sessions al-
tended was not found to be significantly related (o audio- or
video-recording comfort, which does not support the hypothesis
that Jess awdio- o video-recording comfort is assoctated with
shorer daration. Again, this suggests that regardless of patiens’
comiort levels with sudio or video recording, their subsequent
duration in trepttvent 15 not based on this factor,

Do Different Levels of Patient Comfort With
Recording Sessions Have a Relationship to
Tregtment Quteomes?

Qverall, patients in our sample demonstrated signifivant improve-
ments, with moderate effects over the course of weatment, that ae
highly comparable to those of other large natwalistic siudies of
capaticet  psychotherapy  provided st university-based  climies
(Vraper, Jeanings, Bavon, Erdur, & Shankar, 200%; Seell, Malliack-
rodt, Hill, & Lamber, 20801), although no sigrificant ditferences in
owteome aceording to level of sudio- or video-recording comfort were
ohserved. This finding suppests that despite any initial differences in
symptomaiology (e.g., levels of puuneid idestion and iderpersonal
seRsitivity) betwesn those with high amd low levels of audio o
videa-recording comfoit, theve were no evenioal differences in trea-
ment outeome or amownt of Improvement, Further, this tay supgest
that the psychotherapy trentinent provided in the current study was
able to address any potential initial concerns and provide Symiplom
relief and overall improvement,

Is Patients’ Comfort With Recording Sessions AfTected
by the Clinician They Arve Working With?

In an examination of therapist effects in relation to gudio- o
video.recording comfort ratings und outcome, there was a signif-
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jeant herapst {i.e., intake clinician) effect present with regard to
patient ratings of audio- or video-revarding comfort, That 13, about
15% of the variance in patients’ ratings of audio- or video-
recording comfort was attributable to who their intake clinician
was. However, agpin, even acoounting for the effec of patients’
imtake clinician, or subseguently their assigned therapist, there
were still no significant associations between audio- o video-
recording comfort and any of the varisbles related {o treatment
refusal, duration, and owtcome, That w, slthough there was 2
significant relationship between who conducted the clinical intake
agsessment and audio- or video-recording comfort, when these
effacts wera tested in o multivaripte context and controlted for, the
findings refated to audio- or video-recording comfort were non-
significant (and sl other varables remained nonsignificam as
well), The initial finding of an association between gudio- oF
video-tecosding cormfort and an ke ehnicion effect is important
to explore furthey in terms of what specitic therapist characteristics
iy have contributed to these differential tevels of patient comfiart
with reconding practices. 1t s possible that therapist experisnce
may have played a role, ag 75 suggesied by prior tesearch demon-
strating different rates of withdeawal from psychotherapy on the
basis of therapists’ experience level (Switt & Greenberg, 2052).
Although all clinicians in the present stody were trainess, the level
of training they aeguired prior w or dunng entoblment in o doctorat
program may have vavied somewhar,

Given the initial finding of an association botween patien
iedia- ar video-recording comfort and intake clinician (e, ther
apist) effects, it is important to nat only explore potential couses
bt to prophylactically address, where possible, gaps in traimiog
sndfor procedural issues that may have contribnted to this assoch
atign. Prier anecdotal ressarch in the mental heakth field has
suggested that patients ave more likely to agree to recording
procedures when they are given a full explanation (Alpert, 1996).
1t is possible that some patienty in the current study were not given
as ful] or desiled follow-gp explanation of the audiofvideotape
comfort form and its related training and resedrch purposes as
afhers wers due To fetors such as time constraints or perhaps even
a Tark of therapist commitnment to audio- or video-recording re-
search and training. These clinician differences may be reduged by
providing more-comprehensive trafning to wainses sbout the im-
portance of suwdio- or video-recording practices Yor research and
training purposes. In addition, it may be vatuable W aseertain o
clinician's attitude toward audio or video recording. For instance,
if a clnician's attitede toward audio or video recording was found
to have an offect on patient level of comfort, additional edocation
about the wiliy of aedio or video recording research could be
provided garty on in the training program.

Despite being the first empirical examination of this issue in the
Hterature, the cumrent study does bave some limitations, First, this
sample primarly suffered from mikd to moderate levels of distress
and impairments in fupctioning {mean intuke GS! = 108, 8D =
0.63), In opder o maoke these results move generalizable to other
samples, further research iy needed to exarpine populations with
higher levels of globul distress and greater functional impairment.
The sample was plso limited by its relative homogeneity: The
muajority of participants were female (79%), Cavcasian (72%), and
highly educated {mesn years” education = 15.54), 1t would be
impertant for future research to explore potential differences In 2
sample with more demographic diversity. All of the clinicians

included i the siudy were doctoral-evel tmainees, aad fusther
reseurch should be conducted 10 examine how imuke clinician and
therapist level of experience may impact patient attitudes toward
wudia o video recording. Given the intake clinician (.e., therapist)
effect findings in the carrent data regaeding this issuee, it is yus-
pected that some clinicians were either more informed or more
invested in the process of adiministering the audio/videolape com-
fort form at the intske session {ie., it is possible that some
clinicians ook more time to explain the form and answer sny
questtons the patient may have had and even followed up with
questions when the patient had none). 1o addition, clinicians' own
aftiledes toward audio or video recording may have been commu-
nicated either explicitly or implicitly to patients, which may have
had an etfect on patient attitudes. These fctars should be explored
in terms of how clintcion knowledge snd bias {specific to the form)
may have impacted patient attitedes,

In sckelition w future research addressing Wimitations of the cucrent
study, there are other arcas that would be useful fo investigate. It raay
be importuat for future rescarch to investigate additionat paticnt and
therapist characteristies as they relate to patient aodio- ar video-
recording combort in order to see if there are any other patient-level
variables beyomd levels of sympromatology (e.g., demoegraphics, per-
stnulity traits) ihat may contribute to different levels of comfort with
recording, Furthermore, this study examined only patient comfart
with audio or video recotdings, and at the beginning of the weatrment
process. However, aely some of the patients who expressed a comtorn
with recording their psychotherapy subsequently had their sessions
sudio- or videotaped, B is imporant for futare research t examine the
relationship between these pretreatrent attitudes, as well us whether
these atfibades change lopgitudinally over the course (reitment, for
patients who subsequently do and do ot bave thelr sessions recorded,
Additonally, aithough the effect of the intake clinician and therapist
were expmined in the current study using HLM analyses, little iy
known shoul what specific therapist characteristics may have im-
pacted the findings. A more-thorough investipation into therapist
characteristics would be psefil in tertns of trgeting qaining efforts.
This ares of research would also benefit from explosation into the
effectiveness of intervertions designed to incresse both patient and
tharapist evels of combort with recording practices. Prior research hiw
suppested that many patients (Marshall et al., 2001} and therapists
(Yenawine & Arbuckle, 1971 acclimate to the recorling process
gquickly, within # faw sessions, snd it would be helpful to see whether
this con be replicated in setings thae may have more of a focus on
ittt and where trainees may have higher or lower baseling lovels
of amety related W recording as wall as longidinally over the
course of trestment. Future resencch in the ares of audio- or video-
recording prychotherapy sessions will enable clinival supervisors and
clinle administeators to more suceesshslly implement audio- or vid-
eotape research, which will in urn beneilt the field overall in science
and practice,
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Appendix

Audio/Videolupe Comfort Form

The Center for Peychological Servicas i5 o traimng olinie and
some patients may he asked for permission to ke andio and/or
vitdet recordings of the servicss they receive for trainingfeduca-
tonal perposes anty, These recordings may enable the clinician
and supervisor assigned to a case to more clearly review and
understand how to best impleraent & Treatment program with the
patients they serve, Oply the clinieal staff invelved with a treat-
ment case at the Center would have access 1o these recordings, All
cases are assipned a code number thay will be wsed o identify any
information that is recorded from any teeattmeny, Typicatly, sach
therapist has one wpe and when the tape i full it s revsed and old
sessions are aped over. Just like ofl information tegarding Weal-
ment cases, any recorded information will be kept secured and
locked, These tapes will not be disseminated, and they will be
handled in gccardance with the ethical and professional staands
of the American Psyehological Association,

in considering how | might respond ta being asked for permis-
sion to make asdio and/or video recordings of the services |
receive for iraimngleducational purposes only (Please check one):

T would have no serious ohjections W doing this after
having the opporiunity 1o diseuss these lssues with my assigned
therspist.

_____ 1 lave some slight concerns, but would probably do this
after Bawing the opportunity 1o discuss these issues with my
assigned (herapist

_____ 1 have somne moderate concems, but would possibly do
this sfer Baving the opportunity to discuss these issues with my
assipned therapist.

_______ I huve some serious concerns, but would probably not do
this even afler having the opportunity w discuss these issues with
nry assigned therapist.

______ | would bave vehement objections o doeing this and
would ot need to diseuss these {ssues with my assigned therapist,
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